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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “directors”)
of Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited, formerly known
as United Gene High-Tech Group Limited until the change of
name on 29 September 2015, (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”), | hereby present to all shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholders”) the audited consolidated
financial results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016 (the
“Financial Year"”) with comparative figures for the year ended 31
March 2015 (the “Previous Financial Year”).

For the Financial Year, the Group recorded revenue of
approximately HK$19.9 million, a decrease of approximately
41.41% in revenue from approximately HK$34.0 million as recorded
in the Previous Financial Year. The decrease in revenue was largely
due to the decrease of business activity in the Group's trading of
beauty equipment and products segment during the second half
of the Financial Year as the Group focused were of its resources
on numerous potential joint-ventures domestically and abroad and
developing new business.

For the Financial Year, the loss attributable to the owners of
the Company amounted to approximately HK$236.9 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 47.59% from the
loss attributable to owners of the Company in the amount of
approximately HK$451.7 million recorded in the Previous Financial
Year. The comparative reduction in loss of HK$214.8 million was
primarily due to a lesser amount of loss on initial recognition
of investments in convertible bonds acquired that were issued
by Extrawell Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (“Extrawell”), a
company of which shares are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”)
that is principally engaged in the marketing and distribution of
pharmaceutical products to customers in the People’'s Republic
of China (the “PRC" or “China”), the development, manufacture
and sales of pharmaceutical products in the PRC and the business
of commercial exploitation and development of genome related
technology that were acquired in the Financial Year as compared to
the Previous Financial Year and the corresponding difference of loss
amounted to HK$215.7 million.

Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited |
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHE

OUTLOOK

Pursuant to the conditional sale and purchase agreement dated 27
April 2013 between the Company and Dr. Mao Yumin (“Dr. Mao"),
the Company acquired convertible bonds issued by Extrawell in
April, August, and December of 2014 and April 2015 and upon
acquisition of each convertible bond, the Company’s effective
ownership in Extrawell increased accordingly. This conditional sale
and purchase agreement between the Company and Dr. Mao was
fully completed on 30 April 2015.

For further information on this conditional sale and purchase
agreement, please also refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 15 May 2013, 30 August 2013, 20 November 2013,
31 December 2013, 28 January 2014, 24 April 2014, 1 September
2014, 31 December 2014, and 30 April 2015, as well as the circular
of the Company dated 27 September 2013 for further details.

The Company continues to actively pursue and review cooperation,
joint ventures, and investments with suitable partners and will
continue to focus on improving the Group's attractiveness and
profitability as necessary to enhance shareholder returns and the
sustainable long-term development of the Group as a whole.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of all the members of the Board, | would like to take
this opportunity to express my gratitude to the Shareholders and
business partners of the Group for their continued support and
trust during the past years, and my most sincere appreciation to the
directors, management, and staff at all levels for their dedication,
hard work, and contributions to the Group.

Jiang Nian

Chairman
Shanghai, 29 June 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENmER DN

GROUP RESULTS

Revenue of the Group for the Financial Year amounted to
approximately HK$19.9 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 41.41% as compared with the total revenue of
approximately HK$34.0 million that was recorded in the Previous
Financial Year. The decrease was mainly attributable to a decrease
in business of the trading of beauty equipment and products
segment during the Financial Year. Loss attributable to the owners
of the Company fell to HK$236.9 million for the Financial Year,
an improvement from the loss of HK$451.7 million that was
recorded in the Previous Financial Year. The reduction of loss was
primarily due to the lesser amount of loss on initial recognition of
investments in convertible bonds acquired being recognized on
the Group's acquisition of investment in convertible bonds that
were issued by Extrawell, a company listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange for the Financial Year as compared with the
Previous Financial Year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Provision of genetic testing services

Since 2010, the Group has held the permanent and exclusive
distribution rights for genetic testing services in the regions
of the PRC, Hong Kong, and Macau, permanent non-exclusive
distribution rights for genetic testing services in other regions,
and the right to use certain logos on genetic testing products and
for genetic testing services that are distributed by the Group. The
Group has franchised the distribution rights of the genetic testing
products and services. The provision of genetic testing services
did not generate any revenue for the Financial Year. Compared
to HK$191,000 in the Previous Financial Year, the revenue is
declining.

Distribution of bio-industrial products

The Group has held the exclusive distribution rights for the
distribution of bone chips and fat in the PRC since 1 January 2010
for an initial term of 5 years, the terms of which was automatically
extended by an additional 10 years upon the expiry of the initial
term. There was no revenue arising from the distribution of bio-
industrial products during both the Financial Year and Previous
Financial Year.

Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited |
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENmE oM

Trading of beauty equipment and products

The Group commenced the trading of beauty equipment and
products since June 2013. During the Financial Year, revenue
arising from the trading of beauty equipment and products
amounted to approximately HK$19.9 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 41.07% from the revenue in the amount
of approximately HK$34 million that was recorded in the Previous
Financial Year.

Investments in Extrawell

Since 2013 the Company has acquired shares and convertible
bonds issued by Extrawell and Extrawell became an associate
company of the Group. The Group’'s investments in Extrawell are
recorded in the Company's statement of financial position under
investment in associates and investments in convertible bonds,
and these balances are sensitive to share price fluctuations of
Extrawell’s publicly traded shares, as well as being subject to
impairment assessment in accordance with Hong Kong Accounting
Standards.

Research and development

The Group currently has one group of companies in its research
and development portfolio. The Company acquired a majority
stake in Smart Ascent Limited (“Smart Ascent” together with its
subsidiaries, the “SAL Group”), whereby Smart Ascent became
51% owned by the company and the companies of the SAL Group
became non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company. SAL Group
is principally engaged in the development of a technology that
would allow insulin to be administered orally. The Group will inject
resources into clinical trials continuously in order to facilitate the
development of it. The Group will make further announcements
depending on situation and in accordance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) if there is any material development.

Thus far, the Group has financed the research and development
segment with the Group’s internal resources but remains active
and open to other fund-raising and partnership activities to further
develop the Company’s portfolio and development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENmER DN

PROSPECTS

Provision of genetic testing services

In October 2014, the Group franchised the genetic testing
distribution rights to two related parties which began providing
genetic testing services and selling genetic testing products in
the PRC. The Group holds a cautious view regarding the business
given the uncertainty of the policy and regulatory environment of
genetic testing in the PRC and does not anticipate a recovery of the
industry in the near-term. The Group is actively seeking partners
or potential investors to work with or acquire the Group’s genetic
testing subsidiaries.

Distribution of bio-industrial products

CNL (Pinghu) Biotech Co. Ltd. (“CNL (Pinghu)”), a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, commenced the construction
of the production plant, research and development workshop and
office in 2010. Since 2012, CNL (Pinghu) has been a defendant to
a civil litigation suit in the PRC regarding construction costs of the
production plant. A verdict on the civil litigation suit was reached
in April 2014 pursuant to which it was ruled that the Group is liable
to pay RMB4.2 million to the plaintiffs. Payments were made in
respect of the litigation in accordance with the directions of the
court. The court has delayed payments to the plaintiff at this time
and further announcements will be made by the Company as and
when appropriate pursuant to the requirements of the Listing
Rules.

Trading of beauty equipment and products

The major trading products of the Group are beauty equipment and
beauty products, and sales of these beauty equipment and beauty
products represent the major component that contributes to the
Group's revenues.

Revenues and profit margins of the Group from the trading
segment have been relatively stable in the past and trading volume
is the key determiner of the profitability of the segment. The Group
competes by offering trading terms that are more favourable to its
suppliers and vendors compared to the Group's competitors, and
trades products that are in high demand given the development of
Asian economies.

During the second half of the Financial Year, trading business
activity fell as the Group reallocated personnel to focus on other
activities. The Group intends to maintain the segment and will
gradually increase the trading business activity in the upcoming
future.

Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited |
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWE DN

Securities investment EHRE

During the second half of the Financial Year, the PRC and RAFRFEETHE FEEEFERTARET
Hong Kong stock markets deteriorated significantly. Whilst the & - BEAEEEEBHZERTHERPNE
management of the Group is optimistic on the long-term recovery  E3FIFMEREE - B[R0 % 5% SR ™ R T BR A 2%
of the markets but they also remain cautious on the direction of the EHREFHZEEEE - NEBEE SRR T MNRD
market in the near-term. The Group continues to manage a diverse  RESFARNZ TLIREESE -

portfolio of Asian stocks and bonds.

Research and development 3%

Through the SAL Group, the Group has been developing AEEFEBELEE-HEMESEEEZAEH
the technology that would allow insulin to be administered HARFRNIRA ZEIT - RAFBFE - REEY)
orally. During the Financial Year, the Group explored potential GEEEE R EEBHEANBEKS - BRRNER
opportunities with investors and potential partners but as at the HE  AEBEHABESSBENEBELYE - KEH
date of this annual report the Group has yet to encounter a suitable BT AN HTAEBERES 2 BEE
business partner. The Group continues to evaluate potential e

products that would be used to bolster the Group's pipeline.

FINANCIAL REVIEW 2 p A EI)
Capital structure BRZEE
31.3.2016 31.3.2015
ZE—XRF —E—HF
=H=+-H =RA=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(audited) (audited)
(RRERZ) (EEZ)
Authorized JETE
50,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 50,000,000,000/% &M EE
HK$0.01 each (the “Shares”) 0.01B Tz EBR(MARG 1) 500,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETREHRE
1,464,193,024 Shares: 1,464,193,024R% i1
(As at 31 March 2015: (RZZE—R&=A=+—8":
1,304,193,024 Shares) 1,304,193,024 %A 17 ) 14,642 13,042
./'/;
BRBERLNNHEERAT | —B-AEFH / oy
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENmER DN

Number of
shares issued Share Capital
ERTRHAEHE &S
HK$°000
FET
As at 31 March 2015 R-ZE—RF=A=+—H 1,304,193,024 13,042
Conversion of Convertible Bonds | (note) — &E#u]#pkES —(#57) 160,000,000 1,600
As at 31 March 2016 R-EBE—-—XRE=ZA=+—H 1,464,193,024 14,642

Note: During the Financial Year, 160,000,000 new shares were issued
by the Company upon the conversion of its convertible bonds in
an aggregate principal amount of HK$64,000,000 (the “Convertible

Bonds |") at a conversion price of HK$0.4 per Share.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had bank and cash balances of
approximately HK$32.4 million (31 March 2015: approximately
HK$191.2 million).

As at 30 March 2016, the group and other parties entered into a
capital injection agreement (“the Capital Injection Agreement”)
regarding a proposed capital injection into a joint venture, an
amount to HK$150,000,000 (2015: Nil) was paid to an Escrow Agent
as an Escrow Fund. Subsequently to the end of the reporting period
on 6 June 2016, the Capital Injection Agreement was lapsed. The
Escrow Fund deposited was fully refunded to the Group on 7 June
2016.

As at 31 March 2016, total borrowings of the Group were
approximately HK$473.4 million (31 March 2015: approximately
HK$420.6 million) which reflected the debt value of the Company's
unconverted convertible bonds, amounts due to non-controlling
interests, amounts due to former non-controlling interests,
amounts due to the subsidiary of an associate, and loan from a non-
controlling interest.

Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited |
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENmE oM

The ratio of current assets to current liabilities of the Group was
1.54 as at 31 March 2016 as compared to the 2.55 as at 31 March
2015. The Group's gearing ratio as at 31 March 2016 was 0.26
(31 March 2015: 0.22) which is calculated based on the Group's
total liabilities of approximately HK$531.1 million (31 March 2015:
approximately HK$439.1 million) and the Group’s total assets of
approximately HK$2,010.2 million (31 March 2015: approximately
HK$2,040.6 million).

The Group places importance on security, short-term commitment,
and availability of the surplus cash and cash equivalents.

Significant acquisition and investments

During the Financial Year, the Group completed the acquisition of
the final tranche in its acquisition of four tranches of convertible
bonds that were issued by Extrawell and in consideration the
Company issued a convertible bond with a principal amount of
HK$64 million to Dr. Mao. The Group acquired the convertible
bonds from Dr. Mao pursuant to the conditional sale and purchase
agreement entered into between, among others, the Company and
Dr. Mao dated 27 April 2013.

Dr. Mao was a controlling shareholder of the Company when the
conditional sale and purchase agreement was signed. Accordingly,
Dr. Mao was considered as a connected person of the Company
and Extrawell under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As such,
the above transactions constitute connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and shall be
aggregated pursuant to Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules.

Save the above, the Group had no other significant investments,
nor had it made any material acquisition or disposal of the Group’s
subsidiaries or associated companies during the Financial Year.

Significant loss on acquisition of convertible bonds
During the Financial Year, the Group acquired the final tranche
of convertible bonds issued by Extrawell with a principal amount
of HK$64 million. The difference between the fair value of the
consideration exchange was recognised during the Financial Year
and the Group booked an accounting loss of approximately HK$62.2
million. Details of the loss are set out in note 18 of the consolidated
financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENmER DN

Issue of Convertible Bonds

On 24 March 2016 (after trading hours), the Company entered into a
subscription agreement with Fu Chuang Limited (the “Subscriber”),
pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed to issue
and the Subscriber has conditionally agreed to subscribe for the
convertible bonds (the “Convertible Bonds"”) in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$50,000,000 (the “Subscription”). The
maturity of the Convertible Bonds will be the date falling on
the third anniversary from the date of issue of the Convertible
Bonds. The Convertible Bonds will be converted into conversion
shares, being ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each,
at the conversion price of HK$1.00 (subject to adjustments) per
conversion share. The completion of the subscription of the
Convertible Bonds by the Subscriber was completed on 13 April
2016.

The directors are of the view that the Subscription represents a
good opportunity for the Company to raise additional funds for the
Company without an immediate dilution effect on the shareholding
of the existing Shareholders and strengthen the Group's financial
position to better equip the Group with financial flexibility for any
potential acquisition opportunities as and when appropriate. If the
conversion rights attaching to the Convertible Bonds are exercised
in full, it will enlarge the Shareholder and capital bases of the
Company. It is intended that the net proceeds from the issue of
Convertible Bonds will be used to finance potential acquisition
opportunities of the Group.

Charges on the Group’s assets
As at 31 March 2016, the Group and the Company did not have any
charges on their assets (31 March 2015: nil).

Litigation and contingent liabilities
Details of litigation and contingent liabilities are set out in note 32 of
the consolidated financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Commitments
Commitments of the Group and the Company as at 31 March 2016
are set out in note 33 of the consolidated financial statements.

Foreign exchange exposure

The monetary assets and liabilities and businesses of the Group
are mainly conducted in Hong Kong Dollars, Renminbi, and United
States Dollars. The Group maintains a prudent strategy in its foreign
exchange risk management, with the foreign exchange risk being
minimized through balancing the foreign currency monetary assets
against foreign currency monetary liabilities, and foreign currency
revenue against foreign currency expenditure. The Group did not
use any financial instruments to hedge against foreign currency
risk during the Financial Year. The Group will continue to monitor
its foreign currency exposure closely and consider hedging foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

Number and numeration of employees

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had 29 full time employees
(31 March 2015: 48),
subsidiaries in the PRC. The decrease in staff is due to a reduction

most of whom work in the Company's

in the business activity of certain segments and the subsequent
redundancies. It is the Group's policy that the remuneration
of employees and directors are in line with the market and
commensurate with their responsibilities. Discretionary year-
end bonuses are payable to the employees based on individual
performance. Other employee benefits include medical insurance,
retirement schemes, training programmes, and education
subsidies.

Total staff costs including the directors’ remuneration for the
Financial Year amounts to approximately HK$6.3 million (Previous
Financial Year: approximately HK$8.2 million).

Segment information

Details of the segment information are set out in note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

Saved as disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group did not have any material acquisition and
disposals during the year.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has adopted and complied with all the code
provisions as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (the
“Code") during the Financial Year, except for the deviations
discussed section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by directors of Listed Issuers (the “"Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions. All directors
have confirmed that they have fully complied with the Model Code
throughout the Financial Year. No incident of non-compliance was
noted by the Company in the Financial Year.

Tang Rong
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 June 2016

Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited

BEARBRLE
B o MBEERENFRBEN - AEER
7R [ AT A A TR o

B riRERTA

RAMBERER » NRBEERA IS8T EHRR
Bs%+POpT L 2 —tD <P AMEST ([ PRI D) - MEAREE
W EEERRSE | —E AT Z REEB R -

ESETZESRRXS

ARARCHRA LRS- P2 EHEITA
ERETESRH 2FETA(MELESTRIE
REFETESFXHZIOI/TA - 2REZCHE
R RERBEAVYRFED 228 TFRET
A - RAMBFE - ARBEDREEIBIAEFAN
ESTULSTRI -

B
HITEFE

BB —E—XRFXAZ+ANAH

Annual Report 2016



MANAGEMENT PROFILE
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Gao Yuan Xing, aged 61, has been appointed as an executive
director with effect from 4 January 2016. From 15 March 2011 to
4 January 2016, Mr. Gao was the chairman and executive director
of North Mining Shares Company Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Gao previously worked in
the foreign affairs office of the Shanghai Municipal Government,
and has had senior management roles in numerous international,
PRC investment, and commercial companies.

Mr. Tang Rong, aged 49, has been appointed as an executive
director with effect from 29 September 2014. Mr. Tang graduated
from Fudan University in the People's Republic of China in July
1989 with a bachelor's degree in science, majoring in genetics
and genetic engineering. He has been an engineer of The Institute
of Genetics of Fudan University from November 1989 and has
extensive experience in genetics related technology development,
commercialization and market development. Mr. Tang successfully
filed several patents in China and published papers in many science
magazines in genetics related subjects. He was invited as the
member of the Committee of Experts of /&R ER R AT
(Shanghai Lianzhong Institute of Gene Technology) in 2000. Starting
from November 2010, Mr. Tang was appointed as the director of
Gene Testing Research and Development Department of Longmark
(Shanghai) Healthcare Limited and he has professional expertise in
gene testing and research and development.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Jiang Nian, aged 62, has been appointed as a non-executive
director and chairman of the Company with effect from 21
December 2010 and 10 June 2011 respectively. Ms. Jiang
graduated from ZHEEERRNEBLEHDRER (Junior College,
Provincial Campus of Anhui Radio and Television University) in
August 1986, majoring in Chinese Language and Literature. Ms.
Jiang was the Associate Dean of the School of Life Sciences of
Fudan University from June 2003 to April 2010. She also serves as
an authorized representative of Bt EFEEMEHER A7 (United
Gene Biomedical Limited). She has extensive experience in general
administrative management particularly in the field of genomic
research.
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MANAGEMENT PROFILE
BEERE

Ms. Xiao Yan, aged 36, has been appointed as a non-executive
director with effect from 22 May 2012. Ms. Xiao graduated
from the Shanghai University of Finance and Economics with a
bachelor's degree in Accounting in 2007. Ms. Xiao has served as
an administrative manager of the chief executive, Dr. Xie, in & &
AR AR AR (United Gene Technology Holdings Limited) since
2002. Ms. Xiao has extensive experience in medical services and
general administration. From December 2011 to November 2012,
she served as the finance manager of CNL (Pinghu), which is an
indirectly owned subsidiary of the Company.

Ms. Wu Yanmin, aged 39, has been appointed as a non-executive
director with effect from 8 June 2011. Ms. Wu graduated from
the School of Life Sciences, Shanghai University in 1999 with a
bachelor's degree in biochemistry. Ms. Wu joined B & ERERHL
BRAF (United Gene Technology Holdings Limited), a genetic
engineering company substantially owned by Dr. Mao indirectly,
in 2001 and was responsible for general administrative duties.
Since 2006, Ms. Wu has served as an assistant to the chairman
of United Gene Holdings Limited, and is responsible for assisting
the chairman in handling various investment projects. Ms. Wu has
extensive experience in general administrative and investment
management. Starting from December 2012, she was appointed as
the finance manager of CNL (Pinghu).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Chen Weijun, aged 58, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director with effect from 6 November 2009 and is
the chairman of the audit committee of the Company. Ms. Chen
is currently the manager in the business department of Shanghai
Ruihe Certified Public Accountants Co., Ltd.. She was formerly the
finance supervisor of the companies indirectly owned by Dr. Mao
from April 2001 to June 2003. She graduated from the Chinese
Communist Party Central Party College and has been a registered
accountant in the PRC since 2005. She has more than 30 years of
experience in accounting, finance and audit services.
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Dr. Zhang Zhihong, aged 76, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director and is a member of the audit
committee of the Company with effect from 8 June 2011. Dr. Zhang
graduated from Fudan University majoring in biophysics in 1963
and obtained a doctorate degree in science from Kyoto University,
Japan in 1988. From 1990 to 1991, Dr. Zhang was a senior visiting
fellow at the medical school of Harvard University in the United
States of America. From 1986 to 2000, Dr. Zhang undertook various
senior positions at Fudan University, including the officer of the
Department of Physiology and Biophysics and the associate dean
of the School of Life Sciences. Dr. Zhang was the deputy chairman
of the Biophysical Society of China from 1994 to 2002 and the
chairman of the Shanghai Society of Biophysics from 2000 to 2008.
Dr. Zhang has extensive knowledge and is highly regarded in the
field of biophysics and physiology in China.

Mr. Wang Rongliang, aged 67, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director with effect from 8 June
2011 and is a member of the audit committee of the Company.
Mr. Wang graduated from E#ME%E— BB T KXE (Shanghai
First Commercial Bureau Staff College) majoring in business and
economics. He acted as a deputy manager of B+ BHEEELSHR
B2 A &) (Shanghai 700 Group Advertising Company Limited) from
1996 to 2005. Mr. Wang has extensive experience in operation and
administrative management.

Save as otherwise disclosed, there is no relationship between any
members of the Board, and no information relating to the directors
which is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rules 13.51(2) and
13.51(B)(1) of the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT

Mr. Poon Hon Yin, aged 50, has been appointed as the company
secretary, financial controller and an authorised representative of
the Company with effect from 14 May 2013. Mr. Poon is qualified
as a Certified Public Accountant registered with the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and is also a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr.
Poon has been a managing director of Probiz CPA Limited since
2006.
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EXTERNAL CONSULTANT PROFILE
SN RERE B

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Dr. Mao Yumin, aged 64, has been engaged as the chief scientific
adviser and honorary chairman of the Company since 1 September
2010, responsible for providing advisory and consultancy services
to the Group in relation to the research and development of its
genetic testing products and other scientific technologies. Dr. Mao
is a substantial shareholder of the Company. He was a member
of the Consultant Committee of Fudan University, the dean of
the School of Life Sciences and Institute of Genetics of Fudan
University, and the director of State Key Laboratory of Genetic
Engineering in Fudan University. Dr. Mao’'s main area of research
focuses on biological and genetic engineering. Dr. Mao has
accumulated extensive experiences in operations in the genomic
research based industry.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the Financial Year, the Company adopted and has complied
with all the code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance
Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (the “Code”)
except for the deviations discussed below.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions. All directors have confirmed that they
have fully complied with the Model Code throughout the Financial
Year. No incident of non-compliance was noted by the Company
in the Financial Year. Relevant employees who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished inside information of the Group are also
subject to compliance with written guidance on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code throughout the Financial Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The composition of the Board during the Financial Year are set out
below:

Executive directors

Mr. Gao Yuan Xing (appointed on 4 January 2016)
Mr. Tang Rong

Ms. Lee Nga Yan (resigned on 29 December 2015)
Dr. Guo Yi (resigned on 14 December 2015)

Non-executive directors
Ms. Jiang Nian (Chairman)

Ms. Xiao Yan

Ms. Wu Yanmin

Independent non-executive directors
Ms. Chen Weijun

Dr. Zhang Zhihong

Mr. Wang Rongliang

Further details of the composition of the Board are set out in the
section headed “Management Profile” on pages 15 to 17.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERRE

The Board considers the balance between executive directors and
non-executive directors is adequate to safeguard the Shareholders’
interests. Independent non-executive directors can also provide
the Group with diversified expertise and valuable experience. Their
independent advice can bring independent judgment to the decision
making of the Board and bring new ideas to the formulation of
corporate strategy.

The directors oversee the financial performance and formulate
business strategies and determine the corporate governance policy
of the Group, as well as discuss on any significant matters relating
to the Group at the Board meetings. Daily operational matters are
delegated to the management of the Group. The Board meets
regularly to renew the financial and operating performance of the
Company and considers and approves the overall strategies and
policies of the Group. During the Financial Year, the Board held nine
meetings. The attendance of each member at the Board meeting is
set out as follows:

EXERR/VTESRIFNTESTZFERUR
FERCR 2 Fa - BYFFRITER A RALEIR
HEEMZBENBREERR - WEZBUE
AN EFTERREHFLELHE - BEER
% 2 1l E s SR BB

EXREERARBZMIERE R EEBERE
REFTPEERBE  UTREFSRR LHIE
AEBAEEZEREE - BRKLLEHKAZRIK
TAEEEREERE - EESEHRUEFARA
MHEEERABTIENEERBBAEE L
EERBEEER RAVREE  EFQEHT
NREH - ERENEETS R 2 HFECEERT
LU

Meetings attended/

Directors Total meetings as directors
HESBERE

= EREECESHY

Board meeting General meeting

E=gg BRXE
Executive directors HITESE
Mr. Gao Yuan Xing (note 1) SREL A (HET) 5/5 0/0
Ms. Lee Nga Yan (note 2) ZHERNA (A EE2) 3/3 1/1
Dr. Guo Yi (note 3) HEE L (H723) 2/3 0/1
Mr. Tang Rong ERTAE 9/9 1/1
Non-executive directors FHITES
Ms. Jiang Nian (Chairman) BELZL(FRE) 9/9 0/1
Ms. Xiao Yan EE8 g 9/9 0/1
Ms. Wu Yanmin SRzt 9/9 0/1
Independent non-executive directors BYKHTES
Ms. Chen Weijun PRIEE 21 9/9 1/
Dr. Zhang Zhihong REBIELT 9/9 1/1
Mr. Wang Rongliang FRBREE 9/9 1/1
Note 1: Mr. Gao was appointed on 4 January 2016, his attendance shallbe &1 : SE4ER_ZE— R E—ANBEEZRE  HEH
pro-rated to the period during which he was a director only (see FEERRAREEETAES ZHMAE (R ED
note 2, I(C) of Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules). FRBIFTER T - 1(C)FE25F D) °

Note 2: Ms. Lee resigned on 29 December 2015. W2 FMAR-_ZT—AE+_A-t+HhABT-
Note 3: Dr. Guo resigned on 14 December 2015. W3 : BELR-T-—AF+-A+HEABE-

All directors, including independent non-executive directors, have
given sufficient time and effort to the affairs of the Group.
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Code provision A.2.1

Code provision A2.1 stipulate that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual.

Ms. Jiang Nian is the chairman of the Group. As at the date of this
annual report, no suitable candidate for the role of chief executive
officer has been identified and the role remains vacant. The
Company is continually looking for a suitable person to assume this
role.

INDUCTION AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
Directors’ training

All directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities
as directors and of the business and activities of the Group. As
such, briefings are provided and organised to ensure that newly
appointed directors are familiar with the role of the Board, their
legal and other duties and responsibilities as director as well as the
business and corporate governance practices of the Group.

Pursuant to Code A.6.5 of the Code, directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. For the period from
1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016, all directors have participated in
appropriate continuous professional development activities by ways
of attending training or reading material relevant to the Company's
business or to the directors’ duties and responsibilities.

For the year ended 31 March 2016, trainings received by each
director are summarised as follows:

SFRIRSCER AL 2. 11%
TANGEXEA 2V IGETH - % RITREHZ B
EEAHMESD © RTMERE—AFRE -

BELTARERTF - RAFHRAY - THA
B2BURRAEEAARMRTEE - ARFIE
EEYEABANEEELRLL -

ARSI REERRE
=8|
TREFHETRTRESEAES ZEEBAT
INRAREE EBRES - Bt - AAFRER
ZHEN BRI EZAEST THRESTSZA
B BREEAEEZEEREMBERETUK
REBZEBREEERTHR -

REBETREACLK EZESBEIGTEFTXH
B BRIBTHMWENHNBRKEE - URRES
EBEREESFHANEREEZER - B =%
—HFENA—HRE-_E-R"F=A=+—HIt
HEA 2REFC2EQBEIREZTERRE
B EPERHFEARREBLEEERE R
B R AARE 2 SR )| Sk B AR R 2 R

REBE-_ZT—RF=-A=+—BItEE KEZ
BEIZEINGEWT ¢

Attending training Reading material

relevant to relevant to
the Company’s the Company’s
business or business or
to the directors’ to the directors’
duties and duties and
responsibilities responsibilities
SHEBRENT MEEREAT
ERREERER EBRREERER
BHE 2 Bz
Mr. Gao Yuan Xing Sy 4 4
Mr. Tang Rong B v v
Ms. Lee Nga Yan ZHERR/NE
(resigned on 29 December 2015) (R=—ZE—R&F+=A
—+ABEHT) v v/
Dr. Guo Yi HEE L
(resigned on 14 December 2015) (R=—Z—RF+=A
+PH B EHT) v v/
Ms. Jiang Nian BELL v v
Ms. Xiao Yan B izt v v
Ms. Wu Yanmin ShFES 2z - v/ v
Ms. Chen Weijun PRIER 2+ v v
Dr. Zhang Zhihong REBIEL v v
Mr. Wang Rongliang FRBREE v/ //‘.’/
_.f'/ é
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
directors should be appointed for specific term and should be
subject to re-election.

The Company has deviated from the code provision A.4.1. The
non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors
were not appointed for specific term but are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at least once every three years in
accordance with the provision of the Company's bye-laws. As such,
the Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken
to serve the purpose and objective of this Code provision.

The directors believe that, despite the absence of specified
term of non-executive directors, the directors are committed
to representing the long-term interests of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the
remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) in accordance with the requirements of the Listing
Rules. The Remuneration Committee was set up on 30 June 2008.
The majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee shall
be independent non-executive directors.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee are as
follows:

(a) to advise the Shareholders on whether the terms of service
contracts that require the Shareholder’'s approval are fair and
reasonable;

(b) to make recommendation to the Board on the Group’s
remuneration policy and structure;

(c) to establish guidelines for recruitment of members of the
senior management;

(d) to determine the remuneration of members of the senior
management; and

(e)  to formulate remuneration policy and make recommendations
to the Board on annual remuneration review.
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Remuneration of the directors and senior management is reviewed
and fixed by the Remuneration Committee, with reference to
the market benchmarks and industry norms, and their duties
and responsibilities in the Group, having regard to the expertise,
performance and experience possessed by individual directors.

During the Financial Year, the Remuneration Committee held three
meetings. The attendance of each member at the committee
meeting is set out as follows:

EERRAEEBZYFMaFHEE S ETR
A WESEMSEERENRE - RERFERA
SEZBEMBEARTEEZEXMN - KA

RAMBFEE HFMEEECET=ZREH - &
KERZBEER 2 HFRLEIIIMT

Meetings attended/
Total meetings

held during
Directors the Financial Year
TEBEEHEERRE
= BIzEREH
Non-executive director FHITES
Ms. Jiang Nian BEZ+ 3/3
Independent non-executive directors BIFHTES
Dr. Zhang Zhihong REBEL 3/3
(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) (FHZE=F/E)
Mr. Wang Rongliang T EREE 3/3

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee of the
Company (the “Nomination Committee”) on 16 March 2012. During
the Financial Year, the Nomination Committee held two meetings.
The attendance of each member of the committee meeting is set
out as follows:

REZEE

ARARBRZB-F=A+AARIARTZ
REZAR((RAZES]) - RAMBEHE « 7
FEERRROMALGH  ERARNZEGEH

ZHBEREHIIT

Meetings attended/
Total meetings

held during

Directors the Financial Year

THREEHESERE

= BIZEBEY

Non-executive director FHTES

Ms. Jiang Nian BFELa+ 2/2
Independent non-executive directors BIUFHTES

Dr. Zhang Zhihong REBEL 2/2

(Chairman of the Nomination Committee) (BEZEEX/E)
Mr. Wang Rongliang TR EE 2/2
g
.r'/
EMBEREYNEERAT | —B-AEER /
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The Nomination Committee adopted a board diversity policy that
set out the Group's approach to diversify members of the Board and
the Group holds the view that this board diversity policy will lead to
a Board with diverse perspectives. Factors that will be considered
in the assessment of the diversity of a director’'s perspective
include, but are not limited to, gender, age, culture, skill,
knowledge, educational background and professional experience.
Presently, the Board comprises of eight directors, of which three
are independent non-executive directors, with significant diversity
in gender, age, professional experience, educational and cultural
background, skills, knowledge and length of service.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. The auditors of
the Company acknowledges their reporting responsibilities in the
auditors’ report on the consolidated financial statements for the
Financial Year.

The directors confirm that the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements of the Group is in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The directors
also confirm that the consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been published in a timely manner.

The directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubts upon the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Group’s external auditors are East Asia Sentinel Limited. For
the Financial Year, the auditors of the Company had performed
audit services and their remuneration in respect of audit services
was HK$1,000,000. The Group's former external auditors were
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and the audit and non-audit service fees
of the Previous Financial Year were HK$1,200,000 and HK$5,000,
respectively.

Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited |

REZBEERMBFAEEEFTERRZ LIS
HeEEEKBZLEBRREAKRERE &%
EREZTTEBEHEREES L TLEH - 1
AZEEBHIEZTERER AR - BEET
RARMR - F#h - b - Hie - HF - BESS
REXRER - Bl EFER/\REFHEKR &
h=RRNER - Fik - FELR  HERXE
BRI AMBRFETEANABRZ TEZE
TIEHMITES -

EERGBMHMBRRERZ
B
EERARSEECRUTEBZRANHE
& - ARTRBERMER M BERH A B
BRZEBARETAHRREL -

EEMRAEE 2 RAMBRRIIRROEESRE
FEREEANRH - ESTHIANKECIKE
TR E MK -

EEWER  WMEE—AEERE  BEEMR
- BELEE  BFELTABEMNFEERT
BERZRZEHRBEARGH AR ZHELSE
BENEREREE ©

BE £
REEZINEZEEN A BT AEBAAERA
Al RAMBEE AR ZZRBMBETE
R - REREZRS ZBE%1,000,000%
TL o RE—BIFE « REE 2 INEZERD R1E
g) e BAEMR T EETRITT - URBEZRIEEZRSE
Z 845 5/41,200,0005 7T 55,0005 7T o

Annual Report 2016



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the following corporate
governance duties as required under the Code:

(a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
board;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

(e) to review the Company’'s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report (the “Corporate
Governance Report”).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the audit
committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) in accordance
with the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee
is composed of three independent non-executive directors. At
least one of the members of the Audit Committee has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under the Listing Rules.

The primary functions of the Audit Committee are as follows:

(@) to serve as a focal point for communication between the
directors and external auditors;

(b)  to assist the Board in fulfilling its responsibility by providing an
independent review with the management of the accounting
policies and practices adopted by the Group, and supervision
of financial reporting, and monitoring and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and the adequacy
of the external audit;
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to review the appointment of external auditors on an annual
basis as well as to ensure continuing auditors independence;

(d) to develop and monitor the applications of the policies on
the engagement of the external auditors to perform other
professional services (other than tax-related services); and

(e) to oversee the Company’s financial reporting system, risk

management and internal control procedures.

The Group's audited consolidated financial statements for the
Financial Year were reviewed by the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the Financial Year.

Independent non-executive directors

(©) BEZMINEXBEMIERE  WHERZE
B iR¥E — BB

(d) fWHE SN A BRAM 4R (oAt B 25 AR 7% (R 75
ERAARTSERSN) - BIRT RERBERZER
)53

(e) ERARAZUBHERSR REREER
MRS IR P

ERZECGCEHARBERAMRFER 2 KEZ
RAEMB®EK -

EREZEGRN AN BFEERITHAGE -
Meetings attended/

Total meetings held
during the Financial Year

AEBEEHEEBRRE
BIYEHITES BIrEBREK
Ms. Chen Weijun PRIER XL 4/4
(Chairman of the Audit Committee) (BERZESTE)
Dr. Zhang Zhihong KRB EL 4/4
Mr. Wang Rongliang TEBREE 3/4
RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL REREERAZPEE

CONTROL

The Board has the overall responsibility for maintaining a sound
and effective risk management and internal control systems
to safeguard the Shareholders’ interests, and to review the
effectiveness of such systems regularly. The risk management and
internal control systems includes defined management structure
with limits of authority set at various levels, which is designed
to safeguard assets, ensure the maintenance of proper records,
provide reliable financial information for internal use or publication,
and ensure compliance with regulations. During the Financial
Year, the Board has reviewed the internal control procedures of
the Group and consider the risk management and internal control
systems to be adequate and effective.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

(i)

Procedures for convening of an extraordinary
general meeting and putting forward proposals
at shareholders’ meeting

Shareholders are encouraged to attend all general meetings.
Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company, any one or
more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition (the “Written Requisition”) to the Board or the
Secretary of the Company at the principal place of business
in Hong Kong of the Company (at Unit No. 2111, 21/F, West
Tower Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central,
Sheung Wan, Hong Kong), to require a special general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such
requisition.

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company, an annual general
meeting shall be called by a written notice of not less than
twenty-one (21) clear days and not less than twenty (20) clear
business days and any special general meeting at which the
passing of a special resolution is to be considered shall be
called by a written notice of not less than twenty-one (21)
clear days and not less than ten (10) clear business days.
Business day under the Listing Rules means any day on
which the Stock Exchange is open for business of dealing in
securities.

If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in accordance with the
provision of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda.
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Procedures for directing enquiries to the
Company

To direct enquiries to the Board, Shareholders should submit
his/her/its enquires in writing with contact details (including,
your registered name, address and telephone number, etc.) to
the Company Secretary at the following:

By post to the head office and principal place of business
in Hong Kong at Unit No. 2111, 21/F, West Tower Shun Tak
Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong
Kong.

Tel: (852) 2598 6818
Fax: (852) 2598 6628

Matters relating to share registration

For share registration related matters, such as share
transfer and registration, change of name and address of
Shareholders, loss of share certificates or dividend warrants,
Shareholders can contact the Hong Kong branch share
registrar and transfer office at the following:

Tricor Tengis Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2810 8185

Fax: (852) 2980 1333

Procedures for a shareholder to propose a
person for election as a director

Subject to the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws, the
Shareholders may from time to time in general meeting by
Ordinary Resolution elect any person to be a director either to
fill a casual vacancy or as an additional director.

Shareholder(s) may propose a person other than an existing
director of the Company for election as a director at a general
meeting. The Shareholder(s) must deposit a written notice
(the “Notice") to the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong for the attention of the Company Secretary.
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The Shareholder(s) must prove his/her/their shareholding in
the Company.

The Notice must be signed by the Shareholder(s) (other than
a person to be proposed) and shall be accompanied by the
following of information and documents:

— the full name and the contact information of the
Shareholder(s);

— the contact details, age and the full name of the person
proposed for election as a director of the Company;

— biographical details of the person proposed for election
as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules;

— letter of consent signed by the person proposed to be
elected that he or she consents to be director of the
Company, if elected.

The Notice and the abovementioned information and documents
must be lodged with the Company commencing from the day after
despatch of the notice of the general meeting and ending no later
than seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meeting.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company endeavours to uphold a high level of corporate
transparency. Keeping Shareholders, investors, analysts, bankers
and other stakeholders informed of our corporate strategies and
business operations has been one of the key objectives of our
investor relations team.
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The directors hereby submit their report with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year.

PLACE OF INCORPORATION

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law
(as revised) of the Cayman lIslands and continued in Bermuda as
an exempted company with limited liability in accordance with the
Companies Act 1981 (as amended) of Bermuda. The address of its
registered office is at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM 11, Bermuda and its principal place of business in Hong Kong
is Unit No. 2111, 21/F, West Tower Shun Tak Centre, 168-200
Connaught Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the businesses of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group's future business development is provided
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in
this annual report.

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year ended 31
March 2016 using financial performance indicators is provided in
the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 6 to 14 of this annual report.

In addition, more details regarding the Group's performance by
reference to environmental and social-related key performance
indicators and policies, as well as compliance with relevant laws
and regulations which have a significant impact on the Company
are provided in the paragraph headed “Environmental, Social and
Governance” of the report of the directors on pages 44 to 46 of this
annual report.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group's financial condition, results of operations, businesses
and prospects may be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties. The followings are the key risks and uncertainties
identified by the Group. There may be other risks and uncertainties
in addition to those shown below which are not known to the Group
or which may not be material now but could turn out to be material
in the future.

Business Risk

Certain of the business segments to which the Group operates are
subject to the overall economic growth of the PRC, which is subject
to ever-changing economic policy changes of the PRC government.
Any adverse changes in economic policies of the PRC government
could materially and adversely affect the Group's business.

The valuation of the intangible assets of the Group is tied to the
Group's ability to successfully complete the development and
commercialization of the related product and the policy of medical
examination and the medical policy. A delay or failure in the Group's
ability to do so may adversely affect the Group’s business.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or
failed internal processes, people and systems or from external
events. Responsibility for managing operational risks basically rests
with every function at divisional and departmental levels. The Group
recognises that operational risks cannot be eliminated completely
and that it may not always be cost effective to do so.

Key functions in the Group are guided by their operating procedures,
limits of authority and reporting framework. The Group will identify
and assess key operational exposures from time to time and report
such risk issues to senior management as early as possible so that
appropriate risk response can be taken.

Financial Risk

The financial risk management of the Group are set out in note 6 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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RESULTS AND FINANCIAL POSITION

The results of the Group for the Financial Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive
income on pages 51 and 52. The directors do not recommend
the payment of a final dividend for the Financial Year. There is no
arrangement that a shareholder of the Company has waived or
agreed to waive any dividend.

The state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2016 are set out
in the consolidated statement of financial position on pages 53 and
54.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the Financial Year in the property,
plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Financial Year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the Financial Year in the share
capital of the Company are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the
Financial Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on page 55. There were no distributable reserves of the
Company at 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: nil).

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Details of the convertible bonds issued by the Group are set out in
note 29 to consolidated financial statements.

Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited |

EBERMBRR
REERTTBREE 2 EBEHNESIEEEDL2
A BEREMEEEER - ESTEER
NREATREEZ RIS - RERART 2K
RERRACRBHREEMBRE ZZHE -

REER_ZE-—RNE=ZA=+—HZUBRRH
MEEE3AEFEE4A 2 ir B FTERE ©

Mz BMERRE
AEEZWE - BERREA RS BHEENZ 2
BHERAS M BBRME6 -

BE -
L
RAMBFE - ADAREIANB A 7
B HEREEAA A RS -

HEXEBAXAQAFZ

B 2=
RRB AR REE 2 A&
TERRMIFE30 ©

EREE S oN=y ]

f# &
REBMRAMBRFEZFHEDFIHEHNESS
BRGARSEHER R AFZA=1—
B A2rEISERFEH(ZE—RAF=A
=t+—B8:&)-

R ES

REBMEBEITZABRES ZFBHRGREME
HwEMIFE29 o

Annual Report 2016



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Financial Year and up to
the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Gao Yuan Xing (appointed on 4 January 2016)
Mr. Tang Rong

Ms. Lee Nga Yan (resigned on 29 December 2015)
Dr. Guo Yi (resigned on 14 December 2015)

Non-executive Directors
Ms. Jiang Nian (Chairman)

Ms. Xiao Yan

Ms. Wu Yanmin

Mr. Gao Yuan Xing, Mr. Tang Rong and Ms. Jiang Nian are also
directors in certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Independent non-executive Directors
Ms. Chen Weijun

Dr. Zhang Zhihong

Mr. Wang Rongliang

In accordance with the bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Gao Yuan
Xing who was appointed subsequent to the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 25 August 2015, shall hold office only until
the forthcoming annual general meeting (“2016 AGM") and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the 2016 AGM.

In accordance with the bye-laws of the Company, one third of
the directors for the time being shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. Accordingly, Ms. Xiao
Yan, Ms. Wu Yanmin and Ms. Chen Weijun shall retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting had a service contract that was not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the directors and senior management
are set out on pages 15 to 17 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 March 2016, the interests or short positions of the
directors, chief executive of the Company or their associates in any
Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which were required
to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO, or which is otherwise required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code were as follows:

EERGHNEEBZBERE

EERAREREZHREREFBHRNAFRSE
15EZE17H °

EERKRMD 2R
RZZB-—RE=ZA=1T—H KRAEE =&
THRABRREBE A LR AR R HEEME
BEE(ERRABFMBEGHRI(TEFZRAER
GBI EXVER) 2 EmA L - RO ESSH#
BABBES KAEHIIFEIS2EFRHN AR A
FEZECMAARBERETIARMT X NE
RRR SRR Z R RIRRIT

Number Percentage

of shares/ of the issued

underlying share capital of

Name of director Capacity shares held the Company

BEZRHB HAEARE BT

EEpR 54 HERGEE BREBDE

Tang Rong Beneficial owner 396,200 0.03%
R E=mfEBA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, none of the
directors, chief executive of the Company nor their associates had
any interests or short positions in any Shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were required
to be recorded in the register by the Company required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or which is otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited
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DIRECTORS” AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other contract of significance, to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the Financial Year or at any time during the
Financial Year, nor was there any other contract of significance in
relation to the Group's business between the Company or any of
the Company’s subsidiaries and a controlling Shareholder or any of
its subsidiaries.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or in existence during the Financial Year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2016, the register of interests and short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company kept under
Section 336 of the SFO showed that, the following entities had
an interest or deemed interest of 5% or more in the issued share
capital of the Company:

Long positions in the issued share capital of the
Company

EERERBRRRERSH 2 EE

BEGAMBEMRMAIMWEEIN  NARH
EAEAAIPH B A B9 SR AR B B R R AR AR
PRFEEEAREEMEEFNE T EREREE
BEEEABRZEMERENZFTIHNTT - ARF
HAR R Z AL B & R IR B PR AR AR SR s BLAE
B AR EAREEBR R EAEMBE
REHK -

EEEN
RAMBEFE - LRI AFEENARRAZE
RAAMEIERIEH 2 ERRTRZEMD -

FTERRREMALRERSG REEH
Ry zEBERAR

RZZB-—RE=ZA=1T—H BEIFLBMERK
153361617 B 2 A R RABRAAR () 2 &
FRRBLMAE  TIHIEBRARRSHETR
RAEBE LR SHEBE% LA LR ¢

RAEQTCBITREZHR

Number Percentage
of shares/ of the issued
underlying share capital of
Name of Shareholder Capacity shares held the Company
BEzZR®G HARARE BT
R E 54 HERGEE &N =R
Dr. Mao Yumin (note 1) Beneficial owner 54,700,000 3.74%
EHREBEL (M) EnEAA
Interest of a controlled 322,351,350 22.02%
Corporation

REGEE

///
/ &
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EEEHRE

Name of Shareholder

IRERPE R

Capacity

54

Number

of shares/
underlying
shares held
BEZERH
HERGEE

Percentage

of the issued
share capital of
the Company
HANRE BT

RAEE DL

United Gene Holdings Limited (note 1)
BeERERBRAB(MEET)

Dr. Xie Yi (note 2)

B L (HE2)

Ease Gold Investments Limited (note 2)
(HteE2)

Good Links Limited (note 3) (f1i£3)

Victory Trend Limited (note 3) (K#:#3)

Best Champion Holdings Limited (note 4)
Sl EZERBR AR (Mit4)

China United Gene Investment Holdings
Limited (note 5) (Kfi£5)

Chau Yiu Ting

Beneficial owner

E=mEBEA

Interest of a controlled
Corporation

RIEHEE 2

Interest of a controlled
Corporation
SEHEE R

Interest of a controlled
Corporation
SEHERE 2 R

Interest of a controlled
Corporation
REGEE

Interest of a controlled
Corporation
SEHERE 2 R

Beneficial owner

ExEEA

Interest of a controlled
Corporation

REHEE 2 s

Beneficial owner
EmEEA

Beneficial owner

BEmEAA

Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited

84,500,000

237,851,350

237,851,350

237,851,350

237,851,350

237,851,350

61,650,000

176,201,350

176,201,350

307,600,000
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16.24%
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12.03%
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Notes:

1. United Gene Holdings Limited is wholly-owned by Dr. Mao,
which owns 33.50% equity interests of Best Champion Holdings
Limited.

2. Ease Gold Investments Limited, is wholly-owned by Dr. Xie Yi
(“Dr. Xie"), which owns 33.50% equity interests of Best Champion
Holdings Limited.

&) Victory Trend Limited is wholly-owned by Good Links Limited,
which is in turn owned as to 50% by Dr. Mao and as to 50% by Dr.
Xie. Victory Trend Limited owns 33.00% equity interests of Best
Champion Holdings Limited.

4. The equity interest of Best Champion Holdings Limited is owned
as to 33.50%, 33.50% and 33.00% by United Gene Holdings
Limited, Ease Gold Investments Limited and Victory Trend Limited,
respectively.

3, China United Gene Investment Holdings Limited is owned as to 60%
by Best Champion Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, the directors were not aware of any other
relevant interests or short positions of 5% or more in the issued
share capital of the Company as at 31 March 2016.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation from
each independent non-executive director confirming his/her
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive directors
to be independent.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A summary of the related parties transactions entered into by
the Group during the Financial Year is contained in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The following transactions between certain connected parties (as
defined in the Listing Rules) and the Group have been entered into
during the Financial Year and/or are ongoing for which relevant
announcements, if necessary, had been made by the Company in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

EMBEREVREERAF |

=

wisE -

1. BMEERZERERAF(AERLZ2EHSE)HE
B EEBRER AR Z33.50% 4 -

2. Ease Gold Investments Limited ( B #it % 8 +
([HELD2EEB)BEINEERERAFZ
33.50% [ HE ©

3. Victory Trend LimitedfiGoodLinks Limited &
BB > MGood Links Limited i & 8 £ & #f
B+ 5 5l # E50% K%50% * M Victory Trend
Limited#E A SlE5 R A R A7) 2 33.00% AR HE -
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(1)

Connected transactions

On 27 April 2013, the Company, as purchaser, and Dr.
Mao and JNJ Investment Limited (“JNJ"), as vendors,
entered into a conditional sale and purchase agreement
dated 27 April 2013 (as supplemented and amended by
a supplemental agreement dated 7 May 2013,a second
supplemental agreement dated 30 August 2013 and a third
supplement agreement dated 28 January 2014), pursuant
to which the Company has conditionally agreed to acquire,
and (i) Dr. Mao and JNJ have conditionally agreed to sell
the convertible bonds issued by Extrawell in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$320,650,000 and 450,000,000 shares
of Extrawell respectively, at an aggregate consideration of
HK$608,000,000; and (ii) Dr. Mao has conditionally agreed to
sell the convertible bonds issued by Extrawell in an aggregate
principal amount up to approximately HK$257 million, at an
aggregate consideration up to a maximum HK$256,000,000, in
four batches.

Dr. Mao was a connected person of the Company by virtue of
being a controlling shareholder of the Company at the dates
of transactions. JNJ is a connected person of the Company
by virtue of its beneficial owner, being Dr. Mao. As such,
the transactions constitute connected transactions of the
Company under rule 14A.13(1)(a) of the Listing Rules and shall
be aggregated pursuant to Rule 14A.25 of the Listing Rules.

On 31 December 2013, all the completion of Transaction |
took place with (i) an aggregate sum of HK$120 million was
paid in cash by the Company to Dr. Mao upon Completion I[;
(ii) the Convertible Bonds |, of a principal amount of HK$200
million, were issued to Dr. Mao; and (iii) the Convertible Bonds
I, of a principal amount of HK$288 million, were issued to JNJ.

On 24 April 2014, all the conditions precedent for Transaction
Il took place and the Sale CB Il — First batch of convertible
bonds, of a principal amount of HK$64.13 million was received
by the Company and the Company issued Convertible Bonds
[, of a principal amount of HK$64 million, to Dr. Mao.

On 30 August 2014, all the conditions precedent for
Transaction Il took place and the Sale CB Il — Second batch
of convertible bonds, of a principal amount of HK$64 million
was received by the Company and the Company issued
Convertible Bonds Il, of a principal amount of HK$64 million,
to Dr. Mao.

Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited |

(1)

BERS
R-ZZE—=FMA=-++H x25(AH
E) ~ E1EL KINJ Investment Limited
(IUINUD)(BER)FINBEHA=ZZT—=F
WMAZ+EtRAZEBRHE R (K HH
AE-_TE—=FRARtHZ@EREWHHE =
T—=FNA=Zt+BZE-_OHExH=
EZZE—NME—AZ+NBZE=0M#
FiBETE T RIERT) © Bt - AARIE
Bl RZEWNE - R)EEFELRINIE
BHRGHRAESEEBEREIT 2R
&% - A& 8% 5320,650,0008 7T -
LA % 450,000,000 % 5B %0 - BRE A
608,000,000/ 7T : K (i) EETEHKH
HMEAREHERERITZARKRES  £&
#A%E B % 49257,000,0008 7T © BRER
& /£256,000,00078 7T © M HE %o @it
HETT o
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(2)

On 31 December 2014, all the conditions precedent for
Transaction Il took place and the Sale CB Il — Third batch of
convertible bonds, of a principal amount of HK$64 million
was received by the Company and the Company issued
Convertible Bonds Il, of a principal amount of HK$64 million,
to Dr. Mao.

On 30 April 2015, all the conditions precedent for Transaction
Il took place and the Sale CB Il — Fourth batch of convertible
bonds, of a principal amount of HK$64 million was received by
the Company and the Company issued Convertible Bonds I,
of a principal amount of HK$64 million, to Dr. Mao.

RZEBE—NF+-_A=+—H RH=2
FIBEREHEEERARARE REAS
¥664,000,0008 L EAIRRES = —F
“HAREES  RARREREH L
17784 %8 /564,000,0005% 7T 2 Al # % (& 5

R-ZE—FHEMA=+RH X5_2FFE
EREHBEERARREREASHE
64,000,000 L5 & A MR ES ——F 1
BB ES - RAQRIBEREBIET
7K % 8 /564,000,000 78 7T 2 0] B A% (B F

— o

Continuing connected transactions (2) HEBBEXS
Since 31 August 2010, the Company has engaged Dr. Mao B ZFN\A=+—HE XQAZE
to provide advisory and consultancy services to the Group in BEEtTmASEREHEEERNRIER
relation to research and development of the Group's genetic RE MR 2R et R E A2 B H
testing products, and other scientific technologies. In this role, RERRY - pzAems - EHELAR
Dr. Mao is the Company's chief scientific adviser and currently NAIZ EEREER - & B AU E AR 75 B
receives a monthly service fee of HK$56,000. The previous 219 A56,000% 7T o BBEFLTET 2 LR
agreement with Dr. Mao commenced 1 September 2010, for a MERE_E—TFNA—BRBER  E
period of three years, and was renewed 1 September 2013 for HAE=F YHR-ZT—=FhLA—HEE
an additional period of three years, unless terminated earlier in B THBIMNER=F - EREBIHEERE
accordance with the agreement. FLRERIBRAN o
On 17 March 2014, the Company and Extrawell entered into a RZE—WEF=A++H  KNAFHEEF
conditional sale and purchase agreement where the Company BIVEBRHEEEmZ  A2aRAE
agreed to purchase 51% of the equity interest in Smart Ascent MBEEEEEEIHMRE(TKRES
from Extrawell for a consideration of HK$780 million (the 1H]) + {18 A780,000,000% 7T - # M
“Acquisition”), which will be paid with cash of HK$65 million 3% & 65,000,000 & T & KA R @l %112
and convertible bonds issued by the Company of HK$715 715,000,000/ 8 L 2 A AR &5 X 1+ » 1
million. As part of the agreement, the Group has agreed to B B9 ARBEREREEES
cover the entirety of Smart Ascent’s expenditures related to —E-RFET—tLFE—FBEED
the furthering of its oral insulin medicine up to the amount of RESEEZENEE 2 2HRE a8
HK$600 million from 2015 to 2017 (the “Coverage of Smart /$600,000,000% 7T ([ A EEERT ) o
Ascent’s expenditures”). Conditions of this agreement have ZhEZBGHEERARRIBSHA - —N
been disclosed in the Company's circular dated 26 June 2014 FRAZHRBZBEARTE MW EEAERSF
and the acquisition is conditional, among other conditions, (AR EaE) BEERARADAINR T —K
to the special general meetings held by Extrawell and the FLtATHABRTAABRIREFIRE
Company on 15 and 16 July 2014, respectively. The relevant BIEE - AR AAE i (BIERE
shareholders’ resolutions approving the entering of such sale EERAT)ZBERARRABRRER-Z—N
and purchase agreement (including the Coverage of Smart FHA+/NBEA -
Ascent’'s expenditures) were passed on 16 July 2014.
Upon the completion of the Acquisition which took place RBEEERN —E—NFLA-+NHE
on 28 July 2014, Smart Ascent is owned as to 51% by K& EEBRARRRBEDREES %
the Company and 49% by Extrawell and Extrawell thereby K49%  #E - FBEKRBADTNEEA
become a connected person of the Company, and accordingly T B AEEERTYBE T —HF+
the Coverage of Smart Ascent’'s expenditures became a AT+ N\BRKARRBINFEBEIS -
continuing connected transaction for the Company since 28
July 2014. >
/e
EMBEREYREERAT | ZE-REFER / @ A
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The following table sets forth the annual caps in relation to
the Coverage of Smart Ascent’'s expenditures for the periods
below:

For the year ended/ending 31 March

TRAMPANGAREEERAI2FE L
M

Aggregate Annual Caps

BE=A=1+—HLEE BEELR
HK$ (approximate)

BIT(5)

2015 200,000,000
2016 300,000,000
2017 100,000,000

During the Financial Year, the Group contributed
approximately HK$1 million to the SAL Group and the Group's
contributions to the SAL Group did not exceed the proposed
annual cap for the year ended 31 March 2016.

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been
reviewed by the independent non-executive directors. The
independent non-executive directors confirmed that the
continuing connected transactions were entered into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(b)  on normal commercial terms and no less favourable to
the Group than terms available from independent third
parties; and

(c) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing

them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole.

The independent non-executive directors have further
confirmed that certain related party transactions, which
constituted connected transactions under the Listing Rules
for the Financial Year, are exempted from the disclosure
requirements in accordance with rule 14A.31 of the Listing
Rules.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board
engaged the auditors’ of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2016 to perform certain agreed upon procedures
in respect of the continuing connected transactions of the
Group. The auditors’ have reported their factual findings on
these procedures to the Board that:

(a) nothing has come to the auditors’ attention that causes
the auditors to believe that the disclosed continuing
connected transactions have not been approved by the
Board;

Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited |
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(b)  nothing has come to the auditors’ attention that causes
the auditors to believe that the transactions were not,
in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Company;

(c) nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes
the auditors to believe that the transactions were not
entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing such transactions;
and

(d) the actual transaction amount in respect of the Coverage
of Smart Ascent’'s expenditures have not exceeded the
proposed annual cap for the year ended 31 March 2016.

To the best knowledge of the directors, there were no other
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
subsisting during the Financial Year.

INTERESTS IN COMPETITORS

During the Financial Year and up to the date of this report, other
than those businesses of which the directors were appointed
as directors to represent the interests of such businesses, no
director is considered to have had an interest in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the businesses of the Group, pursuant to the Listing Rules.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy for the employees of the Group is set up
by the management on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the directors for the Financial Year are decided
by the Board, having regard to the Group's operating results, their
duties and responsibilities in the Group, individual performance
and comparable market statistics, and have been reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee during the Financial Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 6 November 2009 (the “Adoption Date"”), the Company adopted
a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the
purpose of recognising and motivating the contributions of the
Group's eligible employees, non-executive directors, shareholders,
customers, and suppliers to the Group which, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
the Adoption Date. The Share Option Scheme was refreshed on
3 November 2010 to increase the maximum number of Shares
which may be issued upon the exercise of all options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme (the “Shares”) to the amount in
aggregate not exceeding 1,216,450,806 Shares being 10% of the
Shares in issue of the Company as at 3 November 2010.

EMBEREVREERAF |

—RNEER

(b) ZEMITEBBTMEEERER
BEBRRSEMBERATALTEE
FARAB ZEBHEK

(c) ZEBMIB|EREMNEEGEHHR
REBRSEMBERTEILER
BREZERFHZEBMAFTIL
K

d REBEZE=-ZE—X"F=ZA=+—8HLt
FE BEAAEEERIZ2ERR
SRV EEBRERFELR -

REEMRM  RAMBFE - $BEFHE
HBER ZRBEMER S

R F R 2 B
AHRFERBERAREBH - RIEETHRA
BREZEZIREFURREBER ZEHIN
BEEERGEANBAEEREERIMEEK
BRI REBAETE X R AR o

e
TEESRAEBEEZRE - AERENHIT
9% 2 HNBUE -

EERREEAEBIRERE BEERAEHE
ZBBERBE  REZBARAERAELETS
BERETAVRFERE2ESHH - LT hFH M
ZEENAYHFREER

ﬁ&E%J
RIZBZEAE+—-AXNBUEMNEB]) » AQF
FRINEERR AT &) ([ BBRRAERT B |) ARER R EL B AR
EBEZABERES FHRTEE BE - -BFR
HEmHAERZ BB - BIEAE MK
18] BRI BREEERER B B+ F
B o BREFSZNR - —ZF+—HA=-HEE
%'uﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁ%%%%ﬁ%%%%ﬁZ%ﬁ
%h%ﬁT%%ﬁz =& (TR 1) 888 N
EHHET tLJ2m450&mk BN —E—
TFE+— H_H$ RIEEITRHZ210% °



42

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

As at the date of this annual report, the maximum number of
Options available to be issued is 79,069,302 Shares, being
approximately 5.4% of the Shares in issue currently.

The exercise price of the share options granted under the Share
Option Scheme is determined by the Board, but shall not be
less than the highest of (i) the nominal value of the Shares; (ii)
the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; or (iii) the closing price of
the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet
on the date of the grant. No option may be granted to any individual
in any 12-month period if the total number of Shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the option granted to an individual in any
12-month period exceeds 1% of the share capital of the Company
in issue unless approval by shareholders is obtained.

As at 31 March 2016, the Company had not granted any options
to eligible persons of the Share Option Scheme and there were no
outstanding share options under the Share Option Scheme.

Apart from the aforesaid, at no time during the Financial Year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors and substantial Shareholders or any of their
associates to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing Shareholders.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme and the subscription
agreement dated 24 March 2016 for the issue of the Convertible
Bonds as disclosed in this annual report, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing Shares,
or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will
or may result in the Company issuing Shares, were entered into by
the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company's bye-laws, every director or other
officers of the Company acting in relation to any of the affairs of
the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of
the assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of
them, their or any of their heirs, executors or administrators, shall
or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in
or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty,
in their respective offices, or trusts. The Company has arranged
appropriate insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the
Group.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Financial Year, the Group did not make any charitable
donation (2015: Nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group's total purchases and
sales attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and customers
respectively during the Financial Year is as follows:

BEFZBERX

REBARBMA - RARBREMEBTEZAR
BIBEFHEMITRAR A RARNEEFRE
EREZEEN  BBRTAREEEEARRK
ENEERMBEREZBENETMIEL - &
ATERNITRAMB LTSI BRI NMA F
A BR - BR - BERAXRARRE
ERGENETESRERERTRESE - AT
ERSRKEEEZERITRABREAENRRRK

fE o

/h\%ﬁ;_‘i
RAMBEE  AEBIEELTAESER
—E—RHEF |

—

ITREFRHEER
AYBEE  AEEEEREERES S B
AEERBBEREEAEZANMT

Percentage of
the Group’s total

EhEAEEAE
Bkt
Purchases ®EE
— The largest supplier —HAHEER 100%
— Five largest suppliers combined —RAAHERER 100%
Sales HE
— The largest customer —HARP 69%
— Five largest customers combined —RAREFA&R 100%

At no time during the Financial Year had any of the directors, their
close associates or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of
the directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) an interest in any of the Group's five largest suppliers or
customers.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group understands that employees are valuable assets. The
Group provides competitive remuneration package to attract
and motivate the employees. The Group regularly reviews the
remuneration package of employees and makes necessary
adjustments to conform to the market standard.

The Group's business is built on a customer-oriented culture.
The Group also understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with its suppliers and customers to fulfil its immediate
and long-term goals. To maintain its market competitiveness within
the industry, the Group aims at delivering constantly high standards
and high quality products to its customers. During the year under
review, there was no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its suppliers and/or customers.

ENVIRONMENTAL,
GOVERNANCE
Environmental Protection
Environmental conservation remains a key focus for the Group.

SOCIAL AND

The conscientious use of resources and adoption of best
practices across the Group's businesses underlie its commitment
to safeguarding the environment. The Group encourages
environmental protection and comply with environmental legislation
and promote awareness towards environmental protection to the
employees.

The Group puts great emphasis in environmental protection and
sustainable development. Through the establishment of an ever-
improving management system, enhancement on procedure
monitoring, energy conversation and environment protection
were strongly promoted, leading to the remarkable achievement
of environmental management. Several measures have been
implemented by the Group in order to promote environmental
protection.

Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited |
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to
applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular, those have
significant impact on the Group. The audit committee of the
Company is delegated by the Board to monitor the Group's
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.
Any changes in the applicable laws, rules and regulations are
brought to the attention of relevant employees and relevant
operation units from time to time.
As far as the Company is aware, it has complied in material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the business and operation of the Company.

Workplace Quality

The Group is an equal opportunity employer and does not
discriminate on the basis of personal characteristics. The Group
establishes and implements policies that promote a harmony and
respectful workplace.

The Group believes that employees are the valuable assets of
an enterprise and regards human resources as its corporate
wealth. The Group provides on-the-job training and development
opportunities to enhance its employees’ career progression.
Through different training, staff's professional knowledge in
corporate operations, occupational and management skills are
enhanced.

Health and Safety

The Group prides itself on providing a safe, effective and congenial
work environment. Adequate arrangements, training and guidelines
are implemented to ensure the working environment is healthy and
safe. The Group provides health and safety communications for
employees to present the relevant information and raise awareness
of occupational health and safety issues.

The Group values the health and well-being of staff. In order to

provide employees with health coverage, staff are entitled to
medical insurance benefits.

EMBEREVREERAF |

—RNEER

BFERRER

EFESRERSF  UWRERAKEET(LEZ)Y
HELAEAFEZZFERER RAER -
ARRBRZECREES T REREMAALE
BTEARREEREZER - 1HEER RERK

BEMSTREMBERLRE RAUMERZE
fay
BEARFNM EERERSTAETHARARZ

EBREEBERTEZRMERIESR

TIEIRIBEE X
$Elﬁﬁakf$$%ﬁ’$@&ﬁﬁﬂﬁ

c AEHGIEREBEENMEREEESE 2T
ﬁﬁ%Zﬁﬁo

AEERR/REDNEECEEEE  URANE
RAELENE - REBEMH Eﬂ%ﬁ?ﬂ\&%}?&%
SR HEES CBEER - BETREI

THREREREEZEXMM H&%&Eﬂ%&

ap
Be °

RERZZ

AEERH—(ELE AUREFEI TERE -

EERBERYE - B RIS AR TIFRERE R
kZzz - AEELREERM‘ERRZ 2B - N

RAERERYRAYBERFERLETELZE

o

e

AEBERB T 2@ENEL - BT HEBREMH
RERE  REZEBRRREF -



46

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

Training and Development

The Group is committed to the professional and personal
development and growth of all employees and considers training
and development a continual process. In-house training is provided
to help employees develop and maintain consistency, proficiency
and professionalism.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors as at the date of this
report, the directors believe that the number of securities of the
Company which are in the hands of the public is above the relevant
prescribed minimum percentage under the Listing Rules.

COMMITMENTS

Details of commitments of the Group are set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

LITIGATIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the litigation and contingent liabilities are set out in note
32 to the consolidated financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant event occurring after the reporting period are
set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Corporate Governance Report of the Company are set
out on pages 19 to 29 of this report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the five years ended 31 March 2016 is set out on page
180 of this report.

Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited |
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AUDITORS
The auditor of the Company was previously Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu for the years ended 30 June 2013, 31 March 2014, and
31 March 2015.

On 22 March 2016, the Board resolved to appoint East Asia Sentinel
Limited as the new auditors of the Group with effect from 22
March 2016 following the resignation of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
as the Company and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu could not reach a
consensus on the fee level proposed by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
for the year ending 31 March 2016. East Asia Sentinel Limited shall
hold office as the auditors of the Group until the conclusion of the
next annual general meeting of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year
have been audited by East Asia Sentinel Limited, who will retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment in the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Jiang Nian
Chairman

Shanghai, 29 June 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
BY AR E

TO THE MEMBERS OF

INNOVATIVE PHARMACEUTICAL BIOTECH LIMITED

(Formerly known as UNITED GENE HIGH-TECH GROUP LIMITED)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands and registered in Bermuda with
limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited (formerly known as
United Gene High-Tech Group Limited) (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 51 to 179, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2016, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited |

East Asia Sentinel Limited

WG EBHERAE

Certified Public Acconntants

22/F, Tai Yau Building
181 Johnston Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel :+852 2521 2328

Fax : +852 2525 9890

Email : letters@EastAsiaSentinel.com
www.FastAsiaSentinel.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
BY %A E

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2016,
and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BY AR E

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

As explained in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements,
the major asset held by the Group is the intangible assets in relation
to an in-process research and development project (the “In-process
R&D") involving an oral insulin product (the “Product”) with the
carrying amount of HK$1,373,224,000 as at 31 March 2016. This
carrying amount is highly dependent upon further research and
development work required to be carried out, results of the clinical
trials, successful launching of the Product and key assumptions
to be applied in preparing cash flow projection from the Product.
Should the outcome of the clinical trials and the launching of
the Product be unsuccessful, or the key assumptions applied in
preparing the cash flow projection from the Product turn out to be
unrealised, material adjustments may be required and consequently
have an adverse effect on the net assets and the results of the
Group.

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2015 were audited by another auditor who
expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements on 30 June
2015 with an emphasis of matter paragraph in relation to the
uncertainty of the successful launching of the Product which may
materially affect the carrying amount of the In-process R&D held by
the Group.

East Asia Sentinel Limited

Yim Wing Yee
Director

Practising Certificate No. P05906

Hong Kong
29 June 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HEBEmkEMEEKSER

—NEZA=T—HLLEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 2 -

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLEE

2016 2015
—NE —T—RHEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
MaE TAERT FET
Revenue g 7 19,908 33,976
Cost of sales and services SHE RARFE R A (19,319) (33,058)
Gross profit EF 589 918
Other income HiaA 8 13,112 4,138
Other gains and losses, net Hib Wz K EBF 5B 8 (146,263) (365,578)
Selling expenses HERMY (248) =
Administrative expenses THRX (30,011) (27,890)
Research and development expenses MEFEX (1,347) (5,304)
Other expenses Hx (5,162) (10,556)
Share of results of associates DB DR EE 7,945 295
Finance costs MIZER 9 (79,562) (52,937)
Loss before tax AT E e (240,947) (456,914)
Income tax expense FeRiAE 10 = -
Loss for the year FAEE (240,947) (456,914)
Other comprehensive (expense)/income: HE2mEm(Fx), s
Items that may be reclassified E/Q—Jﬁ ENNEERERZ
subsequently to profit or loss: HE :
Fair value changes of available-for-sale —H#\ﬁ”i MEEZ
financial assets RNFEEB (475) 231
Reclassification adjustments upon HEAHIESHEER
disposal EREN D AR
of available-for-sale financial assets - (1,269)
Exchange differences on translation of BRERINETEZ
foreign operation [EREHE (702) (10)
(1,177) (1,048)
Items that will not be reclassified HEBTreEmaBEBEY
subsequently to profit or loss: HE :
Gain on revaluation on land and buildings T REFEHWE 1,082 948
Deferred taxation arising on revaluation THIREFEREEZ
of land and buildings EIEFIA (271) (237)
811 711 g
//‘
%
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meBEaRkEMaEElER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &HZ —Z—

NEZA=+—RHIFE

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLEE

2016 2015
—E-RF —T-AEF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
MaE FTExT FHET
Other comprehensive expense FAHMEEMAY
for the year (366) (837)
Total comprehensive expense for the year HFREEFS A (241,313) (457,251)
Loss for the year attributable to: I TATEIEFAEE :
Owners of the Company ZN/NEIEZEWN (236,865) (451,684)
Non-controlling interests IR R (4,082) (5,230)
(240,947) (456,914)
Total comprehensive expense for LTATEEFAZA
the year attributable to: 4258
Owners of the Company KRBHEBA (237,231) (452,021)
Non-controlling interests R (4,082) (5,230)
(241,313) (457,251)
HK cents HK cents
Al AL
Loss per share TEE 15
Basic HAK (16.85) (35.77)
Diluted e (16.85) (35.77)

Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI R

As at 31 March 2016 R=—Z—FE=HA=+—H

2016 2015
—EB-RE —h%F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B FExT FAT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BB R&E 16 35,833 36,346
Interests in associates REEE QAR 17 128,103 143,634
Investments in convertible bonds RARRESOIRE 18 259,555 257,368
Intangible assets EmEEE 19 1,373,224 1,373,224
Available-for-sale financial assets At EEmEE 22 6,921 6,887
Loan to a non-controlling interest IR 2 B R 26 4,646 3,657
Amount due from the subsidiary of an FE U B A R) 2 B B A &)
associate IR 26 16,192 10,378
1,824,474 1,831,394
Current assets mBNEE
Trade receivables B 2R 20 - 9,992
Prepayments, deposits and TERIE -« ke REA
other receivables JFE W IR 21 153,259 7,975
Bank balances and cash IRITEHBR KRS 23 32,459 191,191
185,718 209,158
Current liabilities nEEE
Trade payables Z FENERR 24 8 7,099
Funds received in advance AW E & 25 50,000 -
Accruals and other payables FERT B A R H A EA FRIE 5,291 9,217
Amounts due to non-controlling interests &N 3EIE Iz 5K 18 27 22,871 22,871
Amounts due to former non-controlling FEAT B FEIE A A s SR 1E
interests 27 823 823
Amount due to the subsidiary of FEfTEEE AR 2 B A E)
an associate IR 27 41,947 41,947
120,940 81,957
Net current assets MENVE EFRE 64,778 127,201
,
/@
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI R

As at 31 March 2016 R=—ZE—E=HA=+—H

2016 2015

—E-RF —EhHF

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

Mt FExT FAT

Total assets less current liabilities BEERTBAE 1,889,252 1,958,595
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE

Convertible bonds AR ES 29 403,146 351,400

Deferred tax liabilities FERIEAE 28 2,444 2,174

Loan from a non-controlling interest KA FIERERER 27 4,646 3,657

410,236 357,131

NET ASSETS EERE 1,479,016 1,601,464
Capital and reserves B K fEE

Share capital [N 30 14,642 13,042

Reserves {5t 584,870 704,836

Equity attributable to owners of RARHEEB ANEILER

the Company 599,512 717,878

Non-controlling interests FEPERR R 879,504 883,586

TOTAL EQUITY AR 1,479,016 1,601,464

The consolidated financial statements on pages 51 to 179 were
approved by the Board of directors on 29 June 2016 and are signed

on its behalf by:

Jiang Nian
EF
DIRECTOR
EF

Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited
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Tang Rong

B
DIRECTOR

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEREER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=+—HILEE

Convertible Foreign
Share bonds  Investment  Property currency Non-
Share  premium equity revaluation  revaluation Others ~ Statutory ~translation Accumulated controlling Total
capital  account  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
TER
, EHEn  REEG MEER btk . . ) 5
B BHEEE i i B EbRE  ERER B ZiEE G 4ERER  ERAE
HK$000 HKS000  HKS'000 HK$000 HK$000  HKSO00  HKS000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000 HK$000
TRt e TRr  TEn TR TEn  Thr  TEn  Thr TEr TEr TEn
Note a) Note b)

At 1 April 2014 R-2-BEMA-A 11362 01488 74755 1M 4412 4140 37 2726 (1,010,7700 662,372 9849 61

Loss for the year ERER = = = = = - - - (451684) (451,684 (5,230 (456,914)

Other comprehensive (expensel income A2 T (E )N

for the year - - - (1,038) i - - (10) = (337) = (337)

Total comprehensive (expense) income  ER2 A (F% ) fa%EE

for the year = = = (1,038) m - = (10) (451,684  (452,021) (5,230 (457,251)
Acouisition of subsidiaries ‘ - - 136646 - - - - - - 136646 978689 1,115,335
Reclassification from interests in

associates note 18(c)) & = = = = > = = - - 92 99722
Recognition of equity component of P k(e

convertible bonds - - 330 - - - - - - 363,03 - 330
Issue of shares upon conversion of hkEAEAELARN

convertible bonds 1680 111,558 (105,391 = = = - - - 1847 - 1847

At 31 March 2015 R-3-15=f=1-A 13042 1013046 1,141,845 73 5123 4140 347 L6 (1462454 717878 883586 1,601,464

Loss for the year ERER = - - = = = = - (236865 (236,860) (4,082 (240947)

Other comprehensive [expense) income  ERENAT ()i

for the year - = = (475) 811 - - (702 = (366) = (366)

Total comprehensive (expense) income ~ ERZE(FR) s

for the year = = = (475) 811 - = (702 (236,865 (237,081 (4082 41313
Recognition of equity componentof B ARES 2 EE DS

convertible bonds - - 10931 - - - - - - 10930 - 10931
Issue of shares upon conversion of TRREHEEERARA

convertible bonds 1600 106,248 98,354) - - - - - - 9,494 - 9,494

At 31 March 2016 H-3-7F=R=1-A 14642 1119294 1,152,862 (402) 5934 4,140 347 2014 (169319 599512 879504 1479016

Notes: Btat -

(a)  As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC before  (a) 1ZBHEMMEBEEZRKERMAETH  BFHIK
distribution of the net profit each year, the Group's subsidiaries FRER  EPBRRIOAEENBATER
established in the PRC shall set aside 10% of its net profit after ERMBEMANNBLI0%ZEZERHE - AERHEE
taxation to the statutory reserve. The reserve can only be used, BRI RAREHERTEENEE - WAESILSE
upon approval by the board of directors of these PRC established EFERIcHBRARICESFERABBNE
subsidiaries and by the relevant authority, to offset accumulated BEZEEFAER RBEE_Z-—RFE=FE
losses or increase capital. During the years ended 31 March 2016 and —RAF=A=+—ALFE aRAEBEZF
2015, there were no transfer from retained profits to the statutory BB ARG ERFE  RUSEEAeE
reserve since the Group’'s PRC subsidiaries incurred net loss in those RRBENEBEETRHE -
year ends.

(b)  Remittance outside the PRC of retained profits of the subsidiaries (b)) ~ RFRBIK I Z B Q72 RE & 2 RINR K
established in the PRC is subject to approval of the local authorities AREMBUNIERBTHERNBAREETE
and the availability of foreign currencies generated and retained by E RIRE 2 INE R BE 1 o
these subsidiaries.

/&
EMBEREYREERAT | ZE-REFER AR :
o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AERERER

As at 31 March 2016 R=—ZE—E=HA=+—H

2016 2015
—NE —E-hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTExT FHT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REER
Loss before tax TRATE R (240,947) (456,914)
Adjustments for: FEEES
Depreciation of property, plant and #@% WE REBITE
equipment 1,164 1,286
Gain on disposal of property, plant and TEME  BELEEZ
equipment Wiz (11) (1,329)
Impairment loss on interest in an associate  RE& N Tz 2 AR E 23,476 29,218
Impairment loss on other receivable Hh FEGRIE 2 BB EE 1,852 -
Loss on initial recognition of investments HAWETRBRESREZ
in convertible bonds acquired during VR RERER
the period 62,161 277,821
Change in fair value of derivative components 3R (EHFIEE ZHTER D 2
of investments in convertible bonds NEEES) 58,509 60,953
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries ﬁ%ﬁﬁ% INCIAL 6 (10) -
Share of results of associates DIEHE N R EE (7,945) (295)
Imputed interest income on loan to FEEREREERZHEF L
a non-controlling interest A (1,088) (580)
Imputed interest income on loan to BMENRZHBRBIER 2
a subsidiary of the associate R B A (5,814) -
Dividend income from available-for-sale AR ESREE ZRBBA
financial assets (163) =
Interest income from banks RITHEHA (163) (400)
Interest income of available-for-sale AHEESREEZFE
financial assets WA (97) (36)
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of HENHBESHEEZ
available-for-sale financial assets 18,/ (ke ) 558 286 (1,269)
Effective interest income on investments ARBREFREERTE
in convertible bonds LN (5,696) (3,053)
Interest expenses paid to a convertible EAHMRESFHEANE
bond holder X 25,025 -
Effective interest expense on MRESEERER AL
convertible bonds 53,449 52,357
Imputed interest expense on loan from RS ER I HER A
a non-controlling interest Fs 1,088 580
Operating cash flows before changes EEREABHR 2 LER S
in working capital TE (34,924) (41,661)
Decrease in inventories FERD - 61
Decrease in trade receivables B 5 e B R > 9,992 1,419
(Increase)/decrease in prepayment, B RIE - R REMEKRIE
deposits and other receivables (Ehn) R (147,136) 6,714
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables ZHRENERCHLD),/ 18N (7,091) 2,282
Increase in funds received in advance TBUE S 1N 50,000 -
Decrease in accruals and other payables FETE A N E A FE S 708 K2
and receipt in advance from customer TE Uk = R IE R (3,926) (4,386)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES fS& 85 B> B4 58 (133,085) (35,571)

Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited | Annual Report 2016



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AERERER

As at 31 March 2016 R=ZE—"FE=A=+—H
2016 2015
—RE —E—AF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Wiz FTHx FHTT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Dividend received from available-for-sale AR EEREEEEZ
financial assets B E 163 =
Interest received from available-for-sale AR ESREEESA Y
financial assets B UF 8 97 36
Interest received from banks EHERTTHE 163 400
Purchases of property, plant and equipment  BEEWE - %E K& #E (300)
Purchases of available-for-sale financial BEAHEESMERE
assets (5,198) (7,220)
Addition of interest in an associate B2 N a2 IMERS - (2,539)
Net cash outflow from acquisition of WHENBRAREELZ
subsidiaries WERLFE - (64,647)
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEVE  WEEREZ
plant and equipment FTiSsI8 76 1,646
Proceeds on disposal of available-for-sale HEIRTEEHEEY
financial assets Fri5 5008
4,402 106,458
Net cash inflow upon disposal of HEWBARZ
subsidiaries REMAFE 31 10 -
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM REEE(FTA), /B8
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RE (587) 34,134
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Interest expenses paid to a convertible bond B I A[# & ESFE AN B
holder (25,025) =
Advance from the subsidiary of an associate R EEL AR ZWEBATZ B - 6
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM  ®EZE(FTA) FrEHE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REE (25,025) 6
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERBESEEYRDFE
EQUIVALENTS (158,697) (1,431)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FNRERESEEY
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 191,191 192,351
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE NEERSHIE
CHANGES (35) 271
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FERESRESEEY
AT THE END OF THE YEAR, BIRTHEBEIRE
represented by bank balances and cash 32,459 191,191
1/‘,.
ENBERENNEERAT | —AEEH /&~ 57
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited (“the Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands. On 1 March 2013, the Company has been
deregistered in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda
as an exempted company with limited liability under the laws
of Bermuda. The Company’'s shares are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. The address of its registered
office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda. The principal place of business in Hong Kong is
situated at Unit No. 2111, 21/F, West Tower Shun Tak Centre,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong dollar
("HK$"), which is the same as the presentation currency of
the consolidated financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"), which collective term
includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the "HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the applicable disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange. These consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of leasehold
property, intangible assets, available-for-sale financial assets
and investments in convertible bonds, which are measured
at fair value as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=1+—HILEE
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EEAMBRRDBEBEELR LB -
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GENERAL INFORMATION (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment”, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
“Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of
assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purpose, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

EMBEREVRRERAE | ZB-AFFER
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=+—HILEE
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GENERAL INFORMATION (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(a) New and amended standards adopted by
the Group
The Group has adopted the following amendments to
standards for the first time for the Group’s financial year
beginning on or after 1 April 2015:

Amendment to HKAS 19 on contributions from
employees or third parties to defined benefit plans. The
amendment distinguishes between contributions that
are linked to service only in the period in which they
arise and those linked to service in more than one period.
The amendment allows contributions that are linked to
service, and do not vary with the length of employee
service, to be deducted from the cost of benefits earned
in the period that the service is provided. Contributions
that are linked to service, and vary according to the
length of employee service, must be spread over the
service period using the same attribution method that is
applied to the benefits.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=1+—HILEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HmRE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=+—HILEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. HEAHIRKLBITIZERME

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING &

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by (a)
the Group (Continued)
Amendments from annual improvements to
HKFRSs-2010-2012 Cycle, on HKFRS 8 “Operating
segments”, HKAS 16 “Property, plant and equipment”,
HKAS 38 “Intangible assets” and HKAS 24 “Related
party disclosures”.

Amendments from annual improvements to
HKFRSs-2011-2013 Cycle, on HKFRS 3, “Business
combination”, HKFRS 13, “Fair value measurement” and
HKAS 40, “Investment property”.

The adoption of the improvements made in the
2010-2012 Cycle has required additional disclosures in
the segment note. Other than that, the application of
these amendments to HKFRS in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group's financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Other standards, amendments and interpretations which

are effective for the financial year beginning on 1 January
2015 are not material to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=1+—HILEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted
The following new standards and amendments to
standards and interpretations have been issued and are
effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016, and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements. These include
the following new standards which may be relevant to

the Group.
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
Amendments to HKAS 1 1 January 2016

"Disclosure Initiative”

Amendment to HKAS 16 and HKAS 1 January 2016
38 “Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation”

Amendments to a number of 1 January 2016

HKFRSs “Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle”

Amendments to HKAS 27 1 January 2016
"Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements”

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from 1 January 2018
contracts with customers”

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” 1 January 2018

HKFRS 16 “Leases” 1 January 2019

Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HmRE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &

2T

NEZA=+—RHIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. HAHIRKZLEBI2EBTE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HER(#)
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)
(b) New standards and interpretations not yet (b) MAREKMzHFTERNRRE
adopted (Continued) (#)
Amendments to HKAS 1 “Disclosure Initiative” BEEETEREIY (IETKR)HE
=2/
The amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial BEEGSHENE 1R UBEIA) M1
Statements” give some guidance on how to apply the WERZE2V NN ERERAEEN
concept of materiality in practice. Bt —Liss| o
The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual BERGHEE1R(BITRN)RZE
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The —A~"F-A—BUAERBRCFE
directors of the Company do not anticipate that the HEAR - A QR ESTEH - EA
application of these amendments to HKAS 1 will have BEREGHEE1FR(BITRN)TEE
a material impact on the amounts recognised in the RARRAPBMERZEBASRESE
Company'’s financial statements. BEATE o
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 “Clarification BB EAEIEREESE
of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and BIE38% [ITEREBHZ S5 %
Amortisation” ZEE MEET
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify the EAGHERE16HR REEGRTE
principle in HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 that revenue reflects BIZE3BIRAE AT B E B B G 5T 28
a pattern of economic benefits that are generated FI16RMB B G ERFEISHEM R
from operating a business (of which the asset is part) Al - B E RR B EE —IRET
rather than the economic benefits that are consumed (BERZEEMEKE—D)MESE
through the use of the asset. As a result, a revenue- M EMN=ES - MIEBBERE
based method cannot be used to depreciate property, MEEMBERAMNLENZ - it -
plant and equipment and may only be used in very N BB RN ETA BEY
limited circumstances to amortise intangible assets. ¥ BEASBZINE  BEAE
The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The BAERMBEATHERLEE -
amendments are not expected to have any impact ZEEBIBRBRER - ARASE
on the financial position or performance of the Group EWIEFANR S BERN G AR
upon adoption on 1 April 2016 as the Group has not BHIERDEENE H HHZEE
used a revenue-based method for the calculation of AR T EHARER_-_Z—REN
depreciation of its non-current assets. A—BEME 2B BIRAKTIAE
A FZE o
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle BB EER —FE——FF=
TN ERZ FENRE
The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle BAVBRELN T ——FE=
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, T-NFRR FERERFEHD
which are summarised below. Iaéiﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁ%i&ﬁﬂz%Iﬁiﬂ%?}"’/
Bz o ./"/&
ARBREREMNEARAT | —F-AFER &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &

2T

NEZA=+—RHIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet

adopted (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
(Continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 5 introduce specific
guidance in HKFRS 5 for when an entity reclassifies an
asset (or a disposal group) from held for sale to held for
distribution to owners (or vice versa). The amendments
clarify that such a change should be considered as a
continuation of the original plan of disposal and hence
requirements set out in HKFRS 5 regarding the change of
sale plan do not apply.

The amendments also clarify the guidance for when
held-for-distribution accounting is discontinued.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 provide additional
guidance to clarify whether a servicing contract is
continuing involvement in a transferred asset for the
purpose of the disclosures required in relation to
transferred assets.

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the rate used
to discount post-employment benefit obligations should
be determined by reference to market yields at the
end of the reporting period on high quality corporate
bonds. The assessment of the depth of a market for
high quality corporate bonds should be at the currency
level (i.e. the same currency as the benefits are to be
paid). For currencies for which there is no deep market
in such high quality corporate bonds, the market yields
at the end of the reporting period on government bonds
denominated in that currency should be used instead.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments will have a material
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet

adopted (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 27 “Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements”

The amendments allow an entity to apply the equity
method in accounting for its investments in subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates in its separate financial
statements.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting
for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue
recognition guidance including HKAS 18 “Revenue”,
HKAS 11
Interpretations when it becomes effective.

“Construction Contracts” and the related

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach
to revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the

contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

EMBEREVREERAF |

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ —ZT— NF=A=+—HILFE

2. RAFATRKETZERYE

X8 (2)
(b) MiARFEMHFTERRZRE
(&)
B BB AL 275 [HRIH KRS
SR HEET A

—RNEER

ZFEFI AT E B EE R 7% R

RMEMBLE  ALECERBE
NAIEVIRE AR EAERA -

BBMBRE
Wiz |
BREMEMEERNE 155 HIEE —
2EEN  HEEBREHSETFSE
WTEERNIKRE AR - BRI R
FEAFEIBRERK - HRAEE
GRHERFE 18R [Wa | - BEGR
ERF R [REAN I RAERE
SHRITHIREERIES| -

ERE155 [ EHEF

BEEMBREEAE15HAZO
RAAEBAERRBLAEFE
BEFEMIREIERN RS S
B OERERMZEEESARR %ﬁa

o=

EERIRBERESHRE

BmE - ZEASIA ﬁEmH&ZﬁﬁE’\Jﬁ

1.*/5%1

e FE—F HBAHERFIIVMNE
#)

e FE-F  BAAHTHNENE
£

o FEZH ETRHE

e FMNY  BRXIEBHREEH
FHEBNET

e FRY . WN(HNE)EBRZKE
HE TR ER RS

<4
Y

r



66

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &

2T

NEZA=+—RHIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet

adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
(Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
‘control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been
added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15. The directors are in process of assessing
the impact on the application of HKFRS 15. However,
it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of
the effect of HKFRS 15 until the Company performs a
detailed review.

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial
assets. HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in
2010 to include requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and in 2013 to include the new
requirements for general hedge accounting. Another
revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly
to include a) impairment requirements for financial
assets and b) limited amendments to the classification
and measurement requirements by introducing a
“fair value through other comprehensive income”
(FVTOCI) measurement category for certain simple debt
instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HmRE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=+—HILEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. HEAHIRKLBITIZERME
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HER ()

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet (b)
adopted (Continued)
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9:

- all recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” are required to
be subsequently measured at amortised cost or
fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is
to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt
instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets,
and that have contractual terms that give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at
FVTOCI. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair value at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ —ZT— NF=A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Continued)
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

- with regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through profit
or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability
that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of
that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects
of changes in the liability's credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss.

- changes in fair value attributable to a financial
liability's credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the
entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as fair value through
profit or loss is presented in profit or loss.

- in relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model,
as opposed to an incurred credit loss model under
HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires
an entity to account for expected credit losses and
changes in those expected credit losses at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HmRE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=+—HILEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. HEAHIRKLBITIZERME
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HER ()

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet (b)
adopted (Continued)
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

- the new general hedge accounting requirements
retain the three types of hedge accounting
mechanisms currently available in HKAS 39. Under
HKFRS 9, greater flexibility has been introduced
to the types of transactions eligible for hedge
accounting, specifically broadening the types of
instruments that qualify for hedging instruments
and the types of risk components of non-financial
items that are eligible for hedge accounting.
In addition, the retrospective quantitative
effectiveness test has been removed. Enhanced
disclosure requirements about an entity's risk
management activities have also been introduced.

The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 April 2018.
The Group is currently assessing the potential impact
of application of HKFRS 9 and considers that it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
the adoption of HKFRS 9 until the Group performs a detailed

review.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=1+—HILEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Continued)
HKFRS 16 “Leases”
HKFRS 16 supersedes HKAS 17 “Leases”, HK(IFRIC)-
Int 4 “Determining whether an Arrangement contain a
Lease”, HK(SIC)-Int 15 “Operating Lease — Incentives”
and HK(SIC)-Int 27 "Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease”.
HKFRS 16 eliminates the classification by a lessee
of leases as either operating or finance. Instead all
leases are treated in a similar way to finance leases
in accordance with HKAS 17 “Leases”.Under HKFRS
16, leases are recorded on the statement of financial
position by recognising a liability for the present value
of its obligation to make future lease payments with an
asset (comprised of the amount of lease liability plus
certain other amounts) either being disclosed separately
in the statement of financial position (within right-of-use
assets) or together with property, plant and equipment.
The most significant effect of the new requirements will
be an increase in recognised lease assets and financial
liabilities. There are some exemptions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HmRE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=+—HILEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet

adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

HKFRS 16 contains options which do not require a lessee
to recognise assets and liabilities for (a) short term leases
(i.e. lease of 12 months or less, including the effect of
any extension options) and (b) leases of low value assets
(for example, a lease of a personal computer). HKFRS
16 substantially carries forward the lessor's accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor continues
to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases,
and to account for those two types of leases differently. In
classifying a sub-lease, an intermediate lessor shall classify
the sub-lease as a finance lease or an operating lease as
follows: (a) if the head lease is a short-term lease that the
entity, as a lessee, the sub-lease shall be reclassified as
an operating lease; (b) otherwise, the sub-lease shall be
classified by reference to the right-of-use asset arising from
the head lease, rather than by reference to the underlying
asset. HKFRS 16 clarifies that a lessee separates lease
components and service components of a contract, and
applies the lease accounting requirements only to the lease
components. The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of the potential impact of application of HKFRS
16, the directors consider that it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of the effect of the adoption of
HKFRS 16 until the Group performs a detailed review.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of other new and revised HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ —ZT— NF=A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation

of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years

presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the

financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries

and associates made up to 31 March.

(i)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method of
accounting to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred. ldentifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
in a business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date. On
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net
assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=+—HILEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(a) Consolidation (Continued)

(i)

Subsidiaries (Continued)
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date
through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the
fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity.

Inter-company transactions, balances, and
unrealised gains or losses on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Profits and
losses resulting from inter-company transactions
that are recognised in assets are also eliminated.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position
disclosed in the note to these consolidated
financial statements, the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=1+—HILEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(a) Consolidation (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee's
net assets including goodwill.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that
do not result in loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions — that is, as transactions
with the owners in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying
value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded
in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control or
significant influence, any retained interest in the
entity is remeasured to its fair value, with the
change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=+—HILEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (continued)

ERSBERBE )

(b) Associates (b) EEERQT
Associates are entities over which the Group has BE AR EAREHEEE AR
significant influence but not control, generally ZEHMEEHENER BN
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% F20% E50% K EERIRE - 1 —
of the voting rights. Investments in an associate are Mt E AR 2R EAEREE
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements FFAGZEMBEmE - REBEERZE
by the equity method of accounting. Under the equity REXAKARER - mAREER
method, the investment is initially recognised at cost, ENSR D A ERIZE ERIE B
and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to HEeERnRERRMEzER - A%
recognise the investor's share of the profit or loss of EREE AT s Em B ERERD
the investee after the date of acquisition. The Group's BAEE -
interests in associates include goodwill identified on
acquisition.
If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but MR —HEBE QR 2B AR
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate L BNREBEREEN  TEE
share of the amounts previously recognised in other BARAT  REAFEEMEEKE
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss FHRERNSENLL O NBERET S
where appropriate. HERR -
The Group's share of an associate’'s post-acquisition REFEG—HEBE R RKREEN
profits or losses is recognised in the consolidated BENGEEREMEE KRR
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive NHESR - T 15 U S 12 B fth 2 T Uk
income, and its share of the post-acquisition movements HHEHANEMEE K ST E
in other comprehensive income is recognised in R EHMARKRE ZREE - W
other comprehensive income with a corresponding REFEEGE—HBBERACEES
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. R EBBEEZBERR s
When the Group's share of losses in an associate BEEMEMARERERIE - R
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including FEAREBE D RZEE RRIREERE
any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not LR EENEASERNR - AE
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or ErgwRE—FEiE -
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.
The Group determines at each reporting date whether rEERBEREANEERSE
there is any objective evidence that the investment in XEBBEERARBERAICKRED
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group WE - NREERE  AEEFE
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference BMENSE IS AR ATRESE
between the recoverable amount of the associate and HHREENEZE  TREEER
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent K CHth 2 U s R NIRRT RR
to “share of results of associates” in the consolidated [P hEE RRIEE]E -
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. _//
V4 é
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ —ZT— NF=A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Associates (Continued)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognised in the Group's financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor's
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Gains and losses on dilution of equity interests in
associates are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the operating committee (comprising
the CEO and the CEO office) that makes strategic
decisions.

Foreign currency translation
(i)  Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the consolidated financial
statements of each of the Group's entities are
measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional and

presentation currency.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=+—HILEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(d) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as
available for sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the
amortised cost of the security and other changes
in the carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences related to changes in amortised cost
are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes
in carrying amount are recognised in equity.

Group entities

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

- assets and liabilities for each reporting period

presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that reporting period;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ —ZT— NF=A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(d) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Group entities (Continued)

- income and expenses for each consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income presented are
translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case

income and expenses are translated at the

dates of the transactions); and

- all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of
equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a
joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over
an associate that includes a foreign operation), all
of the currency translation differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable
to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=+—HILEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (continued)
(e) Property, plant and equipment

ERSBERBE )

(e) W% BEKRME

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income during the period in which they
are incurred.

Leasehold land and buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at their revalued
amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation
less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations
are performed with sufficient regularity such that the
carrying amount does not differ materially from that
which would be determined using fair values at the end
of the reporting period.

Any revaluation increase arising from revaluation of
leasehold land and buildings is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in property
revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses
a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recognised in profit or loss, in which case the increase
is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease
previously charged. A decrease in carrying amount
arising on revaluation of an asset is recognised in profit
or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if
any, on the property revaluation reserve relating to a
previous revaluation of that asset. On the subsequent
sale or retirement of a revalued asset, the attributable
revaluation surplus remaining in the property revaluation
reserve is transferred directly to accumulated losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=1+—HILEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(e) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(f)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost or
revalued amounts less their residual values over the
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis at the
following rates per annum.

Leasehold land and The shorter of the lease

buildings terms and 30 years
Plant and machinery 3 -10 years
Motor vehicles 3 -8 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within other income and gains in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HmRE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=+—HILEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

()

(9)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired separately (Continued)
Intangible assets, which comprise the in-process
research and development (“Inprocess R&D") which
represents an in-process research and development
project involving an oral insulin product (the “Product”).
The Inprocess R&D is not amortised as it is not yet
available for use.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (“CGU") to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual CGUs, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=1+—HILEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(g) Impairment losses on tangible and intangible

assets other than goodwill (Continued)
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
as an expense immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
other standard, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease under that standard.

When allocating an impairment loss to individual assets
within a CGU, the carrying amount of an individual asset
should not be reduced below the highest of its fair value
less cost of disposal (if measurable), its value in use
(if determinable), and zero. If this results in an amount
being allocated to an asset which is less than its pro rata
share of the impairment loss, the excess is allocated to
the remaining assets within the CGU on a pro rata basis.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase
under that standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=+—HILEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

(i)  Financial assets
Financial assets are classified into the following
categories: financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL"), available-for-sale financial
assets ("AFS"),
classification depends on the nature and purpose

and loans and receivables. The

of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ —ZT— NF=A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt financial
asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments other than those
financial assets classified as at FVTPL, of which
interest income is included in net gains or losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when
the financial asset is either held for trading or it is
designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

- it has been acquired principally for the

purpose of selling in the near term; or

- on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of

identified financial instruments that the Group

manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

- it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=+—HILEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)
(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial assets and
is included in the ‘other gains and losses, net’
line item. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in note 6.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host
contracts are treated as separate derivatives when
they meet the definition of a derivative, their risks
and characteristics are not closely related to those
of the host contracts and the host contracts are not
measured at FVTPL.

Investments in convertible bonds

The component parts of the convertible
instruments are classified separately as debt
component and conversion option derivative.

At the date of acquisition of investments in
convertible bonds, the fair value of the debt and
derivative components are recognised at fair value.
In subsequent periods, the debt component of the
convertible instruments is carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. The
conversion option derivative is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=1+—HILEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)
(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Investments in convertible bonds (Continued)
Transaction costs that relate to the acquisition of
the convertible investments are allocated to the
debt and derivative components in proportion to
their relative fair values. Transaction costs relating
to the derivative components are charged to profit
or loss immediately. Transaction costs relating to
the debt component are included in the carrying
amount of the debt portion and amortised over the
period of the convertible instruments using the
effective interest method.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
loan to a non-controlling interest, trade receivables,
other receivables, amount due from the subsidiary
of an associate and bank balances) are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment of financial assets
below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated or not
classified as financial assets at FVTPL, loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments. The
Group designated investments in bonds and equity
securities as available-for-sale financial assets on
initial recognition of those items.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=+—HILEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)
(i)

(ii)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)
Equity and debt securities held by the Group that
are classified as available-for-sale and are traded
in an active market are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Changes in the
carrying amount of available-for-sale monetary
financial assets relating to interest income
calculated using the effective interest method.
Other changes in the carrying amount of available-
for-sale financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the
heading of investment revaluation reserve. When
the investment is disposed of or is determined to
be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting
policy in respect of impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of
the financial assets have been affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of the security below its cost is considered to be
objective evidence of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=1+—HILEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

- breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest and principal
payments; or

= it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as
trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to
be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed
for impairment on a collective basis.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’'s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period and observable
changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the amount of impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=+—HILEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EAEHBEHE 2z
POLICIES (continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued) (h) €I A &)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i) ZHEEREE)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is FrEemERE 2 RERE(E
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all SERBERGRIN GBEERSE
financial assets with the exception of trade RMEEZREETRELIR -
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced ERREEDEBBERED
through the use of an allowance account. Changes HE - BERANZREES
in the carrying amount of the allowance account EREEPER - WEHEK
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade BRI AR AT E - AR B
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written HEER MY o HZWEILRTE
off against the allowance account. Subsequent WiH 2 S FRAGFTABR -

recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is EAHEESREERRIER
considered to be impaired, cumulative gains B Z2ATREMEERET
or losses previously recognised in other R R BE - %
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or ERRERENRH BB -

loss in the period in which the impairment takes

place.

For financial assets measured at amortised MERBEKAAECERMEE
cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of mE - WREEEZSERGE
impairment loss decreases and the decrease BEMA PR D - A R
can be related objectively to an event occurring RS FRERREBERE
after the impairment loss was recognised, the E2ENER - BIERERER
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed ZREEEEERER TR
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying | - EZEENRERERE
amount of the asset at the date the impairment A7 BREE TS BB AR R
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised BER 2 B HAAR -

cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=1+—HILEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment
losses previously recognised in profit or loss are
not reversed through profit or loss. Any increase
in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the investment revaluation
reserve. For available-for-sale debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed
through profit or loss if an increase in the fair
value of the investment can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the recognition of the
impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified either as financial liabilities or
as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest
expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HmRE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=+—HILEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EASHEHE#E =)

POLICIES (continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued) (h) €T A #)

(iii) Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities including trade payables,
accruals and other payables, amounts due to the
subsidiary of an associate, non-controlling interests
and former non-controlling interests and loan
from a non-controlling interest are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Convertible bonds containing liability and equity
components, and early redemption option, if
applicable

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain
both liability (together with the early redemption
option which is closely related to the host
liability component, if applicable) and conversion
option components are classified separately
into respective items on initial recognition in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument. Conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Company's own equity
instruments is an equity instrument.

On initial recognition of convertible bonds issued
by the Company, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing
market interest of similar non-convertible debts.
The difference between the gross proceeds of the
issue of the convertible bonds and the fair value
assigned to the liability component, representing
the conversion option for the holder to convert the
convertible bonds into equity, is included in equity
(convertible bonds equity reserve).

EMBEREVRRERAE | ZB-AFFER

EHEBRRATAE)

cRmAR
SREAE(REBESREAE
% FIREOE R B R
B RENBE AT ZHE D
7 - JEEAR S B AT SR IR
AR A SRR 2 B
)R A ERF R E RS
SR AEE o

BB EFEEaERER
2By R AR AT RE R4 (@)

AEBMRETREEABCER
HIBBEROBRETZRS
O HRE - WER) R RE
BRI RES - TIRYIZE
ERBREBEMFIZANTEERN
BAREBMBENREATAN
EE - BYDHESIERMER -
BABEEHEREI A —HE
MEERBARBRES EEH
B HI R A T A7 A B AR
RETIBRATH -

YIFHERBAR R R EAT Z AT
Es BESBINAFEDR
BUAASREBNRITNES
MEREE - HITARBESN
PSFRRBREBETaERS
MAFENZR(RKRERE
AR AT BB S 88 1 R 2 )
ReE) B At (AR E
HiEmHEEHIA -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=1+—HILEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EAS:HEHME®)
POLICIES (continued)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)
(iii) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(h) I B®)
(iii) EHEERRATAE)

92

(Continued)

Convertible bonds containing liability and equity
components, and early redemption option, if
applicable (Continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of
the convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The equity
component, representing the option to convert
the liability component into ordinary shares of the
Company, will remain in convertible bonds equity
reserve until the embedded option is exercised
(in which case the balance stated in convertible
bonds equity reserve will be transferred to share
premium). Where the option remains unexercised
at the expiry date, the balance stated in convertible
bonds equity reserve will be released to the
accumulated losses. No gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the
option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation
of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating
to the equity component are charged directly to
equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period of
the convertible bonds using the effective interest
method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=+—HILEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EAEHBEHE 2z
POLICIES (continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(iv) Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’'s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in
profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group’'s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents (i)
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand,

deposits held at call with banks and other short-term

highly liquid investments with original maturities of three

months or less.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=1+—HILEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(i)

(k)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are
measured at the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to
settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of
the time value of money is material).

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fee paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
drawdown occurs. To the extent there is capitalised as a
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the
period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HmRE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=+—HILEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(1)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

(m) Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from “loss before tax"” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(m) Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable loss. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.
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mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=1+—HILEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=+—HILEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(m) Taxation (Continued)

(n)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred
tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.

Retirement benefit costs and termination
benefits

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes
and Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result
of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal plan
which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &

E-E-ARFEZA=+—HIEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(o) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the

consideration received or receivable and represents

amounts receivable for goods sold and services provided

in the normal course of business, net of discounts and

sales related taxes.

(i) Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised

when the goods are delivered and titles have

passed, at which time all the following conditions

are satisfied:

- the Group has transferred to the buyer the

significant risks and rewards of ownership of

the goods;

the Group retains neither continuing
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

the amount of revenue can be measured

reliably;

- it is probable that the economic benefits

associated with the transaction will flow to

the Group; and

- the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect

of the transaction can be measured reliably.

(i) Revenue from the provision of genetic testing

services and the provision of health care

management services is recognised when the

related services have been provided to the

customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=+—HILEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(o) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Revenue from the distribution of bio-industrial
products and trading of beauty equipment and
products is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed to the customers.

Interest income from financial assets is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can
be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued
on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividends income on equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right
to receive the dividends is established.

(p) Leases

(i)

Operating leases (As a lessee)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=1+—HILEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(p) Leases (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets
are accounted for as finance leases. At the
commencement of the lease term, a finance lease
is capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the
leased asset and the present value of the minimum
lease payments, each determined at the inception
of the lease term.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included
in the statement of financial position as finance
lease payable. Lease payments are apportioned
between the finance charge and the reduction
of the outstanding liability. The finance charge is
allocated to each period during the lease term so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated the
same as owned assets over the shorter of the lease
term and their estimated useful lives.

Lease of land and building

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification
of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of each element have been
transferred to the Group. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative
fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HmRE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=+—HILEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EASHEHE#E =)

POLICIES (continued)

(g) Dividend distribution (q)
Dividend distribution to the Company’'s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Company’s financial
statements in the year in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders.

(r) Related parties (r)
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group if:
(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or of the parent of the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ —ZT— NF=A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(r)
(b)

Related parties (Continued)
An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
reporting entity or an entity related to the
reporting entity. If the reporting entity is itself
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the reporting entity.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #E —E—NE=A=+—HIIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying according
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’'s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgements in applying according
policies (Continued)

Significant influence over Longmark (Shanghai)
HealthCare Limited (“Longmark (Shanghai)”)

Note 17 describes that Longmark (Shanghai) is an associate of
the Group, the Group held from 50.02% to 49.78% ownership
interest in Longmark (Shanghai). Pursuant to the changes
of memorandum and articles of associations of Longmark
(Shanghai) on 29 November 2013, &M (&) EESER
%BRAF] ("East Longmark”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group, can only appoint one out of the three directors
in the board of directors of Longmark (Shanghai) and all the
shareholders and board of directors’ resolutions of Longmark
(Shanghai) require 51% votes to pass. The directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group lost control over
Longmark (Shanghai) as a result of these changes effected
on 29 November 2013 and only has significant influence
over Longmark (Shanghai) by virtue of the contractual right
to appoint one out of the three directors in the board of
directors of Longmark (Shanghai) and its voting powers/
rights in shareholders’ and directors’ meetings in which all
shareholders and board of directors’ resolutions require 51%
votes to pass.

Significant influence over Extrawell

Note 17 describes that Extrawell is an associate of the Group
although the Group only owns 19.14% ownership interest in
Extrawell. The Group has significant influence over Extrawell
by virtue of the potential voting right upon full exercise of the
conversion rights attaching to the convertible bonds of that
company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=1+—HILEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=+—HILEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

The allowance for bad and doubtful debts of the Group
is estimated based on the evaluation of collectability and
aging analysis of individual trade debts performed by the
management. A considerable amount of judgment is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each customer. If the financial conditions of
customers of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in
an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
allowances may be required.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment
when events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment is lower than its carrying amount. For the year
ended 31 March 2016, impairment loss of nil (2015: Nil) was
recognised for property, plant and equipment based on the
impairment assessment performed by the management.
It is possible that actual outcomes may be different from
assumptions, having a material impact on the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment in the period when
such estimate is revised. As at 31 March 2016, the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment are approximately
HK$35,833,000 (2015: HK$36,346,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair value of investments in convertible bonds

The fair values of embedded conversion option of convertible
bonds invested by the Group are calculated using valuation
techniques. Valuation techniques are certified by an
independent qualified valuer before being implemented for
valuation and are calibrated to ensure that outputs reflect
market conditions. Valuation models established by the valuer
make the maximum use of market inputs and rely as little as
possible on the Group's specific data. The model involves
estimates on time to expiration, risk free rate, share price
volatility, discount rates and others. As at 31 March 2016,
the carrying amount of the embedded conversion option of
convertible bonds invested by the Group is HK$227,027,000
(2015: HK$233,337,000).

Should any of the estimates be revised, it may lead to a
material change to the fair value of the investments in
convertible bonds.

Fair value of the embedded option of the convertible
bonds issued by the Company

On initial recognition of convertible bonds issued by the
Company, the fair value of the embedded option of the
convertible bonds was calculated using valuation techniques.
Valuation techniques were certified by an independent
qualified valuer before being implemented for valuation
and were calibrated to ensure that outputs reflect market
conditions. Valuation models established by the valuer make
the maximum use of market inputs and rely as little as
possible on the Group's specific data. The model involved
estimates on time to expiration, risk free rate, share price
volatility, discount rate and others.

Should any of the estimates be revised, it may lead to a

material change to the fair value of the convertible bonds
issued by the Company.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of intangible assets

The Group performs annual tests of impairment on
intangible assets in relation to an in-process research
and development project involving an oral insulin product
(the “Product”) (the
yet available for use. Accordingly, the intangible assets

“In-process R&D") which are not

relating to the oral insulin product with the carrying amount
of approximately HK$1,373,224,000 as at 31 March 2016
(2015: HK$1,373,224,000) was tested for impairment. The
recoverable amounts of cash-generating units are determined
based on fair value calculations, which is highly dependent
upon further research and development work required to
be carried out, results of the clinical trials, the successful
launching of the Product and the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in preparing cash flow projections. Details of
the calculation of fair value are disclosed in note 19. These
calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions
made by management on the future operation of the business,
pre-tax discount rates, and other assumptions underlying the
fair value calculations. In addition, the management based on
the opinion of the legal advisors to assume that the Group will
continue to have the exclusive right for commercialisation of
the Product after 2018.

Should the actual outcome of the clinical trials and the
launching of the Product be unsuccessful, or the key
assumptions applied in preparing the cash flow projections
from the Product in assessing impairment, including the
discount rates or growth rate assumptions applied in the cash
flow projections on the In-process R&D is different from the
original estimates, such difference could materially affect the
carrying value of the intangible assets. It will consequently
have an adverse effect on the net assets and the results of the
Group.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of amounts due to
the subsidiary of an associate, non-controlling interests and
former non-controlling interests, loan from a non-controlling
interest and convertible bonds, net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising share capital and reserves. The directors of the
Company review the capital structure on an annual basis. As
part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through new share issues and share
buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption
of existing debt.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=1+—HILEE
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS £RTHE
Categories of financial instruments ERMITAEER
2016 2015
—EB-AE —T—hF
HK$000 HK$'000
FH&xT FET
Financial assets TREE
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABSEZCREE 227,027 233,337
Loans and receivables (including cash ExRERZE(BIFERE &
and cash equivalents) BEEEM) 183,510 241,208
Available-for-sale financial assets A ESREE 6,921 6,887
Financial liabilities TREE
Amortised cost B H R AN 528,732 436,785
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #E —E—NE=A=+—HIIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's major financial instruments include investments
in convertible bonds, available-for-sale financial assets, trade
receivables, other receivables, bank balances, loans from/
(to) non-controlling interests, trade payables, other payables,
amounts due to non-controlling interests, amounts due
to former non-controlling interests and convertible bonds.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group's fair value interest rate risk primarily relate to
debt component of convertible bonds held by the Group,
available-for-sale financial assets and the liability component
of convertible bonds issued by the Company as set out in
notes 18, 22 and 29 respectively.

The Group's available-for-sale financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of the reporting period, which are
affected by the market interest rate. Therefore, the fair values
of the Group's available-for-sale financial assets are exposed
to fair value interest rate risk. The management manages
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risk profiles. The management considers the Group’s
exposure to fair value interest rate risk is minimal taking
into account the minimal fluctuation on market interest rate.
Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is presented.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk primarily relates to
variable-rate bank balances (see note 23 for details). The
management considers the Group's exposure to future cash
flow interest rate risk is minimal taking into account the
minimal fluctuation on market interest rate. Accordingly, no
sensitivity analysis is presented.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Price risk on conversion option embedded in convertible
bonds held by the Group

The Group is required to estimate the fair value of the
conversion option embedded in the convertible bonds held
by the Group at the end of the reporting period with changes
in fair value to be recognised in profit or loss as long as the
convertible bonds are outstanding. The fair value adjustment
will be affected either positively or negatively, amongst
others, by the changes in share price and its volatility of the
convertible bonds issuer.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to the change of share price and its volatility
of the convertible bonds issuer at the reporting date.

If the volatility of share prices of the convertible bonds
issuer had been 5% (2015: 5%) higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group's post-tax loss
for the year would be decrease/increase by HK$891,000
(2015: HK$1,823,000), as a result of changes in fair value of
conversion option embedded in the convertible bonds held by
the Group.

In management’'s opinion, the sensitivity analyses are
unrepresentative of the inherent market risk as the pricing
model used in the fair value valuation of the conversion
options embedded in the convertible bonds involves multiple
variables and certain variables are interdependent.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Price risk on available for sale investments

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its available-
for-sale equity investments.

The management manages this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risks. The Group's
equity securities price risks are mainly concentrated on equity
instruments quoted in the market. In addition, the Group has
appointed a special team to monitor the price risk and will
consider hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risks at the reporting date.
If the prices of the respective equity instruments had been
10% (2015: 10%) higher/lower, assuming all other variables
were held constant, the investment revaluation reserve
would increase/decrease by HK$497,000 (2015: HK$442,000)
as a result of the changes in fair value of available-for-sale
investments.

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to investments
in convertible bonds, loan to a non-controlling interest,
amount due from the subsidiary of an associate, trade and
other receivables, available-for-sale financial assets and bank
balances for current period and prior year.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group’'s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is the
carrying amounts of the respective recognised financial assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

EMBEREVREERAF |

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ —ZT— NF=A=+—HILFE

TR
BEREEERRBEK®)
AR (E)

AHHEREZERERR

7R 5% B T e ot L P 41 LH S M R B T R AR
ZERER

EEENTRRARZIEEMEEEEZRNR
B o REEBZRAEHERRERREEEF
RSB EZRETAR - b4 AREBEE
EEPINEAEEREBREHRBEENE
T BRSO R PTEER 2 R g o

BREDH
T g E S ﬁEEB*E’\‘i&i B 5 P b

MR EEBRERET - MWERATAZE
A, R A 10% :%fﬁﬁ ©10%)
MmATEHMEERIETTE  RESHHFEE
#5380, WA 497,000 T (—E— R4
442,000 7T) - TTHERAHEEREZA
FEZBHAHTH -

=B

AEBEZEERR IKXE$HHF?&§EHI
FEZABRBRESFKRE FHH HQT%E
EX - BUREE QR ZIMBARNIE &
5 KA YRR —H,t?u“.n’i mﬁé?&
RITH

RZB—RE=R=+—H AEEHME
R mAEERR(GERSHTTRERT
BEM<AEBARMBIER) B M
ARKRF Bz BRCHERZERMEEZR
fH{E

—REEH / Ay



112

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The investments in convertible bonds as at 31 March 2016
expose the Group to concentration of credit risk. At the end of
the reporting period, the Group assesses the financial position
and performance of the issuer of the convertible bonds of
carrying amount of HK$259,555,000 (2015: HK$257,368,000)
and in view of sufficient net asset and significant bank balance
and cash of the issuer, the management consider the default
risk on the investments in convertible bonds is not significant.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for the determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures. In addition, management reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt regularly to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are recognised for irrecoverable
debts. With respect to credit risk arising from amounts
due from the subsidiary of an associate and loan to a non-
controlling interest, the management would monitor the
financial position/performance over the associate and the
relevant subsidiary with such non-controlling interest. In this
regard, management considers that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk on the Group’s bank balances is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The credit risk on available-for-sale financial assets is limited
because the issuers are listed companies in Hong Kong and
overseas with high credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which
are deposited with several banks with high credit ratings, the
Group has no significant concentration of credit risk of trade
receivables (2015: the Group has concentration of credit risk
as 67% and 33% of the trade receivables were due from the
Group’s two largest customers as at 31 March 2015, which
were privately owned offshore trading companies trading
beauty equipment and products). Management of the Group
considered that no credit risk on trade receivables as at 31
March 2016 as all trade receivables were settled before year
end.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. In addition to issuance of new shares, the Group also
relies on convertible bonds as a significant source of liquidity
for the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRME

F:r the year ended 31 March 2016 HE-—ZE—"F=A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. €RMIAm
Financial risk management objectives and BRAREREEERBR &
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk TEBE LA
The following table details the Group’s contractual maturity TERFMAEEBZITEEREBRZEH
for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed FHH (A EERBBAKE) - ZX8
repayment dates. The table includes both interest and FHEREEREMNE -

principal cash flows.

Liquidity risk tables mENE &R

31 March 2016 ZE-7NEZRZt-A
Non-derivative financial iabllities (74488
Trade payables EULE
Funds received in advance BlEs
Other payables fbERFE
Amount due to the subsiciary ~ ERBLAFZKEAR
of an associate R
Amount due to a non-controlling R FEERERZE
interest

Amounts due to former non- BRI HARER SR
controlling interests

Loan from a non-controlling REFERERER
interest

Convertible bonds ThkES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #E —E—NE=A=+—HIIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. €RIA®)
Financial risk management objectives and BRREEEERBE#)
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) mEBEREE(E)
Liquidity risk tables (Continued) mEBEERARRK(E)
Weighted ~ On demand Total Carrying
average  orless than 1-3 3months 1 year Over undiscounted ~ amount at
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year to b years Hyears  cashflows 3132015
RCE-0%
RELIY FUERE ZA=1-A
mETSHE W-ER  -2=@R ZERE-§¥  -fERf AT ik=rc LEEfA

% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TR TR Thn Tin Thn TR TiEn

31 March 2015 ZE-TEZR=1-A
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ 3574 £ (E
Trade payables BARAER - 2541 4,558 - - - 7,099 7,009
Other payables EfbE3E - 9,088 - - - - 9,088 9,088
Amount dug to the subsidiary ~ ERBERAZKBAF
of an associate B - 41947 - - - - 41,947 0,947
Amount due toa non-controlling  FER3FERERZE
interest - 22871 - - - - 2287 22871
Amaunts dug to former ERf5ERERTE
non-controlling interests - 823 - - - - 823 823
Loan from a non-controlling REFERERER
interest 26.99 - - - 10,579 - 10,579 3,557
Convertible bonds ThRES 259 - - 25,025 100,100 1,372,650 1,497,775 361,400
71.270 4,558 25,025 110,679 1,372,650 1,590,182 436,785
yg e |
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #E —E—<E=A=+—HIIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) E®MI A
Financial risk management objectives and BRREEBEERBEE)

policies (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period. The following table
gives information about how the fair values of these financial
assets are determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s)
and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy

RIEEEMBREZ N FENBZAEEE
BEEZ L FlE

AEEZETEREEDRBEHRERA
FEAE  TRIBFREEXSFERMT
BARHEZ T A(LERMERZAERD
RBARRE)  ARBREBEATFEAEBAR
ZABEEESAVEHEDBEZATE

into which the fair value measurements are categorised BELANE—ZE=F)2ER -
(levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the

fair value measurements is observable.

Relationship of
Fair value as at Fair value  Valuation technique Significant unobservable
Financial assets 31 March 2016 hierarchy  and key inputs unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
R=E-~EZA=t-H A EXTAER FIERBARER

SHEE ZAYE RRER  HERORIZRALE BAEE APEZEE

Available-for-sale Listed bonds and equity Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market  N/A N/A
financial assets investments - HK$6,921,000

(2015: listed bonds
HK$6,887,000)
A tESHER EiEsNRERE—- -4 RERTRHENEAE iy ilid iyilid
6921000875 -1%
LifE%6,887,0003T)

Conversion options embedded  Assets - HK$227,027,000 Level3  Binomial Model Expected volatility of The higher the volatility
in Sale CB- and Sale CB-ll (2015: HK$233,337,000) the share price of of the share price of
(as defined in note 18) The fair valug is estimated hased Extrawell, determined Extrawell, the higher
classified as financial asset on risk free rate for the life of by reference to the the fair value. (Note)
at FVTPL in the consolidated the option and share price (from historical share price of
statement of financial observable market data), expected ~ Extrawell.
position volatility of the share price of

Extrawell and expected dividend
yield on the shares and exercise
price.
BARGEH J%H)R/R%W"*Eﬁ}ﬁ BE—227,027,000% 0 2= 2B RECRERENE2ZEE REREREMX ATHE

AYEHABRERAEFE
TRRES - REETARES
Z(RERME18) Z8HE -

Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited |
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)
There is no transfer between different levels of the fair value
hierarchy for the year ended 31 March 2016 and 2015.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of
derivative financial instruments included in investments in
convertible bonds

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=+—HILEE

@I E®)
kR EEERERBEE)

RIFEEMREZR N FEITEZFETE
BEEZ X FHEE)
HE_Z-—RER-_ZE-—AF=A=1+—
HIEFE  TRAFERESRZ HHE
FIE% o

ARBEERA - BB AREEWH
BREFEZeREERERABZREE
HEENFERE -

FIATRREFREZITELTHBTRZE
ZRAFEGTEZHREK

HK$°000

FERT

At 1 April 2014 R-ZZE—UFEMNA—A 195,695
Fair value recognised upon acquisition Wi e mR AT E 98,595
Change in fair value loss in profit or loss (Note) N EZEB N ERT 2 BBR(WE) (60,953)
At 31 March 2015 RN-_E—RAF=A=+—H 233,337
Fair value recognised upon acquisition REE R AT E 52,199
Change in fair value loss in profit or loss (Note) NEEZENBRT BB ) (58,509)
At 31 March 2016 R-ZE—XR"F=ZA=+—H 227,027

Note: All the loss from change in fair value recognised in profit or
loss relates to the conversion options embedded in Sale CB-|
and Sale CB-Il (as defined in note 18) held at the end of the
current reporting period which is included in “other gains and
losses, net”.

EMBEREVREERAF |

Hiat - AN R R 2 B IR AR RE B IR AR
SHRAERBRHAZHFEIRBESF R
ARES - (CERRME18) 2R
B - RS ATE e RERFER] -

—B - AEEH / oy



118

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 2 —=F

—NEZA=T—HLLEE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue for the year represents the fair value of amounts

received and receivable for goods sold or services rendered

by the Group to outside customers, less discounts and related

taxes for the year, is analysed as follows:

ko EER

FRkaER A EERIRESEEES
SRR 2 B RO AT E
BB FAZITNRAAMBIE - ST -

2016 2015

=E—RF —E—hF

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Trading of beauty equipment and products ERXRENERE 19,908 33,785
Provision of genetic testing services B2 4 2 DB AR 75 = 191
19,908 33,976

The Group has five reportable and operating segments as

follows:

(a) provision of genetic testing services in the PRC and

Hong Kong (“Provision of genetic testing services”)

(b) distribution of bio-industrial products in the PRC
("Distribution of bio-industrial products”)

(c) trading of beauty equipment and products in Hong Kong

("Trading of beauty equipment and products”)

(d) securities investment in Hong Kong and outside Hong

Kong (“Securities investment”)

(e) research, development and commercialisation of the oral

insulin product (“Research and development”)

The Group's reportable and operating segments are strategic

business units that offer different products and services.

They are managed separately because each business requires

different technology and marketing strategies.

FEEBUATLEAZHRREES T :

(@) R EREBREMERNRS
(TR ER R RS 1)

b) RPBEDHEEMEXEM(DHEE
MEZXEMR])

€0 REAXBRBRERES([XR
wREMNERES])

(d) REBRBEBRIZEFRE(E
HIRE )

(e) MERESEORRESEERH
1)

ARENSRRLEESBLERETAES
BB 0 H RS RSB - KB HBEME
RIETE - B 5 BT 7T B0 B 45 5
TR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ —ZT— NF=A=+—HILFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. &Rk oIBER2)
(Continued)
The accounting policies of the operating segments are D2 ERTBUR BT A B IS sk il
the same as those described in the consolidated financial EHHRR - DEWEE), B FEEL &SR
statements. Segment (loss)/profit represents the loss incurred EHEAMEST REMKA - Wam R EE
by or profit earned from each segment without allocation FREZBRAT S0 ELEZ BB
of corporate and other expenses and other income, gains ZmH e DEEMBEE T DRI &R K
and losses, net. All assets are allocated to segments other HEEE  REBEAR 2 ER Eﬁﬁ‘ﬂxﬁ
than corporate assets, interests in associates, investments HFIRE  ENBEQRZHBA
in convertible bonds, amount due from the subsidiary of an MFEIERERE R RIRITE ﬁ?iﬁiiﬁi : Ffﬁ
associate, loan to a non-controlling interest and bank balances SEFFEAET HE ETjIﬂEqu&u:%E
and cash. All liabilities are allocated to segments other than & EABEAR 2K BARIE - FEE
corporate liabilities, amounts due to the subsidiary of an M o Ko A SRR AR A XE%‘H PR 25
associate, non-controlling interests and former non-controlling B R BRES
interests, loan from a non-controlling interest and convertible
bonds.
Provision of Distribution of Trading of beauty Research and
genetic testing services  bio-industrial products  equipment and products  Securities investment development Total
REERHHRE ELYERER EBRRRERERES 2508 i a3
2016 2015 2016 215 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
§-NF 31 8N CF-1fF | 283 CT-nE [ 283 CT-RE Z8-nf CI-RE  Z§aEF F-E
HKS'000  HKS'000 ~ HKS'000  HKS'000 ~ HKS'000  HK$'000 ~ HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Tn TEn Thn Thn Thn Thn T Thn TE1L Thn Tin TEn
Revenue from extemal customers KM %ﬁz% - 191 - - 19,908 33,785 - - - - 19,908 3976
Segment (loss)forofit 85k (295) (4,584) [2413) (2,752) 580 4 (138) 1,208 (5,661) (6,124) (1921 (11513
Additional disclosures for operating B4 ENGREE :
segments:
Interest income received from v
avallable-for-sale investments fls A - - - - - - 97 3 - - 97 3
Depreciation of property, g BERAENE
plant and equipment 16 6 1114 1079 - - - - - - 1,130 1,085
At 31 March 2016 and R=B-7EZA=1-H
31 March 2015
=4-
Segment assets ABEE 516 374 381M 36,391 - 9,992 1448 6,887 1441572 1304085 1481707 1447729
Segment ligbilties DL 303 157 5,809 5719 - 9,060 - - 74,040 69,352 80,152 84,88
/'/-.
1/‘
v
/&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=1+—HILEE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7.

(Continued)

Reconciliation of reportable segment loss, assets and

liabilities:

Wk oEBER #)

EROHMEIE EENBEHE

2016 2015
ZEB—XREF —E-hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Segment loss o EBES1E
Total segment loss HEEEERE (7,927) (11,513)
Corporate and other expenses PEREAMFX (103,893) (77,920)
Share of results of associates CaR ey YN e 7,945 295
Unallocated other income, RAmEMBA - s Kk
gains and losses, net BB (137,072) (367,776)
Consolidated loss for the year FREREEE (240,947) (456,914)
Assets BE
Total segment assets DEHEELT 1,487,707 1,447,729
Interests in associates RESE N E 2 =S 128,103 143,634
Investments in convertible bonds R ESHIRE 259,555 257,368
Corporate and other assets rERHMEE 134,827 191,821
Consolidated total assets GEBELRE 2,010,192 2,040,552
Liabilities Bf&E
Total segment liabilities NEAEESE 80,152 84,288
Convertible bonds AR E S 403,146 351,400
Corporate and other liabilities hELREMARE 47,878 3,400
Consolidated total liabilities IREAERE 531,176 439,088
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HmRE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #E —E—NE=A=+—HIIFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7.

(Continued)

Geographical information

The Group's operations are principally located in Hong Kong

and the PRC. The Group’s revenue from continuing operations

from external customers based on location of operations and
information about its non-current assets (excluding financial
instruments, intangible assets and interests in associates) by

WEkaHER 2
I E R

FEBEZEBETEUNEBRPE - K&
BIRZRLMEME D 2 RAIREF 25
BREEBWANREIREEMRAEIEA

ENRBZIRPDEE(TRESHIARR

BEnm D) RAEME  BERRE

geographical location of the assets are as follows: AR -
Non-current assets
(excluding financial
instruments, intangible
assets, and interests
Revenue in associates)
IRBEE(FEEESH
IR BEEER
LON REE DT ZRER)
2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-RF —ZE-hF —EB—RF “T—hHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT FET FAET
Hong Kong BB 19,908 33,785 313 75
The PRC A - 191 35,520 36,271
19,908 33,976 35,833 36,346

Interests in associates were excluded from geographical
information disclosure as the Group’'s major associate,
Extrawell, has several principal places of operations and
businesses.

BRBERENNHEERAT | —B-AEFH Yo &

HRARETEBREARBEERZEE
EEEMBNER - HUBIBERBEDL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=1+—HILEE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WHEDHER (#)
(Continued)
Information about major customers EBEXTERXFEH

Revenue from customers of the corresponding year

HEFEERBEAKZEI0%E, 2 W

contributing over 10% of the total revenue are as follows: wmr
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FHIT
Customer A' =B R 13,746 22,797
Customer B! BE 6,162 10,988
i Revenue from trading of beauty equipment and products. 1 EXEERRERERE S 2 W -
OTHER INCOME/OTHER GAINS AND 8 HtiA HttBREIEF
LOSSES, NET |
2016 2015
—E-REF —E—RHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHIT
Other income Higlr A
Interest income from banks RITHBUA 163 400
Interest income from available-for-sale AIHEESMEE ZFEBA
financial assets 97 36
Dividend income & B A 163 -
Sundry income HMIEI A 91 69
Effective interest income from investment K BABREFIRE 2B
in convertible bonds F B U A 5,696 3,053
Imputed interest income from loan to Mg AR ZHBARERME
a subsidiary of the associate 2T BURA 5,814 -
Imputed interest income from loan to a MEERERERGEE 2
non-controlling interest FMBERX 1,088 580
13,112 4,138
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=+—HILEE

8. OTHER INCOME/OTHER GAINS AND 8 HtlhA "HikzEKEIEF

LOSSES, NET (Continued) e
2016 2015
=E—RF —E—hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Other gains and losses, net Hith = R8T
Gain/(loss) on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR W (Eig) 10 (184)
Change in fair value of derivative AR ERGEZITER D 2
components of investments in NEEZ
convertible bonds (58,509) (60,953)
Loss on initial recognition of investments BB ESIEEZ
in convertible bonds acquired during MIEHERERE
the period (62,161) (277,821)
Impairment loss on interest in an associate W& A Al 2 REE B (23,476) (29,218)
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of HETHEESMEEZ
available-for-sale financial assets (E518) Wi s5e (286) 1,269
Gain on disposals of property, HEME - BE REE ks
plant and equipment 1 1,329
Impairment loss on other receivable HAth EIGRIE 2 R EE B (1,852) -
(146,263) (365,578)
FINANCE COSTS 9. MBEMA
2016 2015
—E—AF —T—RHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Effective interest expense on AR ESFERN S
convertible bonds (note 29) (H15£29) 53,449 52,357
Interest expense on convertible bonds AR EEF B 25,025 -
Imputed interest expense on loan from a REFZERERZERHEZ
non-controlling interest (note 27(c)) FERZ(KE27(c)) 1,088 580
79,562 52,937
S E R
L s
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=1+—HILEE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong Profits Tax is provided at the rate of 16.5% (2015:
16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law") and the Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2015: 25%).

No Hong Kong Profits Tax and PRC income tax have been
made for the year as the group companies operating in Hong
Kong and the PRC did not generate assessable profits for the

year.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
loss before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as follows:

10. FIEHAX

EBEFEH TREMEFE 2 G RS
FZ16.5%(—FT—HF  16.5% )% °

REPBRCEMERE(REMEHE])
MEEMBREERES - FENEB AR
ZHERAE2%(ZT—FE : 25%) °

HRNEEEECKBERARINETEEE
MEB AR EELRRHAE - FA
FREIEGANEH -

FAMBHAXEFAREREMEEK
SR ZBRATERERINT -

2016 2015
ZEB-KREF —E-hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Loss before tax R BRI ES 1B (240,947) (456,914)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 256% IRZANHIFTISRTH 25 %EtE 2
18 (60,236) (114,228)
Tax effect of expense not deductible for RIS IR B 2 BT
tax purpose T 58,250 113,647
Tax effect of income not taxable for RGN ER 2 WA 2 T
tax purpose 4 (1) (1,017)
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised AERBRIEERBZRETE - 1,671
Tax effect of share of results of an associate HEEE AT EE Y HKTE 1,987 (73)

Income tax expense

PIS BRI X
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=+—HILEE

11. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 11. FRAEE
2016 2015
—E—XF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&xT FAET
Loss for the year has been arrived at FREETR TS IERBER :
after charging the following:
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEM &
Provision for the year FREE 1,000 1,200
(Over)-provision for the prior year BAFE (BRE)BE (120) =
880 1,200
Depreciation of property, Y - BERRETE
plant and equipment 1,164 1,286
Rental expense for premises under KEHE T 2ERe ST
operating leases 2,625 1,378
Cost of inventories recognised BRAERY ZHFERA
as an expense 19,319 32,801
Staff costs exclusive of directors’ TEREEMEERNZE THRA
emoluments
Salaries, bonus and other benefits e e MEMET 4,235 7,079
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIRE R G X 297 1,136
4,532 8,215
.J/‘,..
A '.IJ./ &
EMBEREMNEARAT | —B-AEEH /



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiEZ —Z—NE=A=+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 12. EEME
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the ten (2015: ENSENTE(ZE—RF : hB)ESF
nine) directors were as follows: ) o (U

Retirement

Salaries benefit

Directors’ and other scheme
Name of Directors fee benefits contributions Total

FER RUKEF
EEHE EEHS Hin g Fl sTEIfER “Em
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FET FET
Lee Nga Yan (Note 1) THERR(HTEET) 60 484 14 558
Guo Yi (Note 2) e (HrE2) 57 - - 57
Tong Rang R 60 487 = 547
Chen Weijun [REE 80 - - 80
Xiao Yan Bk 60 - - 60
Jiang Nian PEES 60 - - 60
Zhang Zhihong RES 60 - - 60
Wang Rongliang TER 60 - - 60
Wu Yanmin SBHER 60 - - 60
Gao Yuan Xing =)0 & - 190 4 194

Total for the year ended #HZ_-_ZT— X F=A

31 March 2016 =t+—HLEFEZ

“RFE 557 1,161 18 1,736
Lee Nga Yan (Note 1) THEMR(HaET) 60 726 18 804
Guo Yi (Note 2) e (frE2) 60 - - 60
Tong Rang R 30 230 — 260
Chen Weijun [REZE 60 - - 60
Xiao Yan H 1k 60 83 2 145
Jiang Nian PES 60 287 - 347
Zhang Zhihong REE 60 - - 60
Wang Rongliang THR 60 - - 60
Wu Yanmin SBFER 60 89 2 151

Total for the year ended #HZ_-_Z—FHF=A
31 March 2015 =t—RItEEZ
mzE 510 1,415 22 1,947
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12.

13.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Note 1: Ms. Lee Nga Yan resigned as a director of the Company on
29 December 2015

Note 2: Mr. Guo Yi resigned as a director of the Company on
14 December 2015

No directors waived any emoluments in current and prior year.

During current year and prior year, no emoluments were paid
by the Group to the directors as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group.

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included three (2015: two) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments of
the remaining two (2015: three) individuals are set out below:

12.

13.

EEMEm)

K1 ZTEHEBMEZETRN-_ZET—HE+-A
—THhHEHBEARRRES

Ktixo . REENR-_Z—AE+-_A+mMHA

BEARRES
RARFEMFE  MEBEEERENS -

RAFEERERMFE - AREILEER
BEENME  EARFMALRIMAKR
S EEy 2 52E -

BEME

TR ARERERREHFALTEE=R(Z
T-hF: MBEF REZMEN LR
DR - HBEMB(ZF—AF =
BIANLTZBEEHIIMT

2016 2015
—E—XRF —E—hfF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&xT FHET
Basic salaries and other benefits EAXF ¢ RHEAMEF 602 829
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFIFT 8K 29 35
631 864
The emoluments fell within the following band: BN FATEE :

Number of individuals

A¥
2016 2015
—B-AF —ZE-A1F
Nil — HK$1,000,000 1,000,000 7T 2 3
1/‘,
EMBEREYNEERAT | —B-AEER / &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 2 —=F

—NEZA=T—HLLEE

14. DIVIDENDS 14. RE
The directors do not recommend the payment of dividends for ESUWTER iﬁgﬁétﬁfg—/_\i =A
the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: Nil). =E+—BLEEEZRE(ZZE—H%F:
;) o
15. LOSS PER SHARE 15. BREE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share $”‘ﬂ%*ﬁ‘)\ﬁfﬁiﬂﬁ%$&%%§ﬂéﬁ
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the ATEIBRREETE
following data:
Loss &5
2016 2015
— N —T—RHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Loss for the purposes of basic and diluted — HETEGRERZEEHEEY
loss per share (Loss for the year BiE(AAR#EE AEGEENRN
attributable to owners of the Company) E518) (236,865) (451,684)
Number of shares RGEH
2016 2015
— N —T—RHF
‘000 ‘000
T8 T
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ghitEGMRER REEERE
for the purpose of basic and diluted loss T3 R N 9
per share 1,406,106 1,262,525
The computation of diluted loss per share does not assume EEREEEER  UEREREAQFZ

the conversion of the Company’s outstanding convertible
bonds as their assumed conversion would decrease the loss
per share for the current year and prior year.

For the year ended 31 March 2016, basic and diluted loss
per share was HK$0.1685 (2015: HK$0.3577) per share,
which is based on the loss for the year of approximately
HK$236,865,000 (2015: HK$451,684,000) and the
denominators detailed above for both basic and diluted loss
per share.

No diluted loss per share has been presented as the exercise

of the outstanding convertible bonds issued by the Company
would result in a decrease in loss per share (i.e. anti-dilutive).

Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited |

%L?ﬁ—ﬁﬁﬁxf S AARMZE
AR EFRESR - @R AFER LA
FREZERER -

1R 5 4 N 518 49 236,865,000 8 7L (= F
—H 4 : 451,684,000 70) M E X Ea 2
BESREAREEEECSE  HE=
T-RNF=ZA=1+—HILFE EREX
NEEEEAER0.1685E T(ZE— 1
F:0357787T) °

BRITEARREIT 2 W ARITEARRE

FREHEREBEBRRD (AIREE) - &I
E2YIGREEEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=+—HILEE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. 13k - BER®RE

Leasehold
land and Plant and Motor
buildings machinery vehicles Total
HETHR
BF BB R RE wam
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FHIT FHT FHET
COST OR VALUATION mgA&=HEE
At 1 April 2014 R-ZZT—WFMA—H 36,371 3,944 1,114 41,429
Revaluation surplus E sy (247) - - (247)
Written off/disposal s Pk - (2,508) (784) (3,292)
Exchange differences MEH ZE 40 (27) (2) 11
At 31 March 2015 RZE—RF=A
=+—H 36,164 1,409 328 37,901
Additions NE - 300 - 300
Revaluation surplus EHARK 35 - - 35
Written off/disposal Wy HeE - (29) - (29)
Exchange differences PE H, =58 (738) (6) (16) (760)
At 31 March 2016 RZE—RF=A
=+—8 35,461 1,674 312 37,447
ACCUMULATED At NERRE
DEPRECIATION
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2014 R-ZT—WFMA—H — 3,190 980 4,170
Charge for the year FRXH 1,195 48 43 1,286
Eliminated on revaluation &5 {i %44 (1,195) - - (1,195)
Eliminated on written el SR
off/disposal - (1,995) (980) (2,975)
Exchange differences P Z5E - 79 190 269
At 31 March 2015 RZZT—RF=A
=+—H - 1,322 233 1,655
Charge for the year FAZH 1,047 80 37 1,164
Eliminated on revaluation (%44 (1,047) - - (1,047)
Eliminated on written off/ fifi#,~H & B 4
disposal - (30) = (30)
Exchange differences MEH ZFE = (17) (1) (28)
At 31 March 2016 RZT—R"F=A
=+—H - 1,355 259 1,614
CARRYING AMOUNTS REE
At 31 March 2016 RZE—RF=H
S—E 35,461 319 53 35,833
At 31 March 2015 R—_E—RF=A
=+-q 36,164 87 95 36,346
e
o S
i é \
ARBEREVNZERLAT | —B-AEER & " 129
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=1+—HILEE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. Y1¥ - BEKRE#)

(Continued)
The analysis of the cost or valuation of the above assets is as FPREEZ KA AESTOT
follows:
Leasehold
land and Plant and Motor
buildings machinery vehicles Total
HELHR
BgF R = & 88 RE #zE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FHET
As at 31 March 2016 RZZE—X"F=H
=+-8
At cost DN - 1,674 312 1,986
At valuation (EXE 35,461 - - 35,461
35,461 1,674 312 37,447
As at 31 March 2015 R-ZE—R&E=A
=+—H
At cost @ - 1,409 328 1,737
At valuation fH1E 36,164 - - 36,164
36,164 1,409 328 37,901

The leasehold land and buildings of the Group were revalued
on 31 March 2016 and 2015 by Roma Appraisals Limited,
an independent qualified professional valuer not connected
with the Group, at approximately HK$35,461,000 (2015:
HK$36,164,000).

The fair value of the leasehold land and buildings were
determined based on the depreciated replacement costs
approach. The value of the leasehold land and buildings are
based on an estimate of the market value for existing use
of the land, plus current cost of replacement of the existing
structures less deductions for physical deterioration and all
relevant forms of obsolescence and optimisation. There has
been no change to the valuation technique during the year.

Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited |

REBZHEFTHEBFR -_ZT— X
FR-_ZE—RAF=ZA=Z+—HHES
BRI EERAF(AEAERYEH
EBUBXAERMGER) ZE - &
B4 535,461,000 (= —HF
36,164,000/ 7T) °

HELHEBTFZATERBNEZEEN
REEE - HETHRETZEBETIER
THRES AR ZMFTE  MERBEBE
WM ERMBEBRKRA - BREWMEBRIR
MAEHBAYA 2 HBEREL  FR &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=+—HILEE

16.

17.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

One of the key unobservable inputs used in valuing the
building was the replacement costs of HK$2,290 (2015:
HK$2,390) per square meter.

The fair value measurement of leasehold land and building is
grouped into Level 3 and there were no transfers into or out of
level during the year.

If the leasehold land and buildings had not been revalued,
they would have been included in the consolidated financial
statements at historical cost less accumulated depreciation of
HK$26,837,000 (2015: HK$27,884,000).

The leasehold land and buildings were located in the PRC
under medium-term lease.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

On 27 April 2013, the Company entered into the conditional
sale and purchase agreement to acquire 450,000,000 ordinary
shares of Extrawell, a listed company in Hong Kong, of par
value HK$0.01 each from JNJ (a company in which 33.33%
equity interest is beneficially owned by each of Dr. Mao and
Dr. Xie — see note 35), at a consideration of HK$288,000,000,
which was satisfied by issuance of convertible bonds in
the principal amount of HK$288,000,000 by the Company.
On 25 October 2013, since all conditions precedent to the
abovementioned acquisition were fulfilled, the acquisition of
the Extrawell’s shares was completed on 25 October 2013, of
which 370,000,000 ordinary shares of Extrawell was acquired
by issuance of convertible bonds (Convertible Bonds | — see
Note 29) in the principal amount of HK$236,800,000, and
the remaining 80,000,000 ordinary shares of Extrawell were
acquired on 27 December 2013 by issuance of Convertible
Bonds | in the principal amount of HK$51,200,000.

EMBEREVREERAF |

16.

17.

ME - BERRZRE®

BERAEFEH K220 T (—E—H
& 12,3908 ) BYEFETHERER
ZAAEREREAREZ— -

HETHEBFZAFEAEEBE=F "
ARFARAZRRILEEALE -

WAELH MEFIESH - BIRESK
AF B ET T #26,837,0008 T (ZE—Hh
F 127,884,000/ 70 )it ARG ISR EK -

HELHEBFURTE  REDHEE
A e

REtE N RN ER
R-ZE—=FWA-++tH8  KQAF]
YERKHEEEHZ - BIN (—H5 5
HAARRREEF LT RHAB LIS EEHE
B33.33% M333BREF 2 AR - K
MzE35) IR E(—M&E EHAA)
450,000,000 Ik T R EEH0.01 BT 2 &
B\ - R {EA288,000,000/8 T ° 38
AR A 2174 % §8 4 288,000,000% 7T
ZABBRELREIN RZT—=F+A
ZHHA - B LA R SRR
HEEKR  WERBEER=-ZT—Z=F1TA
Z+HHBEZFK - E# 370,000,000 5 E
LR Ty B E 1T AN & %8 /5236,800,000
B2 I RRES (TRKRES— R WFE
29)E&75 - M# 80,000,000 {5 & L&
A& T5i5 @B 1T AR £ 58 A51,200,00058 7T 2
ARRES—R-_Z—=F+=-A=++
HEES -

o i /



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=1+—HILEE

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 17. REEE D RINRERS (2)
As a result of the change in the composition of the board of HRRZE—=F+—A=Z+NAZESF
directors and the percentage of voting rights in shareholders’ SHAEBRRASRESESHIREDL
and board of directors’ meetings on 29 November 2013, Bl Egs  AEETHHER(LES)T
the Group was no longer in a position to exercise control EyEdE - Bt E{IR(L8)BETERR
over Longmark (Shanghai). Since then, Longmark (Shanghai) EEMBERAR - MKABLAEBRZBERT] -

ceased to be subsidiaries of the Group and became an
associate of the Group.

2016 2015
—EB-KRE —E—RF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Cost of investment in associates B N A AR
- Listed in Hong Kong (Note a) —REE LW (M ita) 476,841 476,841
Share of post-acquisition losses and FERKEEBEREAMEEAS
other comprehensive expense 89,493 81,548
Impairment loss on interest in associates REFE R RS 2R EEE
(Note b) (KtiEb) (338,509) (315,033)

Adjustment against non-controlling interests #3Fi iz 2 AR (M ite)

(Note ¢) (99,722) (99,722)
128,103 143,634

Fair value of listed investments (Note d) FHRE 2 N HEN ) 128,103 146,403

Notes: HreE -

(a)  The cost of investment in Extrawell represents the aggregate (a) BEEEXRAEBEOHARAAAKERE
of (i) the fair value of the Convertible Bonds | with principal 370,000,000/% & 3@ A% ({E{8 387,160,000
amount of HK$236,800,000 issued by the Company on 25 BIL)MA—E—=F+A-+HBME
October 2013 for the acquisition of 370,000,000 ordinary 177K & %8 /5 236,800,000 78 JT &9 7] 32 A%
shares of Extrawell amounted to HK$387,160,000; (ii) the BE—WAFE: (1 RNARAKREBREE
fair value of the Convertible Bonds | with principal amount of 80,000,000 fi% = i@ % (E{E 87,142,000
HK$51,200,000 issued by the Company on 27 December 2013 BLT)MR_E—=F+_A=-+tH8A
for the acquisition of 80,000,000 ordinary shares of Extrawell 17N & %8 A51,200,0007% JT A A 2 i%
amounted to HK$87,142,000; and (iii) further acquisition of BEE—HAFENZTE  RiiVREE=
7,510,000 ordinary shares of Extrawell at cost of HK$2,539,000 E-—RE=-A=+—RHBILEEE—FI
during the year ended 31 March 2015. 2,539,000 7% 7t U fE 5 187,510,000 f% &

bl
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=+—HILEE

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(d)

On 28 July 2014, when the Group purchased 51% equity
interest in Smart Ascent from Extrawell (BVI), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Extrawell the Group recognised impairment
loss of approximately HK$29,218,000 in profit or loss which
represented the difference between the fair value of the
shares of Extrawell based on the share price of Extrawell and
the carrying amount of interests in associates (including the
interests in Smart Ascent held by Extrawell) before adjustment
against non-controlling interests.

As at 31 March 2015, the directors of the Company have
performed impairment assessment of the carrying amount of
the interest in the associate. The recoverable amount of the
interest in Extrawell (excluding the interest in Smart Ascent
held by Extrawell) was determined based on the Group’s share
of present value of the estimated future cash flows expected
to be generated by the associate. Accordingly, no further
impairment loss was recognised in the profit or loss during the
year ended 31 March 2015.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group recognised impairment
loss of approximately HK$23,476,000 in profit or loss which
represented the difference between the fair value of the shares
of Extrawell based on the share price of Extrawell and the
carrying amount of interest in associate (including the interest in
Smart Ascent held by Extrawell) before adjustment against non-
controlling interests at the end of the reporting period.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group has purchased
51% equity interest in Smart Ascent from Extrawell (BVI). Since
Smart Ascent has become a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Group and consequently Smart Ascent and its subsidiaries
have been consolidated by the Group commencing from 28 July
2014, the amount of equity in SAL Group that is attributable to
the remaining 49% interest in Smart Ascent held by Extrawell
and included in the carrying amount of interest in Extrawell
prior to the acquisition of Smart Ascent by the Group has been
reclassified out of non-controlling interest (and interest in
associate) and treated as part of equity attributable to owners of
the Company to the extent of the Company's attributable equity
interest in Extrawell which represented the share of equity in
SAL Group attributable to the Company’s ownership interest in
Extrawell.

The fair value of listed investments is based on the quoted
market bid price of the shares of Extrawell and hence include
the value attributable to Extrawell's equity interest in the SAL
Group; whereas the carrying amount of the Group’s interest in
Extrawell as an associate does not include that equity interest
due to the adjustment against non-controlling interests (see
note c above) and therefore is not directly comparable.

EMBEREVREERAE

=

17. REEE QTN RER &)

it -

(b)

—RNEER

(&)

R-ZE—MELA-+N\B  r RAEER
5182 2 &M B R AExtrawell (BVHEA
HEAEST%RER  AEBRBmANER
S IETE K 4929,218,0008 7T+ EBREIR
BREREET RN AFERRBE D
Rl R (BERBERENEL 2 #ER)
IR S E TR RAEME
[z

R-EBE-RAFE=F=+—H0 AQRESE
B S AR 2 R 2 REEETTRES
iy - FEEEZ ZATREIKIE(HEERB
ZHELERERSRRON) T IRIETERT B A A A
EEZHFRRBRERZAEERIGER
Bl HE2_T—AF=A=+—8
IEFE - Wi — S RERIE BXER

R e

R-ZB—XE=ZA=1+—0 AE£EENAE
=5 A HE SRR (B 18 2K 49 23,476,000/8 7T -
ERIERBERESET ZIBERNMAFER
REtE ARz R (BIEHBERANE
2R ) ER SRS AR R IR e
ETAENZEOEMEMIEZE -

RBE-_Z-—RAF=-A=+—HLEFE -
AEE D HExtrawell (BV)EE#E51%
ZHkE - HNEEERARERZEEE
WEBAR - MEEREEREMBARER
—E-NFELAZ T NBREEHALRE
B AREMFAELESRTIO%ERE
i BRASEKIEE AT ARBERER
BREEZ EEEEERSSEC M IEERE
@=(RRBERRINER)PENHE - 1%
RATEIEREERERNARRTINEEZ
WA EE ZEESERE) AR -
AARARIMEE AERESERE -

ETEREZ A HERRERBERD TS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &HZ —Z—

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Details of each of the Group's associates at the end of the

reporting period are as follows:

NEZA=+—RHIFE

17. REEE QTN RER &)

REEZBERRNREARDFBAT ¢

Place of Proportion of nominal value
incorporation/ Principal place ~ Class of Proportion of voting power of issued capital
Name of associates operation of operation shares held held by the Company held by the Company Principal activity
HRL/
BENI4R ek TEEHHY Fishaga ADRFBRAELA FARFRCRORAEERS  TEXE
2016 2015 2016 2015
“E-RE %% Z5-7E Z5-nf
Extrawell Bermuda PRC Ordinary shares 19.14% 19.14% 19.14% 18.83%  Development, manufacture
and sale of pharmaceutical
products
#E L 48 1k il 1% SESEIAR  188%  mx . gepueesao
Longmark (Shanghai) PRC PRC Registered capital 33.33% 33.33% 49.78% 49.78%  Provision of health care
management services
1E(£5) o8 o8 e HEh  B%% SRR A7 aupsesgy

Summarised consolidated financial information in respect of

the Group's material associate, Extrawell and its subsidiaries

(“Extrawell Group"), is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts shown in
the Extrawell’s consolidated financial statements prepared in

accordance with HKFRSs.

Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=+—HILEE

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 17. REEE QTN RER &)
2016 2015
—E-XREF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET
Current assets MBEE 275,399 253,618
Non-current assets ERBEE 885,454 885,025
Current liabilities mEBRE 115,182 117,180
Non-current liabilities EliE =K 29,772 25,084
Non-controlling interests FEPE IR (1,350) 4,489
Non-current assets include the following: ERHEEBRIETYER :
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENEE 161,911 175,930
Intangible assets B EE 1,807 1,807
Investments in convertible bonds ABRESFRE 362,960 349,220
Interest in an associate Bt N EIRER 333,866 335,466
Current assets include the following: TEEERE NHER
Trade receivables Z 5 EWKERR 57,019 57,568
Pledged bank deposits BIRBBITER 20,053 19,971
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR MRS 180,998 152,227
Current liabilities include the following: mEBBEERIETAER :
Accruals and other payables FEsT &R R E b T 308 68,614 66,134

Non-current liabilities include the following: JEREEERIE NIER
Convertible bonds AR E S 29,670 24,982

BRBERENNHEERAT | —B-AEFH Yo &
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17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

17. REEE QTN RER &)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=1+—HILEE

2016 2015
—E-RF —EhHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Revenue WA 142,201 128,833
Profit/(loss) profit for the year FRHF(BE)
— from continuing operations —REREREETR 27,400 (52,238)
— from discontinued operation —RECRIEEEER - 607,543
27,400 555,305
Other comprehensive (expenses)/income Hp2m (), s (7,880) 4,521
Profit and total comprehensive income FRRMNEEAE Y
for the year 19,520 559,826
Fair value and other equity accounting NEEREMER 2 S5 AR
adjustments 21,989 (112,935)
41,509 446,841
Proportion of the Group’ ownership interest  Z & E ARS8 7 Vi 15 HEHE 25 EL (A1
in Extrawell 19.14% 19.14%
Share of post-acquisition profits/(losses) and FRE(EUEEE ST (EE) &
other comprehensive income/(expense) HEmarmizs (%)
for the year 7,945 85,535
Unrealised gain on disposal of the SAL Group mIAEEHEHESEE 7 KEIR
to the Group & - (85,240)
Share of results of associates PaK(S) /NI 7,945 295
The above profit for the year includes the following: 2 FRRFBIEAT -
2016 2015
—E—AF —E-hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FHET
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - BE M&E 2 WS
plant and equipment 68 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR Z W - 611,867
Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited | Annual Report 2016
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17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 17. REEE QTN RER &)
Reconciliation of the above summarised consolidated financial EXEGREMEER B ERR GRS I
information to the carrying amount of the interest in Extrawell MRERZIBERERABE YR -

recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

2016 2015
—E—XF —T—RHEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Net assets of Extrawell Group BEEBEEFE 1,015,899 991,890
Less: Equity component of the convertible  Jf : HEE T2 AR RES >
bonds issued by Extrawell R (512,359) (5612,359)
503,540 479,531
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBENBE 2 EAERERLG
interest in Extrawell 19.14% 19.14%
The Group's share of net assets of Extrawell ZNEEEGEEESEZHE 96,378 91,782
Goodwill EES 156,258 156,258
Adjustment against non-controlling interests % 3F#ERS 5 2 FH 8 (99,722) (99,722)
Impairment loss on interest in an associate  REFE A RIER 2 REE R (84,707) (61,231)
Fair value and other equity accounting ANFEEREMER  SFTHAR
adjustments 59,896 56,547
Carrying amount of the Group's interest REERBENRBEZERZ
in Extrawell as an associate FREE 128,103 143,634
1/‘,.
AMBERENNEERAT | —B-AEEH /&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=1+—HILEE

17.

18.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
Information of associates that are not
individually material

. REEE DTSR &)

BrMSLEFERCHENR 2E
#

2016 2015
ZEB-REF —E-hEF
HK$°'000 HK$'000
TR T FHET
The Group's share of loss and total AEBELMFRNBEMEZEMX
comprehensive expense for the year ks = -
Carrying amount of the Group's interests REBRZFHER w2 iR
in these associates H{E - =
The unrecognised share of loss of FERRER 2 BB SN FEIE
an associate for the year (5,938) (4,287)
Cumulative unrecognised share of loss of RETRER Z FELE AIET1E
an associate (10,567) (4,629)

INVESTMENTS IN CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 27 April 2013, the Company entered into the conditional
sale and purchase agreement to acquire (i) convertible
bonds issued by Extrawell in an aggregate principal amount
of HK$320,650,000 (“Sale CB-1") from Dr. Mao at an
aggregate consideration of HK$320,000,000 (“Consideration
["); and (ii) convertible bonds issued by Extrawell in an
aggregate principal amount up to HK$256,520,000 (“Sale
CB-11"), from Dr. Mao at an aggregate consideration up to
a maximum amount of HK$256,000,000 (“Consideration
[1"). Consideration | was satisfied by the payment of cash
amounting to HK$120,000,000 and issuance of convertible
bonds in the principal amount of HK$200,000,000 by the
Company. Consideration Il will be satisfied by the issuance of
convertible bonds in the principal amount of HK$256,000,000
in four batches by the Company.

Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited |

18. RAIRKRESFHKRE

RZE—=FEA=-++8 K27
VEBRHEEERZE  NOEBEBLUWE
BB 1T A& 4258 /320,650,000 7T Ay
BmRESF([FETBRRES ) - &
K & %320,000,000 % T ([ E—]) :
RiBEBTRERBEERTASRE
% =2 /4 256,520,000 7% T #) 7] 8 1% (& 5
(IFEMRBRESR=])  BRE&Z=A
256,000,000 T ([RKE=]) - RE—HH
R AR BIE e R E120,000,000% T &
177X £ %1 5200,000,0005%8 7T 2 AT 42 f%
BHEXM - REZHHARRBBS Mt
1T N & ¥ 5 256,000,00078 T 2 Al AR
BEHIAT o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 2 -

18.

—NEZA=T—HLLEE

INVESTMENTS IN CONVERTIBLE BONDS
(Continued)

The Sale CB-l and Sale CB-II (collectively referred to as
the “Sale CBs") are zero coupon convertible bonds, with a
maturity date of the twentieth anniversary of the issue date
and are denominated in HK$. The Sale CBs entitle the bond
holders to convert them into shares of Extrawell at any time
during the period commencing from the date of issuance up
to the seventh business day prior to the maturity of the Sale
CBs, at the conversion price per share of HK$0.6413, subject
to anti-dilutive clauses.

The fair values of the Sale CBs and its components on
initial recognition and of the derivative component as at
31 March 2016 and 2015 are determined based on the
valuation conducted by an independent professional valuer.
The movements of the debt components and derivative
components of Sale CBs for the year are set out as below:

18. RAIAREBHFNRE &)

SENBRRESF REEUBRRESR=
GEFEATRRES D ATSTBRR
3:;% BB ARTEBEN - TEFE

CABTEE - FEBRRESFE TE
%hﬁ/\ﬁéﬂ - BETHHREEREN
BREHFD A ECEEEERN B
IR ES LR ARBERD - BREA
BRRARHD0.64138 T - AR REH KR
PR il o

E\H/\A\

AHRRES & R B SR RITER
T REERZET-—RE=A=+—
FEDERBIEXGEEMETZ
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁém o FNFFE AR EFEF R
DROTERD 2 FEFHIIMT :

Debt Derivative
component component Total
BEHD TER S st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FET
As at 1 April 2014 RZE—NFEA—A 13,245 195,695 208,940
Acquisition of Sale CB-Il — first batch WERFERRRES - —
E—it 2,572 37,571 40,143
Acquisition of Sale CB-Il — second batch WEFEAJ#EES = —
i 2,628 31,010 33,638
Acquisition of Sale CB-II — third batch WREFERRRES - —
F=H 2,533 30,014 32,547
Effective interest income (note 8) BB WA (HZE8) 3,053 - 3,053
Change in fair value (note 8) N EEE(fEs) - (60,953) (60,953)
At 31 March 2015 RZZE-—RF=A=+—H 24,031 233,337 257,368
Acquisition of Sale CB-II — forth batch WERRFERRRES - —
St 2,801 52,199 55,000
Effective interest income (note 8) BEBRF WA (HE8) 5,696 5,696
Change in fair value (note 8) N EZE(fE8) = (568,509) (568,509)
As at 31 March 2016 RZT—R"F=A=+—H 32,528 227,027

EMBEREVREERAF |

—RNEER
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18. INVESTMENTS IN CONVERTIBLE BONDS

(Continued)

The acquisition of Sale CB-lI was completed on 25 October
2013. The acquisitions of the first, second and third batches
of Sale CB-Il, each batch having a principal amount of
HK$64,130,000, were completed on 24 April 2014, 30 August
2014 and 31 December 2014, respectively. The acquisition of
the fourth batch of Sale CB-Il was completed on 30 April 2015.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group recognised
(i) loss on acquisition of investments in convertible bonds
of approximately HK$62,161,000 in profit or loss which
is resulted from the difference between the fair value of
Consideration Il of HK$117,161,000 satisfied by the issuance
of convertible bonds in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$64,000,000 by the Company and the aggregate fair value
of investments in convertible bonds of HK$55,000,000 as at
acquisition date; and (ii) subsequent decrease in fair value of
the derivative component of investments in convertible bonds
of HK$58,509,000 as at 31 March 2016.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group recognised
(i) a loss on acquisition of investments in convertible bonds
of approximately HK$277,821,000 in profit or loss which
is resulted from the difference between the fair value of
Consideration Il of HK$384,149,000 satisfied by the issuance
of convertible bonds in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$192,000,000 in three batches by the Company and the
aggregate fair value of investments in convertible bonds of
HK$106,328,000 as at the respective acquisition dates; and (ii)
subsequent decrease in fair value of the derivative component
of investments in convertible bonds of HK$60,953,000 as at
31 March 2015.

Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited |
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18. RAIAREBHFNKRE &)

WESEATRRES BN —=F
TAZtHRAERK - KEASBES A
64,130,000 C 2 —# F-H|EE=
HrEFETBRRESS 2R - —NO
FOA-—+WAE  —FE—WFNA=1+H
F_ZE—ME+-_A=+—HEK - £
B FETBRRES—ERN-_T—HFNH
B=+H%K -

HE_Z-—XRNF=ZA=+—AHLFE-
REEBRBLREERNERWETRIRESRE
&2 1B #62,161,0008 T © ThER A
N Al R 1T AN £ 48 %8 /64,000,000 %
TZABRBREFTHNRE-_Z2ATE
117,161,000 7T B2 R U B B B A #2 AR &
HIE 2 A F{E#REE55,000,0008 T2 =
REA R()TRREFREZITELH 2
AFERZE—AF=ZA=1+—RHE&E—F
458,509,000 7T

HE-_Z-AF=ZA=+—HBLFE &
SERBRKR)ERUEATRRESRE
2 KG51849277,821,000/8 70 © TR AR
AIE BT A S 4258 5192,000,0007% 7T
2o BMBRESFETNNRE-_ZAFE
384,149,000 7t B2 70 % e B B ER Al # R
EHEE 2 A F(ELE106,328,0007 7T
CEBELA  RINEIRTBBESR
BENITEBDZATFERZE—RAF=A
=+—H#E—#F4 60,953,000 7T
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=+—HILEE

18. INVESTMENTS IN CONVERTIBLE BONDS
(Continued)
As at 31 March 2016, the carrying amounts of the debt and
the derivative components of the investments in convertible
bonds are HK$32,528,000 (2015: HK$24,031,000) and
HK$227,027,000 (2015: HK$233,337,000) respectively.

At 31 March 2016

25.10.2013 24.04.2014
“E-NE “E-NF
+A-+EH8 WA-tMAE

18. RAIAREBHFNRE &)

R-ZE—XRE=ZA=+—"8 " BEX
BB ESFEENMEBIZ2EAAEASD
Bl /32,528,000 B L (=& — A F :
24,031,000 7T ) }%.227,027,00058 7T ( =
T—F4 1 233,337,000/87T) °

BE-ZE-XR"F=ZA=+—H
30.08.2014 31.12.2014 30.4.2015 31.03.2016

IR “E-NF “F-1fF ZE-RE
NA=+B +ZA=1+-B MA=+3 = =A=t-H

Stock price RE HK$0.485% 7T HK$0.4%7T  HK$0.335%7T  HK$0.325% 7T  HK$0.55%7T = HK$0.28/ 7
Exercise price 108 HK$0.6413% 7L HK$0.6413%7T HK$0.6413% 7T HKS0.6413 L HK$0.6413% T HKS$0.6413 70
Discount rate i3k 17.98% 18.21% 18.44% 19.04% 18.76% 19.92%
Risk-free rate (note a) ERRFIE(H2a) 2.42% 2.7% 2.28% 2.24% 1.81% 1.62%
Expected volatility (note b) TEEiEIE(#:2b) 53.00% 63.71% 62.61% 61.73% 58.62% 59.44%
Expected dividend yield — BHIRRBMz = (Fitc)

(note ¢) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

At 31 March 2015

BE-ZT-HFE=HA=+—H

25.10.2013 24.04.2014 30.08.2014 31.12.2014 31.03.2015

%= —F-mE “F-mF ~“F-mF —F-0%

TAZ+RR WAZ+EA NAZTE +ZR=+-H =ZR=+-H

Stock price B HK$0.485/ T HK$0.4/87  HK$0.335/87T  HK$0.3267T  HK$0.327%7T

Exercise price 158 HK$0.6413% HK$0.6413%87T HK$0.6413E7L HK$0.6413%87T HKS0.6413% 7L

Discount rate HRE 17.98% 18.21% 18.44% 19.04% 18.52%

Risk-free rate (note a) EERTIE (Hia) 2.42% 2.7% 2.28% 2.24% 1.72%

Expected volatility (note b) EHRE D) 53.00% 63.71% 62.61% 61.73% 60.46%

Expected dividend yield (note ¢)  BERERER(Mitc) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Notes: Wi

(a) The rate was determined with reference to the yields of Hong
Kong government bonds and treasury bills as at the date of
valuation.

(b)  Based on the historical price volatility of Extrawell over the bond
period.

(c) Estimated by reference to the historical dividend payout of
Extrawell.

EMBEREVRRERAE | ZB-AFFER

(a) mAXTIZENLERREEBFES X
EHNESEETE -

(b))  EREHFHREBEENBERERE -

(c) SBERBERSIRMEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 2 —=F

19.

—NEZA=T—HLLEE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

9. M EE

In-process
R&D
mEERE
HK$'000
FET

COST AND CARRYING VALUES
At 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016

RARRE{E
RZE—RAFNA—BXK

RNE=RA=+—H 1,373,224

The in-process research and development project (the
“In-process R&D") represented an in-process research
and development project involving an oral insulin product
“a method of
e

in relation to the Product are

(“the Product”). The patents of an invention
production of oil-phase preparation of oral insulin (—
AR S M ERE A"
registered under the joint names of Fosse Bio-Engineering
Development Limited (“Fosse Bio”) and Tsinghua University,
Beijing ("THU") granted by State Intellectual Property Office
of the PRC and United States Patent and Trademark Office
of the United States of America granted on 4 August 2004
and 28 March 2006 respectively and will be expired on 20
April 2021 and 12 April 2022 respectively. Fosse Bio is a
subsidiary of Smart Ascent, which became a subsidiary of
the Company upon completion of the acquisition on 28 July
2014. In addition, Fosse Bio and THU have entered into the
agreements in 1998 (the “THU Collaboration Arrangement”) in
connection with the research and development of the Product.
Pursuant to the THU Collaboration Arrangement, which
expires in 2018, Fosse Bio would be entitled to commercialise
the relevant technologies of the Product and to manufacture
and sell the Product on an exclusive basis, and THU is entitled
to 1.5% of Fosse Bio’s annual sales upon commercialisation
of the Product. Accordingly, Fosse Bio has the exclusive right
for the commercialisation of the Product for the duration of
the unexpired term of the THU Collaboration Agreement.

Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited |

WIEET2AEIER ([HEBIBDES R
AMRPESREM[Edm ) EEETOHE
EH - —BEAMZEm —EEE D RE
SERMBRBETE 2 ERABLEED T
BERAF(BE]) RIEREERE(E
FERE|)HREEEZL  TATRBEEXR
MBEERNREEERENREZRED 5
RZZEZNFENANBERZZEZERF=A
Z+HN\BRE YD RR_T_—FW
A-+AR-_ZE-_—FMA+_-HFIH-
BHREECZHBAT  WRARREZ
Z-MOF+ A+ N\BRKBRBEBEKA/R
NAIZMBERF o BIERBEKRE
R—NNANFRITZEFRMBZER L
([ EHRERE]) - REZBENR -F
—N\FRHZEFERERGZ  BLEER
mibZEmZ BB M B R EE RHE
ZEm MBEARERNZERE R
TEREBEEZERLE1.5% 2 FHER - Bk -
BUEEAEMBEGETRERFHNES
Bt ZEmZ BEHE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=+—HILEE

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 19. BILEE &)

The recoverable amount of the In-process R&D is determined
based on fair value calculations. The fair value calculations
used cash flow projections prepared by the management
using certain key assumptions, which were selected by the
management on assumption that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause
the carrying amount of the In-process R&D to exceed
the recoverable amount. The expected future economic
benefits attributable to the In-process R&D approved by the
management cover a 10-year period and a discount rate of
23.10% (2015: 27.99%) was used. Key assumptions for the
fair value calculations were based on estimated cash inflows
derived from budgeted sales and gross margins which were
estimated based on management’s expectations for the
market development.

Furthermore, legal advisors of the Company have informed
that if the THU collaboration agreement is early terminated
or expired, Fosse Bio will no longer have the exclusive right
of the commercialisation of the Product. Any of Fosse Bio
or THU will have the right to independently commercialise
the patented product without the consent of each other.
However, given that THU is an educational unit and does not
engage in commercialisation of the Product, the directors of
the Company have prepared the cash flow projections for
the 10-year period using the assumption that Fosse Bio will
continue to have the exclusive right for commercialisation of
the Product after 2018.

As at 31 March 2016, the directors of the Company have
performed impairment assessments on the intangible assets
by reference to the valuation conducted by Roma Appraisals
Limited, an independent qualified valuer. The recoverable
amount of the intangible assets is determined based on the
estimated fair value of the In-process R&D. Based on the
assessment, the recoverable amount of the Group's intangible
assets is estimated to be higher than the carrying amount and
therefore the directors of the Company considered that no
impairment is necessary as at 31 March 2016 (2015: nil).

HEAR s EeBNERATENEE
BE e  AVEFEEACRERESRAET
FTERBREC2BRESTREEA - MZEE
ERLBEEERAMNZERRZAME
BB LT 2SR RE REAE
BB AT E & RE 2 RERIEIE - AEEER
2 T8 B AR AR 2 TE HA R SR A B I 2R
Z1098 > WHRA23.10% (=T —HF :
27.99%) 2 BRIRE - ATFEFEEACZEE
BEEXBHEZHERERERNESGH
ZHEFRERADRBEEEEHMISER
ZTEHIES o

AN ARBERBRCERT  RES
EMEHRRERLLLSER - EBEHTH
BRERMICZEMZERE - RIELHBE
REFEA—STHAIBIRLZERBEENZ
EmETERIL MBAHTRE - R
- ERBEREE-—HERBMLES
THREMZBML  ARABDEFDHRERR
BEBR T - N\FREBEEEMIZ
EmEEE RETFHZRSRER
A o

RZZE—RE=R=+—H ARQAESF
EE2E-—RBUABRMAEM-ESFH
BRAEBERARET 2 HENETEEE
TTRER G - BIEEEZREESETIR
BNEBENRETATEEE - REAH
Al RZB-RF=ZA=+—B - &R
AEEZBPEEN A RESEMEHFTER
BRAREE ARREERRBARETE
B\ EERLREEB(ZE—0F
&)

-
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20. TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group's trading terms with customers are mainly on
credit. The credit terms generally range from 30 to 180
days. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. For new
customers, payment in advance is normally required. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
senior management.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables as at 31
March 2016 and 2015, presented based on the invoice dates,
which approximated the respective revenue recognition dates
at the end of the reporting period.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ —ZT— NF=A=+—HILFE

20. B 5 BWAR

REEBREFZRHGERKNBAUEE
FR#ET  EEBHAENTI0E180H T
L -FREFHUBEZSEERE - #H1X
F—RABEMNRK - REBE N BEIBIEH
KBz EBUKGRE  SAEEESTHE
Bl ERRRIR o

RIBE-—RFR-E-HF=A=+—
B REZFZAH(EFHRANRS IR
ZHERAEEE) 252 B B REERR Z IR
BT

2016 2015
—EB-RF —T—ARF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET TET

30HEIAT
31£260H
61290H
91£180H

30 days or less
31 to 60 days
61 to 90 days
91 to 180 days

- 2,610
- 1,765
- 2,929
- 2,688

= 9,992

The Group did not have trade debtor as at 31 March 2016
(2015: The Group's trade debtor was an aggregate carrying
amount of HK$2,688,000 which was past due and for which
the Group did not make a provision for impairment).

The Group did not hold any collateral over these balances.

Ageing of trade receivables which were past due but not
impaired:

—E—XRF=ZA=1+—8 AEETE
BHEE(CE—AF AEEEHEREZ
4205 H (E /52,688,000 7T © © @ E H AR
SEBEWARB L EL R ERHE)

o

REE W B L F SR A E MRS -

ERMERRE 2 E Z BB 2 MRk

2016 2015

— N —T—RHF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FH&xT FHET

30 days or less 30 AT - 2,688

Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited |
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21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 21.

22.

—NEZA=T—HLLEE

ANFE - - RERHEMEKRRK

RECEIVABLES b |
2016 2015
—"F —T—hF
HK$°'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Rental, management fee and other deposits 4% - BB R HMiRS 2,208 613
Deposits paid (Note) Bt (M) 150,832 1,898
Others Hih 219 5,464
Total 5T 153,259 7,975

Note:Included in deposits paid was an amount of
HK$150,000,000 (2015: Nil) which was paid to an
Escrow Agent as an Escrow Fund in connection with a
proposed capital injection into a joint venture pursuant
to a capital injection agreement entered into by the
Group with other parties on 30 March 2016 (“the Capital
Injection Agreement”). Subsequent to the end of the
reporting period on 6 June 2016, the Capital Injection
Agreement was lapsed as certain conditions pursuant to
the Capital Injection Agreement were not fulfilled up to
that date. The Escrow Fund deposited was fully refunded
to the Group on 7 June 2016.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

MiaE : EfTREF

» 150,000,000 7T ( =
T-FHF: E)ENTFREREES
FRBBEASEREMATR =S
—RNRE=ZRA=1+RHIILZTEWH
(DrEwEl ) 2ERAEn¥IE
ZAAEHES  cRAmEHKRE R
T—XRNENANB - TEWMHED K
o AEERRBREIEWMENSET

HEHBEZBRERK - FANTE
ELOR-_E-R"FRNALHZH

REOIAKEE -

22 AtHESHEE

2016 2015
—RE —RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Listed investments FiRE
Bonds listed outside Hong Kong REBAIN LT ZEH 1,957 2,467
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REB LM ZREFS 1,892 2,051
Equity securities listed outside Hong Kong ~ REBUUIN FH 2 IREE S 3,072 2,369
6,921 6,887
Analysed as RAT A7
Current NE] - _
Non-current ERH 6,921 6,887
Total 5T 6,921 6,887
The fair values of these listed bonds and shares are based on hE FmEFHATERRESRSE Hﬁifi
market bid prices at the end of each reporting period. TS EREET - /
) /&
EMBEREVREERAT | —NEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=1+—HILEE

23.

24,

25.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash and bank balances
held by the Group with original maturity of three months or
less and carry interest at prevailing deposit rates which range
from 0.01% to 0.72% (2015: 0.01% to 0.72%) per annum.

TRADE PAYABLES

The aging analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice
date at the end of the reporting period, is as follows:

23. RITHER

REE

RITEHR LA BREARERTAZRAER

RITHERR -

R B 7% =18 A =k B 52 i

M ZEEFEARFAERGTE  FENTEF
0.01%Z20.72% (ZZF—HF : 001% =

0.72%) °

24, E5HEA
W3R B R

BBEMNERRERASE

P2 BRER AT

2016 2015

—E-XRF —T—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FH&xT FHT

30 days or less 30 AT - 2,541
31 to 60 days 31260H - 1,714
61 to 180 days 612180H 8 2,844
8 7,099

The average credit period on purchase of goods normally

BEEmZTHEERBENF60RE0

range from 60 days to 90 days. H

FUNDS RECEIVED IN ADVANCE 25. EWESE
2016 2015
—E—XE —T—RHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Deposits for Convertible Bond AMRES RS 50,000 -
The deposits were received by the Company from a ARNamMEBERITZASBEREE

subscriber in relation to the Convertible Bonds to be
issued by the Company in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$50,000,000. The Convertible Bonds were issued by the
Company subsequent to the end of the reporting period on 13
April 2016 (note 36).

Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited |

50,000,000 7T #Y A #2 BB 77 B SR IE AW
RzEd - IRREFHAR AR HE S
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26. LOAN TO A NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST 26.
AND AMOUNT DUE FROM THE SUBSIDIARY

[6] 7 422 AR B8 5 B K I B W Bt
NCIPA ) FNCTE S|

OF AN ASSOCIATE
2016 2015
—E-KREF —T-RF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Loan to a non-controlling interest MFEE R E R
Fordnew (Note a) f@u (Hfata) 4,646 3,657
Amount due from the subsidiary of JEU B N B 2 B A R I8
an associate
Extrawell (BVI) (Note b) BEBVI(KaEb) 16,192 10,378
Notes: izt -
(a)  This represents a loan made by Smart Ascent to Fordnew (a) IEEEBBEBHA-ZT——FHA-T+H

B ERBEAENELERAT(E
BB 2 B o ORI R A F
B - BEHBRGRAMBREM T2
PR -

Industrial Limited (“Fordnew"”) pursuant to the loan agreement
dated 25 May 2011. The loan is unsecured and non-interest
bearing. Details of the loan are disclosed in note 27(c) to these
consolidated financial statements.

R-T—MEMALR EBEL—F
RE#) /52,789,000 T 2 RRFBAME ©
R-IEBE—NE+A-+NB2ZKETK
Bl BEFERARRFERACZREBRES A
10,579,000/ 7T % 19,421,000/ 7T °

On 7 April 2014, Fordnew made a drawdown notice amounting
to about HK$2,789,000, and prior to the completion of
Acquisition on 28 July 2014, the aggregate utilised and
unutilised balances were HK$10,579,000 and HK$19,421,000
respectively.

As at 31 March 2015, principal amounts of HK$4,807,000, R-ZE-—AF=ZA=Z+—0 X%
HK$1,190,000 and HK$4,582,000 were required to be repaid # 4,807,000 7 7T ~ 1,190,000 & T &
after 8 years from April 2011, April 2012 and April 2014 4,682,000 THRER-F——F @
respectively. Accordingly, the balance is classified as non- A ZZ-——FMAR-T-NEOAR
current. Such non-current interest-free loan to a non-controlling FIN\EREE - Bt ZRBERSEA

interest is recognised at its fair value of HK$2,977,000 upon
the acquisition of Smart Ascent with an effective interest rate
of 26.99% per annum. During the year ended 31 March 2016,
imputed interest income of HK$1,089,000 (2015: HK$580,000)
has been credited to profit or loss.

FEBNER o fELAE R 926,99 % Ui 1
18 BT IEERAE S 2 FERIHAEE R B
E3%2,977,0008 7t 2 A FEDHER °
BHE-_ZT—XF=A=+—H1tFE "
1,089,000/% 7T ( —Z — A4 : 580,000/%
JL) 2 (HEF B A B AR eR A B2 o

(b)  As at 31 March 2016, the directors of the Company expect (b)) MZT-—RE=ZA=+—H  AQFAE=S
that they will not demand for repayment within one year from EHRETENREARES —FAE
the end of the reporting period. Accordingly, the balance B o Bt - RSB ERIEAS o R
is classified as non-current. Such non-current interest-free BENRME AR Z NSRS FIRCIE
amount due from the subsidiary of an associate is recognised HAFE16,192,0008 (= —HF :
at its fair value of HK$16,192,000 (2015: HK$10,378,000) 10,378,000/ L) R + BIRFHM X B
with an effective interest rate of 26.99% per annum. During 2699% - BE_T—RF=A=+—H
the year ended 31 March 2016, imputed interest income of IEFE 5,814,000 T (=ZF—HF : e
HK$5,814,000 (2015: Nil) has been credited to consolidated B2 HEFSRARRRENGRERE T o
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. REMEEKERE - /_//
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ —ZT— NF=A=+—HILFE

27. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING 27. Eﬁ#?”"ﬂﬁ%?ﬁ&ﬁﬁ#ﬁﬂi%

INTERESTS AND FORMER NON- BRE ENHELATRZHE
CONTROLLING INTERESTS, AMOUNT DUE AREAIRERREBFERERDN
TO THE SUBSIDIARY OF AN ASSOCIATE ETA
AND LOAN FROM A NON-CONTROLLING
INTEREST
2016 2015
—NE —E—RHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THExT FHET
Amounts due to non-controlling interests JEST FEVERR A 2 5K TE
Fordnew (Notes a and b) t&it(HfaFalkb) 22,351 22,351
Groupmark Investment Group Limited Groupmark Investment
(Notes a and b) Group Limited(#f&FaXb) 520 520
22,871 22,871
Amounts due to former non-controlling FE R IEIE AR RE S T TE
interests
Zheng Chang Xue (Notes a and b) BE 2 (Hatakn) 559 559
Hou Shi Chang (Notes a and b) &t & (fYitafib) 165 165
Feel So Good Limited (Notes a and b) Feel So Good Limited
(B #takb) 99 99
823 823
Amount due to the subsidiary of FEAH B A R 2 i B A B FB
an associate
Extrawell (BVI) (Note a) BB BV (Kita) 41,947 41,947
Loan to a non-controlling interest MFEIE RS E R
Fordnew (Note ¢) f&@E (Hfatce) 4,646 3,657

Notes:

(a)

(b)

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

The amounts represent contributions made by non-controlling
interests of Fosse Bio in respect of working capital and
operation funds for the further clinical trials of the oral
insulin project. The amounts due to non-controlling interests
and former non-controlling interests were respectively
HK$22,871,000 and HK$823,000 at the date of Acquisition on
28 July 2014.

This represents a loan made by Fordnew to Fosse Bio pursuant
to the loan agreement entered into between Smart Ascent
and Fordnew on 25 May 2011. The loan is unsecured and non-
interest bearing. Details of the loan are disclosed in note 26(a)
to these consolidated financial statements.

Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited |

(a) MARREER  RERAFEETEER

13K ©

(b) FREEFEREZABLARZEERS
MORBESEER/#E—PRRABRNL
BESZHR - RKEBEH-_ZT—mFt
RAZ+N\B - ZEMNFEERERRIERIE
AR 2 B 9 B 22,871,000 7T &
823,000/ 7T °

() BERNEBMRENR-_ZT——FRA-+1
Ea&t—tiﬁizmﬂﬁﬁmﬂaﬁg% ZETRHEZE
REBRARERNS - BERARHREE
E!M%i&i’%ﬁﬁé}‘ze(a)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HmRE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=+—HILEE

28. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised
by the Group and the movement thereon during the current

year and prior year.

28. EEBEER
NTAXEERZ, T BEEHARMRE
HRAFEREAFEL LR -

Intangible

assets and

revaluation

of leasehold

land and

buildings

BREER

EfHEL

kT

HK$'000

FET

At 1 July 2014 RZZE—NFEEA—H 1,934
Charged to other comprehensive income A E At 2 e FOBR 237
Exchange differences b 3, = 28 3
At 31 March 2015 R-ZZE—RF=A=+—H 2,174
Charged to other comprehensive income A E A 2 i as fOBR 271
Exchange differences N Z5 (1)
At 31 March 2016 R-ZZE—R"F=ZA=+—H 2,444

At 31 March 2016, the Group had estimated unused tax
losses of HK$48,559,000 (2015: HK$48,559,000) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. These tax losses have
not been agreed by the relevant authorities.

EMBEREVREERAE

R-ZE—XRE=ZA=+—8  KR&EHKHT
BAB AR IEE 848,659,000 L (=&
—F 4 :48,559,000/8 T) - Al A{EEKEEA
BEF - HRKRETEIRBEFRE - W
WHEREAREBEBEEREERBEAE -
BHEERMARRTERIBBIE

| —E-AEER / Ay
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=1+—HILEE

Pursuant to the placing agreement and subscription
agreement entered on 18 February 2013, the Company issued
convertible bonds (“Convertible Bonds"”) with coupon rate
of 0.1% per annum and an aggregate principal amount of
HK$133,000,000 at par on 11 June 2013. The Convertible
Bonds mature on the tenth anniversary of the date of issue.

The Convertible Bonds entitle the bond holders to convert
them into shares of the Company at any time within 10
years from the date of issue of the convertible bonds, at the
Conversion price per share of HK$0.4, subject to anti-dilutive
clauses.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, Convertible Bonds

of an aggregate principal amounts of HK$6,800,000 were
converted into ordinary shares of the Company.

Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited |

29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 29. ERESH
The movement of liability component of Convertible Bonds RRARBETZARKRES 2 BELS E
issued by the Company is set out below: T -
Convertible  Convertible  Convertible ~ Convertible ~ Convertible
Bonds Bonds | Bonds |l Bonds Il Bonds IV Total
BREs MaREF— TARESRC TBERESZ TERERD @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL THEL THEL THEL THEL TAL
At 1 April 2014 RZZE—NENA—H 853 51,375 - - - 52,228
Issuance of Convertible Bonds BT ER - - 21,115 233,647 - 254,662
Interest charges FERY 64 12,102 2,946 37,245 = 52,357
Conversion to ordinary shares Bt ALER 917) (6,930) - - - (7,847)
At 31 March 2015 R-E-AF=A=1+—H - 56,547 24,061 270,792 - 351,400
Issuance of Convertible Bonds BT R ES - - - - 7,790 7,790
Interest charges FIBEL - 13,251 5,941 32,593 1,664 53,449
Conversion to ordinary shares BEALBR = (9,494) - - - (9,494)
At 31 March 2016 R=ZB-AE=A=1+—-H - 60,305 30,002 303,385 9,454 403,146
Convertible Bonds R ES

BRE-_Z-—=F_A+TN\HTLZEE®R
BNRBWHE  ARBR_F-=FXA
T BEREEZERTEAFEER01%2H
mEkER((AIRRES])  A2EER
133,000,000 7T ° AT R EH N E1TH
HiEst T BFERRM -

ABRESRE T ESHE AR - RET
AR BB 75 B HIAR 1 F M BE RS S AT AR (R
FABMBARRRIRD - BRESEBRRN
0487 » BRREEIRKRH -

HE-Z—RE=A=+—HILEE K
% #4%4 /56,800,000 BT 2 A BRRESD
it AR NR LB -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HmRE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=+—HILEE

29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 29.

The movement of liability component of the Convertible
Bonds for the year is set out below:

R ES#)
ERTRRES Y BEHS 2 BB EH
—F :

Principal amount Carrying amount

NG REE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FAT FAT

As at 1 April 2014 RZE—NFMA—HA 6,800 853
Interest charge MEMZ = 64
Conversion to ordinary shares R T m R (6,800) (917)
31 March 2015 RZE—RF=A=1+—H - -
31 March 2016 R-B—AF=A=+—H - _

Convertible Bonds |

The Company issued convertible bonds in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$436,800,000 and HK$51,200,000
respectively on 25 October 2013 and 27 December 2013
(collectively referred to as “Convertible Bonds |”) for the
acquisition of Sale CB-l and 450,000,000 ordinary shares of
Extrawell. The Convertible Bonds | with a zero coupon rate
mature on the tenth anniversary of the date of issue.

The Convertible Bonds | entitle the bond holders to convert
them into shares of the Company at any time within 10 years
from the date of issue of the Convertible Bonds |, at the
conversion price per share of HK$0.4, subject to anti-dilution
clauses.

If the Convertible Bonds | have not been converted, they will
be redeemed at par on the tenth anniversary of the date of
issue.

EMBEREVRRERAE | ZB-AFFER

ABRES—
ARBER-_E—ZF+A=-+HEBR=
E—=FF+ AT ERABTASHEES
Al /436,800,000 7T &% 51,200,000 7% 7T
BRI AR E 5 (o [ ATRARE S —1) - A
W& R (E % — K& 450,000,000 A%
BRILER TRERESF —2EESXA
T REITHERTRFERIE -

AgRESR BT ESHEAERN - RNE
TR AR (B 75 B H1R + 5 BB B A 7T i
BHE—ERAARARKY  ERERER
B{20.48TT - AR REEERES] o

i TR B — R - BN EITH
Hie st +BEFE BIRmETAED -
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29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

Convertible Bonds | (Continued)

The Convertible Bonds | are issued in HK$. The fair
values of the liability component were HK$42,886,000
and HK$4,981,000 for the Convertible Bonds | issued by
the Company at 25 October 2013 and 27 December 2013
respectively, which has been determined by the discounted
cashflow approach using the prevailing market interest rate
of similar non-convertible bonds and taking into account the
credit risk of the Company. The fair values of the conversion
option of HK$671,267,000 and HK$82,161,000 classified
as equity component for the Convertible Bonds | issued by
the Company at 25 October 2013 and 27 December 2013
respectively are calculated using the Binomial Model. The
inputs into the model were as follows:

29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ —ZT— NF=A=+—HILFE

AR ES )
AR ES — (&)
AR ES — BT -
—=F+A-+HRAR-ZTE—=F+=A
Zt+tHEBTABRKRESF—Z2BEHS D
E{E 5 Bl A& 42,886,000 7T & 4,981,000
B DEBRBBRASREE  FAE
LA MREFNIRITM IS T EEE -
W RARRZEERRE - ARAFRE
— =+ A-+HEBRER-_T—=F+_A
ZtHtEBEETABMRES - HEAER
by 2 #a ki A F1E DRI A671,267,000
7T %82,161,0008 7T » A ZBAE
Kt c MARK ZBBRAT

ARAIRZE

25 October 27 December
2013 2013
—E—=F —E—=4
+A=+HB +=ZA=++H
Principal Principa
amount of amount of
HK$436,800,000 HK$51,200,000
REH NG|

436,800,000/ 7T 51,200,000/ 7T

Stock price M1E HK$0.91 HK$0.99
Exercise price 1B HK$0.40 HK$0.40
Discount rate ARIR & 26.12% 26.24%
Risk-free rate (note a) ERRFIE(ffiFa) 1.83% 2.32%
Expected volatility (note b) TEHERR 18 (M aEn) 86.71% 85.53%
Expected dividend yield (note c) TEHERRR B e K (A tce) 0.00% 0.00%
Notes: Bist -

(a)  The rate was determined with reference to the yields of Hong (a) FEFERH2E®R 1E1EEIHﬂ§/%BUﬁ1 55

Kong government bonds and treasury bills as at the date of
valuation.

(b)  Based on the historical price volatility of the Company over the
past bond period.

(c) Estimated by reference to the historical dividend payout of the
Company.

Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited |

BHNERRET

(o)  ERNEFBEARRRNBEBRLE -

(0  REARFRRBEREIRMNGEFEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=+—HILEE

29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 29.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, Convertible Bonds |
with aggregate principal amounts of HK$64,000,000 (2015:
HK$60,400,000) were converted into ordinary shares of the
Company.

The movement of liability component of Convertible Bonds |

AR E S )
HE-_Z—XRFZA=1+—HBItFEE K
4 #8%8 564,000,000/ T(ZE— A F :
60,400,000/ 7T ) 2 A A E FH — 1 B R
BARNREREAR -

FAASRRES—Z

puid

B D 2 ZE) 5%

for the year is set out below: s
Principal Carrying
amount amount
PN BREE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FHIT
As at 1 April 2014 R-Z—NFEEPA—H 476,000 51,375
Interest charge Mem%z - 12,166
Conversion to ordinary shares it AT ER (60,400) (6,994)
31 March 2015 R-ZE—AFE=A=+—8H 415,600 56,547
Interest charge AMBRAX - 13,251
Conversion to ordinary shares B0 ST IEAR (64,000) (9,493)
31 March 2016 R-ZZE-—XR"E=A=+—H 351,600 60,305
Convertible Bonds Il AR ES =

The Company issued convertible bonds in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$64,000,000, HK$64,000,000 and
HK$64,000,000 respectively on 24 April 2014, 30 August
2014 and 31 December 2014 (collectively referred to as
“Convertible Bonds I1"”) for the acquisition of Sale CB-II
first batch, second batch and third batch respectively. The
Convertible Bonds Il with zero coupon rate will mature on the
tenth anniversary of the date of issue.

The Convertible Bonds Il entitle the bond holders to convert
them into shares of the Company at any time within 10 years
from the date of issue of the Convertible Bonds I, at the initial
conversion price per share of HK$0.4, subject to anti-dilution

RABERZZT—NMFMHA=+MNA - =
Z—NMENAZ+BR-Z—NE+_A
=+ —BEITARE LD 5 464,000,000
Y57 + 64,000,000 7T }2.64,000,0007% 7T
BRI AR E 5 (0 [ TR ES 1) - A
DRRIES —Ht c FEoHREZREER
BMRESZ - AIRKREF-_CEMEER
T REITHEBRTREERIE -

B ER BT ESHEAERN - RNE
TRl A B2 — B & + S ARER A5 AT 2
BERF_BHRARRARRD - MHRERE
BERBMAET  AXREEERE

clauses. %) o
P
. S
4 é K
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29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

Convertible Bonds Il (Continued)

If the Convertible Bonds Il have not been converted, they will
be redeemed at par on the tenth anniversary of the date of
issue.

The Convertible Bonds Il are issued in HK$. The fair values of
the liability component were HK$6,622,000, HK$6,916,000
and HK$7,577,000 for the Convertible Bonds Il issued by the
Company at 24 April 2014, 30 August 2014 and 31 December
2014 respectively, which has been determined by the
discounted cash flow approach using the prevailing market
interest rate of similar non-convertible bonds and taking into
account the credit risk of the Company. The fair values of
the conversion option of HK$131,454,000, HK$118,983,000
and HK$112,597,000 classified as equity component for the
Convertible Bonds Il issued by the Company at 24 April 2014,
30 August 2014 and 31 December 2014 respectively are
calculated using Binomial Model. The inputs into the model
were as follows:

MAZ+mMA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=1+—HILEE

9. EARESH &)

ABRRES =8
Al A B — R - AR EITH
Hiest+EFE R IREETAED -

AHRES Z OB T ETT « AR A FIRN
“E-UFERA=-+IA - —T—m{EFEN
A=+BER=_ZE—NM&F+=-_A=+—H%
FZABRRESF—_NEEEAKSBIHAQ
Y 1& % 6,622,000/% 7T * 6,916,000 7% JT
£7,677,000% 7T - Th R E U IEA R
BEHFENBTMBENEZURBESREE
BT YEFERARANEERR - A2
ANANR—_E—HFOMA=-+TmAE - =
Z—NENAZ+BER-Z—NE+—A
=+ AFEITHIRRES O ERED
NF{EA131,454,00078 7T * 118,983,000
77T % 112,697,000 Tt (5 B S
D) DERBZEAERGTE - g ARz
HEMT

24 April 30 August 31 December
2014 2014 2014
T —ZT-F —ZT—mEF
NA=+H +=ZA=+—H

Principal Principal Principal
amount of amount of amount of

HK$64,000,000 HK$64,000,000 HK$64,000,000

NG NG N

64,000,000/ C 64,000,000/7C 64,000,000/ 7T

Stock price IRfE HK$1.42 HK$1.19 HK$1.16
Exercise price 1TE M8 HK$0.40 HK$0.40 HK$0.40
Discount rate BRIRE 25.46% 24.92% 23.78%
Risk-free rate (note a) mERBFIE (M iFa) 2.20% 1.84% 1.85%
Expected volatility (note b) TEER R bR (AfiEb) 84.57% 82.53% 80.79%
Expected dividend yield (note ¢)  FBERARR BU = (Histc) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Notes: Hiat -

(@) The rate was determined with reference to the yields of Hong
Kong government bonds and treasury bills as at the date of
valuation.

(b)  Based on the historical price volatility of the Company over the
past bond period.

(c)  Estimated by reference to the historical dividend payout of the
Company.

Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited |

(a)  BMEXTIZENKERREEBFES R
EHNZESRERE -

(o)  EREFHEARRNBEERKIE -

(¢ REARFRHBEREIRM G EL -
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=+—HILEE

29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 29.

Convertible Bonds Il (Continued)
During the year ended 31 March 2016, none of the Convertible
Bonds Il was converted into ordinary shares of the Company.

The movement of liability component of Convertible Bond Il
for the year is set out below:

ARRES )
ABRES = (2)
HE-Z—RE=A=1+—BItEE ¥
WARIRE S SR ARATEBR -

FRABRKREF —ZAERS 2 EEHIH
LI

Principal Carrying

amount amount

LR BREE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

As at 1 April 2014 NZZE—HFMYA—H - -
Issuance of Convertible Bonds |l BT BRES - 192,000 21,115
Interest charge Mem%z - 2,946
31 March 2015 —E—RAF=A=1+—H 192,000 24,061
Interest charge FEMZ = 5,941
31 March 2016 RZB—-—RE=A=+—H 192,000 30,002

Convertible Bonds Il

The Company issued convertible bonds to its associate,
Extrawell, in an aggregate principle amount of
HK$715,000,000 on 28 July 2014 (collectively referred to
as "“Convertible Bonds Il1") as part of the consideration
paid to acquire of 51% equity interest in Smart Ascent. The
Convertible Bonds Il with coupon rate of 3.5% per annum will
mature on the seventh anniversary of the date of issue.

The Convertible Bonds Ill entitle the bond holders to convert
them into shares of the Company at any time within 7 years
from the date of issue of the Convertible Bonds IlI, at the
initial conversion price per share of HK$2.5, subject to anti-
dilution clauses.

If the Convertible Bonds Il have not been converted, they will
be redeemed at par on the seventh anniversary of the date of
issue.

EMBEREVRRERAE | ZB-AFFER

AMmRES=
RARBRZE—HEFELAZ+ /BT
A& 485 4715,000,0005%8 T2 A R E
H(AB TR ESR=]) FEBE ARG
B EABHIMUBEES I %REZNR
B A REF=FEEHFEER35% -
WHEREITH AR RAFE AR -

AMBREF =M TEFFEAEN K&
TR E S = B R FABER K AT 2
RfEF =B AARD B - VIREBIRE
REBREM25ET  AXREEERRE
i) o

AT AR B = R - BB REITH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=1+—HILEE

29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 29. AR ES @)
Convertible Bonds Il (Continued) ARRES=#)
The Convertible Bonds Il are issued in HK$. The fair values AMREF =BT EIT - ARRIRCE
of the liability component was HK$233,547,000 for the —HEELAZ+TNABRITZABRRES=S
Convertible Bonds Il issued by the Company at 28 July 2014, R B EHEKE D M A FEA233,547,000
which have been determined by the discounted cash flow BT TERABRLGERTRREFNIRTT
approach using the prevailing market interest rate of similar B EZERBEREEET - WEF R
non-convertible bonds and taking into account the credit risk ARRMEERR - ARBIRZT—WF
of the Company. The fair values of the conversion option tAZHNREITHARKRESF = NER
of HK$136,646,000 classified as equity component for the 8 A F {8 5136,646,00078 7T (2 5 A
Convertible Bonds Il issued by the Company at 28 July 2014 wmaby) - DEAZIEARNEE - AR
is calculated using Binomial Model. The inputs into the model N2 EUBINT -
were as follows:
28 July 2014
Principal
amount of
HK$715,000,000
—T—WHFtA
iy ANE
VNG
715,000,000/ 7T
Stock price BB HK$1.27
Exercise price 1168 HK$2.5
Discount rate ALIR & 24.67%
Risk-free rate (note a) mER A (M Fa) 1.63%
Expected volatility (note b) TRER MR (M aEb) 80.04%
Expected dividend yield (note ¢) T8 BRR B M a2 (M atc) 0.00%

Notes:

(@) The rate was determined with reference to the yields of Hong
Kong government bonds and treasury bills as at the date of
valuation.

Based on the historical price volatility of the Company over the
past bond period.

(c) Estimated by reference to the historical dividend payout of the
Company.

156
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EHRNESEERE -

(b)  EREFHEARRNBEERKIE -

(c) REAXFNBERSIKNEEEL -
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=+—HILEE

29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 29.

Convertible Bonds Il (Continued)
During the year ended 31 March 2016, none of the Convertible
Bonds Ill was converted into ordinary shares of the Company.

The movement of liability component of Convertible Bond Il
for the year is set out below:

ARRES )
ABREZ=®)
HE-Z—RE=A=1+—BItEE ¥
m A AR E 5 S IR AR D B EER -

FRAABRKREF=ZAERS 2 EEHI|H
W

Principal Carrying

amount amount

PN BREIE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FHT

As at 1 April 2014 R-ZZE—MNFMA—A - -

Issuance of Convertible Bonds Il BITR AR E S = 715,000 233,547

Interest charge Mem%z - 37,245

31 March 2015 RZZE—RAF=A=+—H 715,000 270,792

Interest charge FEMZ - 32,593

31 March 2016 R-ZEBE—-XRE=ZA=+—H 715,000 303,385
Convertible Bonds IV ¥ IR & %5

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company issued
convertible bonds in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$64,000,000 on 30 April 2015 (collectively referred to as
“Convertible Bonds IV") for the acquisition of Sale CB-Il forth
batch. The Convertible Bonds IV with zero coupon rate will
mature on the tenth anniversary of the date of issue.

The Convertible Bonds IV entitle the bond holders to convert
them into shares of the Company at any time within 10 years
from the date of issue of the Convertible Bonds IV, at the
initial conversion price per share of HK$0.4, subject to anti-
dilution clauses.

If the Convertible Bonds IV have not been converted, they will
be redeemed at par on the tenth anniversary of the date of

HE_Z-—RXE=ZA=1+—HBULFE &
ARERZE—RAFMA=THETEAS
4238 564,000,000/ T 2 A AR EH (&
B[ A RARESHM ) - KE S i SE
ABmRES=Z c IBMREFNCEEFE
EAT  BRETHHRTEFEAE
Hj o

AR E U T ESREAERN - RN
TR AR (B 25 70 B HA1& + & RBE RS A5 T 4
BREFHBBARBR - NRERER
BREMN0.4ET - AXREHRFRS

il AT R AR (B 25 PO R g i - RN 1T H
g+ BFE R RERETARD -

issue. s
P
e S
,_/ é TN
EMBEREYRBFERAT | ZE—REER @ 157
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=1+—HILEE

29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

Convertible Bonds IV (Continued)

The Convertible Bonds IV are issued in HK$. The fair values
of the liability component were HK$7,790,000 for the
Convertible Bonds IV issued by the Company at 30 April 2015,
which has been determined by the discounted cash flow
approach using the prevailing market interest rate of similar
non-convertible bonds and taking into account the credit risk
of the Company. The fair values of the conversion option
of HK$109,371,000 classified as equity component for the
Convertible Bonds IV issued by the Company at 30 April 2015
are calculated using Binomial Model.

29. R ES &)
AR ES (&)

AMREFEABITET c AQARINRZE
—AFMA=t+HBTZABRKRESM
B EAKID A FEAR7,790,000%8
7 DEARCBERT MR ESFHRITTIS
FRIZBIRE S REFET - O RA
ARMEERR - ARARR-_E—RFN
A=+HETHRRES NN ERED
A F{EA109,371,00078 7T (2 48 A HE S SR
D) A -ERERGTE -

The inputs into the model were as follows: AR ZEHBAOT :
30 April 2015
Principal
amount of
HK$64,000,000
—Z—hfF
WMA=+H
reH
64,000,000/ 7T
Stock price X E HK$1.16
Exercise price 1T{EE HK$0.4
Discount rate BhIR & 23.44%
Risk-free rate (note a) mERF (A Fa) 1.48%
Expected volatility (note b) TEER R R (K7 #tb) 79.49%
Expected dividend yield (note ¢) T8 BRR B M a3 (M atc) 0.00%

Notes: Hiat -

(a)  The rate was determined with reference to the yields of Hong
Kong government bonds and treasury bills as at the date of
valuation.

(b) Based on the historical price volatility of the Company over the
past bond period.

(c)  Estimated by reference to the historical dividend payout of the
Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, none of the Convertible
Bonds IV was converted into ordinary shares of the Company.

Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited |

(a)  ZMEDSERGERARBTERAES R

EHNESEERE -

(b))  EREFHEARE

BB ERINIE o

(c) REARFNBERSIKMNEFEE -

BHE-_Z—F=A=+—HItEE ' I
EOMREFOEERAEARAREBR -
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=+—HILEE

29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

29. EERES %)

Convertible Bonds IV (Continued) AR RES M)
The movement of liability component of Convertible Bond IV FRAIRBEFMN BB 2 BT
for the year is set out below: LU
Principal Carrying
amount amount
PN BREIE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
As at 1 April 2015 NR-ZZE—RFMNA—H - -
Issuance of Convertible Bonds IV TR RRR & 5P 64,000 7,790
Interest charge ez - 1,664
31 March 2016 R-B—-XE=ZHA=+—H 64,000 9,454
The effective interest rates of all the liability component of BANERBREFZMBERELRDNER
all the convertible bonds ranged from: 23.44% to 25.46% per FRES F23.44%%25.46% (—“F—H

annum (2015: 23.78% to 25.46% per annum).

EMBEREVREERAE

F o BRFENENF23.78%%25.46%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 &HZ —Z—

NEZA=+—RHIFE

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. R4
Number of Share
shares capital
B [N
'000 HK$'000
T FHET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREE0.01B T LR
Authorised: SEE
At 1 April 2014, 31 March 2015 and RZZE—mFHPA—A -
31 March 2016 “E—RAF=ZA=1+—HK
—E-XF=A=1+—H 50,000,000 500,000
Issued: 2T
At 1 April 2014 R-ZE—WUEFENHA—H 1,136,193 11,362
Conversion of convertible bonds (Note a) BT E S (K ita) 168,000 1,680
At 31 March 2015 RZE—RFE=A=+—H 1,304,193 13,042
Conversion of convertible bonds (Note b) IR RRES (K Eb) 160,000 1,600
At 31 March 2016 R-B—-—XR"E=A=+—H 1,464,193 14,642

Notes:

(a) On 27 June 2014 and 22 July 2014, 151,000,000 and
17,000,000 new ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.01
each were issued respectively upon the conversion of
convertible bonds. Convertible bonds and Convertible
Bonds | with aggregate principal amount of HK$6,800,000
and HK$60,400,000 were converted into 17,000,000 and
151,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at a conversion
price of HK$0.4 per share respectively, during the year ended 31
March 2015.

(b)  During the year ended 31 March 2016, 160,000,000 new
ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each were issued
upon the conversion of Convertible Bonds |. Convertible Bonds
| with aggregate principal amount of HK$64,000,000 were
converted into 160,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at
a conversion price of HK$0.4 per share.

As at 31 March 2016, the maximum number of shares issuable
upon conversion of all outstanding convertible bonds issued
by the Company is 1,805,000,000 (2015: 1,805,000,000).

All the shares issued during the year ended 31 March 2016
and 2015 rank pari passu with the issued shares of the
Company in all respect.

Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited |

it -

(a) RZE—NFESNA-t+tAR=-ZT—NF
tAZ+=H  RERABRRESE B2
7 BIIZ%47151,000,0000% & 17,000,0000%
ARREBREEICONABTZHERR -
BE-_Z—AF=A=1+—HLEEFE -
ARBREFRAIBRRES -2 A EED
71 /6,800,0007% 7T %2 60,400,000/ 7T -
I 2 5 Bl #2 A AR A F]17,000,000 B% &
151,000,000 8 @AY - BRE A ERK
0.477T °

by HEZZE-—ARAF=-ZA=Z+—HBLEHF
B RERATBRES % ¥
160,000,000 i A 2 & & B E E0.01 78
TZFERR - JBRBREF—2EAS8
%8 564,000,000/8 7+ WEHBRAAR
7]160,000,000/% Ei@mAT - EE AT
0.477T °

RIZFE-—R"F=ZA=+—8B EBHHME
AARAETZARITEZ T RREFEZ
A T 317 & = B {0 BB 73 1,805,000,000
~Z—F% :1,805000,000) °

NRE-F-XER-F-—RF=A
=+ BILFERTZAERGERE
HRE#T 2R A A ERL -
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=+—HILEE

31. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(i)

ended 31 March 2016

31. HEMEL T

Disposal of subsidiaries during the year (i)

On 23 December 2015, the Group entered into a sale

agreement with a connected person to dispose of the

entire equity interest held by the Group in Winluck

Legend Limited (“Winluck"”), a wholly owned subsidiary

of the Company, at a consideration of HK$10,000.

The disposal was completed on 30 December 2015.

The financial position of Winluck and its subsidiary

(the "WinluckGroup") at the date of disposal were as

follows:

RBZE-_ZT-—~"F=ZA=1+—
BEFEEHEMB AR
R-ZE—hE+-_A=-+=H" &
SEEREANLIT L HERHZE -
K{E10,0008 7T i & A & B P A
A A2 &K B R AWinluck Legend
Limited ([ Winluck |) 2 & Zi#E 25 o
HEER-_ZE—RAFE+=-A=+H
SEAK o R E BHE - Winluck & E K
B AR ([Winluck®E |) Z B AR
UM

HK$'000
FET
Consideration received 2R E
Cash consideration received by the Group AEEBWHRSRE 10
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR ZWE
Consideration received BURE 10
Net assets disposed of HECEEFE =
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries k=1 1) N el g 10
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZESRATE
Net cash inflow arising from disposal: HEEAZRESRAFE
Consideration received in cash BURERE 10
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B EHEZRITERKERS -
10

The Winluck Group is inactive as of the date of disposal

and contributed insignificant cash flows to the Group.

EMBEREVREERAE

“E-AFER

HELEEBWinluck E B R B %1%
FAEAREEERZAEREYTE
% o
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32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND LITIGATION

Litigation concerning CNL (Pinghu) in the PRC
On 17 April 2012, a writ of summons was issued by /T
I IE R EBEABR AT (Jiangsu Ruifeng Construction
Group Co., Limited) (“Jiangsu Ruifeng”) in the PRC as
the plaintiff against CNL (Pinghu), an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, as the defendant in
relation to the disputes arising from the consideration and
completion of construction services under the construction
contracting services agreement dated 8 October 2010, the
construction agreement dated 17 December 2010 and the
supplemental agreement dated 8 March 2011 (collectively
referred to as the “Construction Agreements”) entered
into between CNL (Pinghu) and Jiangsu Ruifeng, to claim
the outstanding construction cost of RMB13,150,000, the
related interests and litigation costs of the case. Pursuant to
the Construction Agreements, the total construction costs
was RMB16,675,000. Jiangsu Ruifeng had issued invoices
amounting to RMB29,126,000 in relation to the construction
work they performed. The aggregated invoice amount was
substantially different from the contracted amount. CNL
(Pinghu) only settled the amount of RMB16,601,000 and was
recorded as the cost of buildings as at 30 June 2012. On 24
April 2012, Jiangsu Ruifeng obtained a civil ruling against CNL
(Pinghu), pursuant to which a bank deposit of RMB15,000,000
or equivalent amount of assets of CNL (Pinghu) were to be
frozen, but the actual amount frozen was HK$222,000 as at
30 June 2012, which was significantly lower than the amount
stated in the civil ruling. The frozen balance was released
during the year ended 30 June 2013. On 14 January 2013,
an independent construction consulting company, which
was appointed by Pinghu District Court, issued a statement
certifying the total construction cost incurred would be in a
range between RMB15,093,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$19,142,000) and RMB18,766,000 (equivalent to
HK$23,801,000). According to the relevant legal opinion dated
on 29 July 2013, the possibility for Pinghu District Court for
adopting the construction cost of RMB18,766,000 is higher.
On 20 December 2013, the #TE F T ARZET (People's
Court of Pinghu City, Zhejiang Province) delivered a further
civil ruling, pursuant to which, CNL (Pinghu) shall, after the
said civil ruling came into force, pay to Jiangsu Ruifeng,
among other things, a fee of RMB3,309,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$4,197,000) for the construction services
rendered. CNL (Pinghu) filed an application to appeal to
TAZEMHRARZER (the Intermediate People’s Court of
Jiaxing City, Zhejiang Province). On 25 April 2014, #)1& 5%
ET AR A RJEFRE upheld the original ruling of #1T & FH™ A
RJ%Bt and the Company was required to pay approximately
RMB4,223,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,333,000) to
Jiangsu Ruifeng. Total provision has been made by the Group
in this regard since 31 March 2014.

Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited |
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HABERFHR

KA EEBES T (FH) 2:FR
RIE——FWA++H  IEmEER
EFEARAT(GIEEE ) (EARS)RN
FRERAARNRZEEIFZENB AR FAE
() (EBEE)BLEBEESHK RAE
BmPaE () B IHRER - —FF
+ANBE Iz EERBRERZE R
T—TFE+-A++HIUZBERER
MW-_Z——F=FN\RBiI 2@z s
&R a ) ETZRERZEREER
BB 2T IEIm &R AP E ()
=8 ARY13,150,0007T 2 KM EER
1B - AEMEREHEZFRKAR - RER
EinE - BEBKAABARY 16,675,000
TC e ST ERImIE s T2 B TR R %
E.28AANRK29,126,000T - BE
BEELSHNSEHREREZE - FHE(F
) E AR ®16,601,0007T 0 WA
T——FEXNA=Z+HRSERERK - B
—E-_FNA-+WUAE ISR
BEHEPRCER) 2RERTE - it - F
AT (F388) 2 SR1TF ;A R # 15,000,000
THERESBIEEBHRGE  ER=F
——FRNA=Z1+TH BWREZEREER
222,000 T+ HKIBENREHE R
ZEE o WREAHBREBEE_ZT—=FX
B=tBIFERE R-_T—=F—A#
+HA - —HBYEEEMAREFLRERE
EREME  BH—(EE - EHEEEA
BN A R #15,093,0007T (FBE R4
19,142,000/ 70 ) £ A R # 18,766,000 7T
(#8& 1423,801,0008 7T ) 2 M - RIEE
ZEMR-_Z—Z=FtA-+tNLEBXNE
B FHERARRABELEKRARE
18,766,000 W Al gE R ™ - R=ZZT—=
F+_AZ+8  IAFHMARZER
BHE—SREHT Bl RECER)
ARREBH T AR R RTERGE S (KA
BIE)TIREENRERB Z2BAARE
3,309,0007T (FHE 7 494,197,0008 L) °
R CEB) AT A 2 Elm R A A RER
BB FF-R-E—NWEMA-+HH -
WTAZETRREAREREEINTEF
T ARAR 2 R HR - MARR)ZA M
TE IR IE X M AREA4,223,000T (HHE
M #)5,333,0008 L) - AEEER=F
—E= A=+ — BB HEEE
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mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=+—HILEE

32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND LITIGATION 32. iAEERFR#)

(Continued)

Litigation concerning CNL (Pinghu) in the PRC
(Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company
has received a payment notice from Jiangsu Ruifeng of
approximately RMB2,897,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$3,660,000) and settled accordingly.

The Company did not receive any payment notice from
Jiangsu Ruifeng during the year ended 31 March 2016 and
therefore no payment was made by the Company during the
year.

Litigation concerning Longmark (Shanghai) in
the PRC

The Company's associate, Longmark (Shanghai) entered into
a tenancy agreement with E/BRIBELEERAER A (“the
tenant”) for the use of premises located in /&M RERERIT
F&128FF 250 N — & (“the Premises”) on 9 August 2011.

On 2 November 2015, the tenant filed a writ of summons
in PRC against Longmark (Shanghai) claiming the sum of
RMB213,610 (equivalent to HK$256,778) being compensation
for the loss resulted from the suspension of electric power
supply on the Premises.

The directors believe that the above legal claim will not have
a material adverse effect on the results of the operations,
cash flow or financial positions of the Group. As there is
no certainty of the outcome of this legal case, the potential
losses, if any, which may arise from this claim has not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

The legal case has not been concluded up to the date of this
consolidated financial statements.

RPBRBESRECEH) /R E)

WBRE-_Z—AF=ZA=+—RHILFE
ANREEETIHKEZRIHFHARE
2,897,000 (#8 & 1 493,660,000/ 7T ) 49
B B EBERIE -

REBEE_Z—RE=ZA=1+—HILFE -
AN E I EEET BRI g N TR - 8
RRBRERILEN K

RPBAERER( L) 2R

AABWBEARER(ES) R ——
FNANBEEGRELEERFRAR]
(TREDBERMRN LT REmEERITEK
1287725 T — RO ([ W3 )T/

B -

W-_Z—RE+—HA=-H BFERTERA
EIR(EB)BLBEESHK  REARE
213,6107C (FHE 1K 256,77887T) ' 1EAY
¥REENHEELENEBRNEE -

BEERR - LERRETSEHAKERN
REXE HAeREIXMBHRRELERKR
FE - -BRILERRENERS TREME
o MREIGELNBEEBR(WA) KR
RERA M EHRER AR -

BERGANBREAN  EARMEY
R o

ERBRRANNEERAT | —B-A~EEH / Ay
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=1+—HILEE

33. COMMITMENTS
Operating lease commitments

33. &iE

As at 31 March 2016, the total future minimum lease NRZE—RE=ZA=+—H  KEEIRE
payments of the Group under non-cancellable operating FAIREEEREm AT 2 AR &EA
leases are payable as follows: ERIEBBET
2016 2015
=E—RF —E—hF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Future aggregate minimum lease payments 1RIEHRE i RiEF
under operating leases in respect of ZEEHER A
leasehold land and buildings ZARREIEEEFIBLREE
— within one year ——FR 1,057 2,267
—in the second to fifth years inclusive —FE_EFHF
(BEEEME) - 2,223
1,057 4,490
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the KREHEREEAEBEREETHAE
Group for certain of its offices, laboratory and staff quarter. ERE=NETIFEESASNZES -
Capital commitments BAREE
As at 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015, the Group has no R-E—RF=ZA=+—HER-ZE—HF
capital commitment contracted but not provided for. ZA=+—H ANEEHBESFTHERE
B2 BAEIE -
Other commitments HfhAyE
() The Group had other commitments of RMB4,500,000 i) RZE—XRF=ZA=+—8 ' &&
(equivalent to approximately HK$5,409,000) at 31 March B H i A E B A R ¥ 4,500,000
2016 (2015: RMB4,500,000 (equivalent to approximately T (FHE R 45,409,000 L) (==
HK$5,690,000)) in relation to the obligations and —HRF . AR®4,500,000T (HE
responsibility for the prize and administration cost of M #15,690,0008 7T ) ) + & KIEW &
the Tan Jia Zhen Life Sciences Prize undertaken by EETmAEMELEITERE([SBIA] -
the Shanghai Biopharmaceutical Industry Association BAREE R S48 2 F& P EN)
(the “SBIA"), the administrator of the Tan Jia Zhen MR IR 7 K 48 A B 22 B R R B 7 1y
Life Sciences Prize, pursuant to the Tan Jia Zhen Life 2% O mAREAETREs #EE
Sciences Prize Sponsorship agreement. TR AERE2BEREE -
Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited | Annual Report 2016
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33. COMMITMENTS (continued)
Other commitments (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

On 25 May 2011, Smart Ascent has entered into a loan
agreement with Fordnew pursuant to which Smart
Ascent has conditionally agreed to grant an unsecured,
non-interest bearing loan in the aggregate amount of up
to HK$30,000,000 to Fordnew for its onward lending to
Fosse Bio, a 51% owned subsidiary of Smart Ascent, for
payment of expenses relating to the clinical trial of oral
insulin product.

As at the date of acquisition of Smart Ascent and
31 March 2016, the aggregate balance utilised by
and unutilised balances available for Fordnew were
approximately HK$10,579,000 (2015: HK$10,579,000)
and HK$19,421,000 (2015: HK$19,421,000) respectively.

On 19 October 2006, Sea Ascent Investment Limited
(“Sea Ascent”), Welly Surplus and Fosse Bio entered
into a cooperation agreement (the “Cooperation
Agreement”) in connection with the cooperation (the
“Cooperation”) between Sea Ascent and Welly Surplus
in respect of the following:

(1) Sea Ascent shall procure its wholly-owned
subsidiary, Joy Kingdom Industrial Limited ("Joy
Kingdom"”), to establish a wholly foreign owned
enterprise in the PRC in the name of JT& K 245
#ZEER N F (Jiangsu Prevalence Pharmaceutical
Limited) (“Jiangsu Prevalence”);

EMBEREVREERAF |

=

33. &)
HMEE#)

(ii)

(iii)

—RNEER

R-ZE——FRA-_+HB  #4£
HARM R ERE R - EEB KRG
AEELERRENEsAE& LR
/430,000,000 T 2 ER T @H1E
AHEETEML(—HELEREH
51% 15 2 KB AR BIES B R
ARESEEMBRAERZEMA -

REEE 2 BHRR T —RF
—A=+—HB @HMEERAZXRIA
wEREmaEAmARER K
15 4 2t 5 5l 49 % 10,579,000 7% JT
(ZZ—H4F :10,579,0007% 7T )
19,421,000 T (=ZF —HF :
19,421,000/ 7T) °

R-2TXE+HATAR  RER
AERAR(EE])  WERREL
GEARIESEHET EES Pt
Bratr((aE)zZa RS
(TafEpHE))

(1 EEEREEZ2EHNBARR
HEEERAR(TRE )R
FRIRISNEBEERE - WA
BRIEHIKEREXRERAT
(DI#RRLEHE])
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=1+—HILEE

33. COMMITMENTS (continued)
Other commitments (Continued)
(Continued)

(iii)

(2)

Sea Ascent shall advance a sum equivalent to
RMB40 million to Joy Kingdom by way of an
unsecured, non-interest bearing shareholder’s loan
(“Shareholder’'s Loan") for the payment of the
registered capital of Jiangsu Prevalence and the
acquisition of land and construction of a factory
(the “Plant”) at Pi Zhou City, Jiangsu, the PRC for
the production of the Group’s Oral Insulin Enteric-
Coated Soft Capsules (the “Medicine”);

Subject to Sea Ascent’'s performance of its
obligations as aforesaid and completion of the
acquisition of Joy Kingdom by Welly Surplus as
mentioned below, Welly Surplus shall procure Joy
Kingdom or Jiangsu Prevalence, if so agreed, to pay
to Sea Ascent, during a period of six years from the
date on which the Medicine is launched for sales in
open market (the “Initial Operating Period”), a fee
at RMBG6 cents for each capsule of the Medicine
produced (subject to a maximum fee of RMB180
million for each year and deduction as specified in
the Cooperation Agreement); and

Unless the New Medicine Certificate in respect of
the Medicine has not been granted by the relevant
PRC authorities, Welly Surplus shall procure Fosse
Bio to allow the manufacturing of the Medicine
by Jiangsu Prevalence and to assist Jiangsu
Prevalence to obtain the relevant Pharmaceutical
Manufacturing Permit (2.4 EFT A #E) for the
manufacture of the Medicine during the Initial
Operating Period.

Under the Cooperation Agreement, Fosse Bio has
agreed to guarantee the due performance by Welly
Surplus of its obligations and liabilities (“Secured
Liabilities”) as mentioned in the above paragraphs,
provided that the maximum liability of Fosse Bio
under such guarantee shall not exceed 51% of the
Secured Liabilities. The Cooperation Agreement
became effective upon the shareholders’ approval
in the special general meeting of the Company held
on 3 January 2007, until the expiry of the Initial
Operating Period.

Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited |

33. &)

HtaEz)

(iii)

(%)
(2)

(3)

RKEEFRERD 28R
REX(REEFDEXA
R BT EERERARE
40,000,000 0 2 3X38 » F1EX
IR 2 EMERUR
AR AR BT AR AR N T UK B
& EE— RS (TRE ) FT
TEE  ZMBERAREEASE
ErzORBESEBARBA( 2

ml)

HREBIT LAEARBAR
B Tt YR B A - IR A AR (E
TR 80T AR R 22 e (s B 1t )
BEIREEAEERAFATS
$HE B ERET S FE B ([ #5
EIEHA])  MIREXMNIES
SE-RBEZERAREES
HECZER(BFEmAAR
#180,000,000 T B AT #Z & 1E
WHEARTE T UABIR) « &

BIFPEREHERLERFR
LR EEE  HASIRE
{54 TV R VT A IR S it B 4 B
an 31 BT &Rk 24 1 2 BXUAR
BMERLEEFAIZE  URTZ
LERRANRES R

BIEEEHZE - BETRBER
mBYERBITH LB E
BREE(EREE] - HR
TREBERET CEELR
TEHRAERREEZ51% A
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33. COMMITMENTS (continued)

33. &)

Other commitments (Continued) H AR E ()
(i) (Continued) (i)  (#4&)
(3) (Continued) (3) (#&)

(iv)

On 19 October 2006, Sea Ascent and Welly Surplus
also entered into a sale and purchase agreement
(the "SP Agreement”) pursuant to which Sea
Ascent agreed to sell and Welly Surplus agreed
to acquire (i) the entire share capital (the “Sale
Share”) in Joy Kingdom; and (ii) the Shareholder’s
Loan at considerations of RMB40 million and
HK$1 respectively (the “Considerations”). The
completion of the SP Agreement was subject
to, among other conditions, approval of the SP
Agreement by the Company’s shareholders, the
Cooperation Agreement becoming effective and
the completion of the construction of the Plant
by Jiangsu Prevalence in accordance with the
terms of the Cooperation Agreement. The SP
Agreement was approved in the special general
meeting of Extrawell held on 3 January 2007. On
8 April 2009, Welly Surplus and Sea Ascent signed
a confirmation whereby both parties agreed to
extend the long stop date of the SP Agreement
from 30 November 2007 to 30 June 2010. In light
of the progress of the further clinical trial, Welly
Surplus and Sea Ascent have not yet concluded
the revised completion timetable in relation to
the construction of the Plant by 30 June 2010,
and therefore the extension of the long stop date
of SP Agreement is yet to be concluded. The SP
Agreement has not yet become unconditional and
the Consideration has not yet been due and paid
up to the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements.

Pursuant to clinical trial of the oral insulin project, Fosse (iv)
Bio has entered into service contracts with &5 &3

e BRI BAZ AR A A (the “Project Administrator”)

dated 16 December 2009 and 24 March 2014 with

value in total of RMB12,080,000 and RMB10,400,000
respectively for provision of clinical trial management

services and the related clinical studies.

EMBEREVRRERAE | ZB-AFFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=1+—HILEE

34.

35.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the
scheme are held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of trustees. The Group and each employee
employed in Hong Kong are required to make a contribution
of 5% on the employees’ monthly relevant income with a
maximum monthly contribution of HK$1,500 per person.

The PRC employees of the Group are members of a state-
managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the local
government. The Group is required to contribute a specific
percentage of their payroll costs to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the
specified contributions.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Dr. Mao and Dr. Xie have beneficial non-controlling interest
in the shares of the Company. In addition, they have joint
control of a company which has shareholding of the Company
giving it significant influence over the Company. Save as those
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements,
the Group has entered into the following related party
transactions:

34.

35.

RRERGTE
AEEBRERBAEEBASEREER RGN
NEREE - ZETEZ2EEBBIETA
Tl B HASE EESFRFE - K
SEREEREBCEREENERREES
REBRAZS%HER - BAEKERA
B A1,500/87T °

AEEHBEREE/MEBEHRMAEEZHER
HREFE 2KE - AEBEAREE ZH
ERARIETE B 5 L R AR RAE R
Bt (FAFRAMZES - ARERNZ
BARBHNFET 2R —BEE/FELEEHR

ES
Ko

BEALRS
ERLRHBIRARAROPHERER
FEfERRE R o BN WEKRES —HH
BEARRRRBEIHARBREBEERNTEN
ZRA] e BRERMBRRKREAMNERE
REFDETATHEALRS :

2016 2015
—E—AF —E-hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT

Service fee expense paid and payable ENRENTAARIRREEZLT
to Dr. Mao, a shareholder of the Company  ZR&ERX 672 672

Key management compensation: FEFTERE 2R

Short-term employee benefits SR =P =R 1,779 1,930
Post-employment benefits BER 2B A 27 23
1,806 1,953
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=+—HILEE

36. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 36. MEHREBE

On 24 March 2016, the Company entered into subscription
agreements (“the Subscription Agreements”) with three
subscribers, pursuant to which the Company has conditionally
agreed to issue and the subscribers have conditionally agreed
to subscribe for the Convertible Bonds in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$280,000,000. The maturity of the
Convertible Bonds will be the date falling on the third
anniversary from the date of issue of the Convertible Bonds.
The Convertible Bonds will be converted into Conversion
Shares at the Conversion Price of HK$1.00 (subject to
adjustments) per Conversion Share. As at 31 March 2016,
the Company has received HK$50,000,000 from Fu Chuang
Limited, who is one of the three subscribers (as disclosed in
note 25).

On 13 April 2016, the Company was informed by two
subscribers that they would not be able to perform their
payment obligation under the respective Subscription
Agreements. Accordingly, the Company has exercised its
rights, and issued a notice to these two subscribers to
terminate the Subscription Agreement with effect from 13
April 2016 with these two subscribers pursuant to the terms
of the respective Subscription Agreement. Upon termination,
all antecedent obligations and liabilities of the Company and
these two subscribers under their respective Subscription
Agreements were discharged and released in all aspects and
no parties shall have any claim of any nature whatsoever
against the other parties under their respective Subscription
Agreement.

Notwithstanding the termination of the respective
Subscription Agreements with the abovementioned
subscribers, the completion of the Subscription Agreement
entered into between the Company and Fu Chuang Limited,
being one of the three subscribers, was taken place on 13
April 2016. The Convertible Bonds was issued in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$50,000,000 and its fair value on the
same date was HK$57,975,000.

RZEBE—RNF=ZAZ+WA  ARAH=
ERBAFILRBHZE((REHZE]) -
BUHARREKHERZET  MRBAR
1R B RE - AN$ 4% /280,000,000
IR AR ESH - ATRREFHEIAA
BRETIRRESARRR=BFE
H - TR EHFSIREGREBRRMD1.008
(A FHAR)NERABERAEEHRRND
RZE—R"F=ZRA=+—H " ARQRAIEAR”
B AlA R A R]UEN50,000,000%8 7T © E Al
BRABA=ZREAZ— (B E25
Fri%es) o

RZZB-—REWEA+=R " AAFAKEIM
H2RBAEA - IS TEETHERE
e TN A © ]t - AR RIREM
BRI ok R TTE LR - DRI %
ABABHBA  RIEERZREANR
BwE BT R"EONAT=RAEXL
oo BRILE - ARFAHEZRERBEAR
HARBHBEET 2MBLEANEERER
R PR T AR Rk - BRRIATT
TRAMEBRBEREE T 2EMBIIOT R
HAEREE 2 ERRE -

8 % 45 L0 5 3 AR A BT Sz 04 B R
B ARAR=ZBBAZ—EA
BARTIHRBHHTH =T~

50,000,000/ LiEET - RERBERAZA
& 457,975,000/ 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=1+—HILEE

37. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY

37. A RFMBARFE

Place of Registered/ Percentage of ownership
incorporation/ issued paid-up interest voting power/profit sharing
Name registration Place of operation  capital held by the Group Principal activities
REEFREZREERSRER/
£# HREL/AREE  EERY i/ BRTHRRA BrAEzEIN IEXH
31.3.2016 31.3.2015
“E-RE Z3-1%F
=R=t-A =R=t-A
Directly Indirectly  Directly Indirectly
E# 1 B% i
Lucky Full Holdings Limited British Virgin British Virgin US$1 ordinary share 100% - 100% - Investment holding
Islands Islands
ERARERAT ABEARES AREARES 1ETERR RESRK
Clear Rich International Limited ~ British Virgin British Virgin US$1 ordinary share - 100% - 100% Investment holding
Islands Islands
BEERERAR ARERRES ARERRES 1ETEER RESRK
China United Gene Health Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary share - 100% - 100% Trading of beauty
Limited equipment and
products and
securities investment
ZERCERRRERARNA  EE e BT EER XPRBRERES
RE5HRE
CNL (Pinghu) (Note a) PRC PRC US$20 million - 70% - 70% Distribution of bio-
registered capital industrial products
hiE (TR ) (Hita) T hE 20,000, 000% i AR AHENERED
Mega Cedar Group Limited British Virgin British Virgin US$1 ordinary share - 100% - 100% Investment holding
Islands Islands
Mega Cedar Group Limited ABERRHE RBERREE 1ZTEER HARR

170

Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited |

Annual Report 2016



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=+—HILEE

37. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES OF

THE COMPANY (continued)

Name

tR

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Place of operation

ARRY/EfeY  EELE

37. XRFMBLARFEE#)

Registered/ Percentage of ownership
issued paid-up interest voting power/profit sharing
capital held by the Group Principal activities
REEFREZREERSRER/
it/ ERTHRRA BrAEzEIN IERH
31.3.2016 31.3.2015
ZE-RE ZF-nf
ZA=t-A ZA=1-H

Directly Indirectly  Directly Indirectly

E# ;3 Bl 73
Perfect Net Limited British Virgin British Virgin US$1 ordinary share - 100% - 100% Investment holding
Islands Islands
Perfect Net Limited ARERRRS ARERRRS 1EnLEk RERR
New Wonder Limited British Virgin British Virgin US$1 ordinary share - 100% - 100% Investment holding
Islands Islands
New Wonder Limited RERARES ABERRHE 1ZTERR REER
Rankup Holdings Limited British Virgin British Virgin US$1 ordinary share - 100% - 100% Investment holding
Islands Islands
Rankup Holdings Limited EBEREE EBERHE 1ZTEER REER
East Longmark (Note b) PRC PRC HK$15 million - 100% - 100% Provision of genetic
registered capital testing services
ReEl (W) e HE 15,000,000 T E R REERAZRE
Shanghai Honglian Investment ~ PRC PRC HK$3 million - 100% - - Inactive
Advisory Limited (Note ¢) registered capital
PELERENARLANze) w8 HE 3,000,000 AR FiER
Shanghai Xizhen International PRC PRC HK$3 million - 100% - - Inactive
Trading Limited (Note d registered capital
HERSERESERAAWita) #E il 3,000,000 T ERER JFikiE
it
AMBBREVNEERAT | —B-XEEH /™ 171
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —ZE—NF=-A=1+—HILEE

37. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES OF 37. XA aMBARFE &)
THE COMPANY (continued)

Place of Registered/ Percentage of ownership
incorporation/ issued paid-up interest voting power/profit sharing
Name registration Place of operation  capital held by the Group Principal activities
REEFREZREERSRER/
£# HREL/AREE  EERY it/ ERTHRRA BrAEzEIN IERH
31.3.2016 31.3.2015
“E-RE ZF-nf
ZA=t-A ZA=1-H

Directly Indirectly  Directly Indirectly
E# 1 B% i

Smart Ascent (Note e) Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 ordinary - 51% - 51% Investment holding
shares

&4 (Wite) B e 10,0003 EER RERR

Fossie Bio (Note e/ Hong Kong PRC HK$100,000 ordinary - 30.79% - 30.79% Development and
shares commercialisation of

oval insulin products

Bt (Hite) 20 hE 100,000/ 7 & &k UESE] e
NEEEZER
Welly Surplus (Note ¢) Hong Kong PRC HK$100 ordinary - 30.79% - 30.79% Inactive
shares

& (hide) A hE 100E T EBR FiaE
Nation Joy Industrial Limited British Virgin British Virgin US$10,000 ordinary - 60.38% - 60.38% Inactive

(Note e} Islands Islands shares
BYEXERAR (Hite) ABERRRE EBARRRE 10,000% L& B AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ—Z—NF=-A=1+—HILEE

37. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

Notes:

(a) CNL (Pinghu) is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise established
in the PRC on 2 April 2008 for a period of fifty years.

(b) East Longmark is a wholly domestic limited company
established in the PRC on 24 November 2011 for a period of
thirty years.

(c)  Shanghai Honglian Investment Advisory Limited is a wholly
domestic limited company established in the PRC on 26 January
2015 for a period of thirty years.

(d)  Shanghai Xizhen International Trading Limited is a wholly
domestic limited company established in the PRC on 26
December 2014 for a period of thirty years.

(e)  These companies became subsidiaries of the Company upon
completion of Acquisition on 28 July 2014.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affect the financial results of the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding
at the end of the year or any time during the year.

EMBEREYPEERAE | =%

37. XRFMBLARFEE#)

Hiat

(a) FE(EMAR-_ZETNFOA_HAEF
BRI ZNEeERE AR+ -

(b) ERAN-_ZT——F+—A=-+mA%E
PREKNICERNEBREERR @ AH
=+F -

(c) LBAEREFAERAFTAR-_F -4
F-AZtTRBETERIZZRERR
BEERA - RH=t+% -

(d LERSERESERAAANR_-ZE 0
FH_AZ+TABEFERIZZRNER
BREERT - RE=1+F-

) WERRER-_F-OFLA-+NAZ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —Z—NF=-A=+—HILEE

37. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES OF 37. XA aMBARFHE &)
THE COMPANY (continued)

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned TRANAEEREERIFERIES ZIE
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling 2EMBAR -
interests:
Proportion of
Place of Proportion of voting rights in board (Loss) profit
incorporationand  ownership interests of directors’ meeting allocated to Accumulated
principal place held by held by non-controlling non-controlling
Name of subsidiary of business  non-controlling interests non-controlling interests interests interests
ALK FERBRAHE FERERNEE ARTHERESR

HEARER ITEERY ZEREREIA ZRESEZREE LA Z(EB)hE i FERER

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
S§-AF CT-RF SRR CTEF SEAE CTRF SEAE CTES
HK$'000  HKS'000 ~ HK$'000  HKS'000

Thn i TER AR

Smart Ascent (Note) Hong Kong 49% 49% 49% 49% (735) 226 (509) 206
(W) B

Fosse Bio (Note) Hong Kong/PRC 69.21%  69.21% 69.21%  69.21% (2,628) (4,628) = 871,775 874,403
Btz A%/

CNL (Pinghu) PRC 30% 30% 30% 30% (715) (824) 8,310 9,025
(T hE

Individually immaterial subsidiaries with
non-controlling interests (4)
ERFERER BUFIENBAT

=

(72) (68)

(4,082) (5,230) = 879,504 883,586

Note: SAL Group become the subsidiaries of the Group upon the Hiat - ERR —E—NELA -+ N\B2IK
completion of Acquisition on 28 July 2014. BEXKEBKARAEE ZHBAR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ—Z—NF=-A=1+—HILEE

37. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES OF 37. A R B A RS #)

THE COMPANY (continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of each of
the Group's subsidiaries that has material non-controlling
interests is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts before intragroup
eliminations.

ERUAEERERNFERER 2 SRHM
BARZMBERBENT - THRMBE
M EBRREBANEKENZ SR -

SAL Group EEEE
2016 2015
ZEB-REF —E-hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Current assets mENEE 2,639 11,717
Non-current assets EMBEE 1,394,062 1,387,159
Current liabilities mENE R (65,794) (69,683)
Non-current liabilities EREBAE (8,234) (3,557)

Equity attributable to owners of KAEIHB AEGER
the Company 448,781 451,075
Non-controlling interests FEPE IR 871,194 874,561
///,
; L 5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —Z—NF=-A=+—HILEE

37. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES OF 37. A R BARFE#)

THE COMPANY (continued)

SAL Group (Continued) EEEEE)
2016 2015
ZEB-REF —E-REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Revenue WA = =
Expenses 53 (5.661) (6,124)
Loss and total comprehensive expense FABEREAMZETE
for the year (5,661) (6,124)
Loss and total comprehensive expense BEEREERAZBERS
attributable to
Owners of the Company KAREA A (2,294) (1,179)
Non-controlling interests VR AR M 2 (3,367) (4,405)
(5,661) (5,584)
Net cash outflow from operating activities R EE) 2 IR RHFHE (1) (1,383)
Net cash inflow from investing activities RIEEEH 2 RERAFRE = 1,383

There is no net cash flow from financing activities. BBBREMR

Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited | Annual Report 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ—Z—NF=-A=1+—HILEE

37. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES OF 37. XA aMBARFHE &)
THE COMPANY (continued)

CNL (Pinghu) e (SF54)
2016 2015
—E—AF —E-hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Current assets MENEE 794 2,168
Non-current assets ERBEE 35,516 36,081
Current liabilities MENEE (3,635) (3,545)
Non-current liabilities EREAE (2,443) (2,174)
Equity attributable to owners of RAEIHE AEGER
the Company 21,920 23,505
Non-controlling interests FEVE IR 8,310 9,025
2016 2015
ZEB-REF —ZE—h%F
HK$000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Other income E A 95 72
Expenses 53 (2,479) (2,819)
Loss and total comprehensive expense for  FREE K 2 EH L 258
the year (2,384) (2,747)
Loss and total comprehensive expense BEREEERASGERE
attributable to
Owners of the Company PA/NEIEZ 2SN (1,669) (1,923)
Non-controlling interests AR 2 (715) (824)
(2,384) (2,747)
Net cash outflow from operating activities ~ REEEE IR SR F5E (1,198) (5,240)
There are no cash flows from investing and financing BRERERNIRERBEES - )
activities. /
/@
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ —Z—NF=-A=+—HILEE

38. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 38. A rRZHMBESR

COMPANY
2016 2015
—E—AF —E-hEF
HK$000 HK$'000
T FHET
Non-current assets EMBEE
Property, plant and equipment WE - BB REE 313 75
Interests in associates RE &R A AR 128,103 143,634
Investment in subsidiary R RRIRIRE 1 1
Investments in convertible bonds R ESFNIEE 259,555 257,368
387,972 401,078
Current assets MENEE
Prepayments, deposits and other BAFIE - &ZE
receivables N B A e M R IE 550 555
Amounts due from group companies FEU SR B A R 2 508 521,686 397,940
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRNIAS 13,599 131,975
535,835 530,470
Current liabilities mEaE
Accruals and other payables FERTE R R H AL FERT IR 1,192 3,401
Funds received in advance FEWE S 50,000 =
51,192 3,401
Net current assets MENE EFRE 484,643 527,069
Non-current liabilities EmBAE
Convertible bonds AR E S 403,146 351,400
NET ASSETS EEFE 469,469 576,747
Capital and reserves BARRFEE
Share capital f& s 14,642 13,042
Reserves i 454,827 563,705
TOTAL EQUITY R 469,469 576,747

The financial statements were approved by the Board of
Directors on 29 June 2016 and are signed on its behalf by:

MBERREAEFER T —ARFRA
THABHE  UHATEEREES

Jiang Nian Tang Rong
BF B
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EFE EF
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38. FINANCIAL
COMPANY (continued)

Reserve of the Company

INFORMATION OF THE

ARz

Convertible

38. XRFZHMBER (#)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HiZ—Z—NF=-A=1+—HILEE

Share note equity  Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
TRRER

BARE EREHE RitE#B @zt

HKS HK$ HK$ HKS

BT BT BT BT

As at 1 April 2014 RZE—NFERMA—H 901,488 747,556 (1,139,393) 509,651

Loss for the year FRER - - (451,793) (451,793)

Acquisition of subsidiaries WrEHB AR - 136,646 - 136,646
Recognition of equity component BRBREF EZS D

of convertible bonds - 363,034 - 363,034
Issue of shares upon conversion AR E A BRI

of convertible bonds 111,558 (105,391) - 6,167

As at 31 March 2015 R-E—RE-ZA=F+—H 1,013,046 1,141,845 (1,591,186) 563,705

Loss for the year ERNEE - - (226,143) (226,143)
Recognition of equity component BRI BRES 2 EEHD

of convertible bonds - 109,371 - 109,371
Issue of shares upon conversion AR EF AR BT

of convertible bonds 106,248 (98,354) - 7,894

As at 31 March 2016 RZFE-—A"F=ZA=+—H 1,119,294 1,152,862 (1,817,329) 454,827

v g ‘
// ‘ N
EMBEREYREERAR | ZE-REER /T 179



180

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
B HE

RESULTS E
For the For the For the
twelve twelve nine
months months months
ended ended ended For the twelve months
31 March 31 March 2014 ended 30 June
Bz 85z BZ
=B=t—-HI =ZA=t-HIL ZZ-MWELL
+=f@A +=f@A N8R BEAA=THLET=@A
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—E-RF —Z-0F —Z-|mF 2= —T-CF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET THT TAT FAL
Revenue WA 19,908 33,976 29,744 10,050 25,475
(Loss)/profit for the year/period ~ RERZELELEK S
from continuing operations E/HR(ER) ST (240,947) (456,914) (557,338) (38,538) (106,274)
Profit/(loss) for the year/period RECRITBEER Y
from discontinuing operation F/HRER (E518R) - = 140 (51,119) (23,423)
(Loss)/profit for the year/period F/HR(ER)ET (240,947) (456,914) (557,198) (89,657) (129,697
Attributable to: 5B
Owners of the Company AREERA (236,865) (451,684) (550,347) (72,839) (123,882)
Non-controlling interests RS (4,082) (5,230) (6,851) (16,818) (5,815)
(240,947) (456,914) (557,198) (89,657) (129,697
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at 31 March As at 30 June
R=A=+-8 RAA=1+A
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
“B-nF —T-1F —TPF =% —F-—fF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTET FHET THT THT
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,824,474 1,831,394 430,699 143,038 69,879
Current assets MEEE 185,718 209,158 310,819 365,000 286,119
Current liabilities mBEE (120,940) (81,957) (15,135) (47,128) (18,178)
Non-current liabilities ErBEE (410,236) (357,131) (54,162) (16,548) (7,253)
Net assets EEFE 1,479,016 1,601,464 672,221 444,362 330,667
Attributable to: BB :
Owners of the Company ARAEBA 599,512 717,878 662,372 453,337 319,248
Non-controlling interests FiERES 879,504 883,586 9,849 (8,975) 11,319
Total equity k] 1,479,106 1,601,464 672,221 444,362 330,667
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